Members

Jeremy C. Doty, Chair

Donald Erickson, Vice-Chair

Chris Beale

Sean Gaffney

Tina Lee

lan Morrison

Matthew Nutsch ‘ & e n d a
Erle Thompson g

Scott Winship

Community and Economic Development Department Tacoma Plannlng Comm|SS|On

Ryan Petty, Director
Peter Huffman, Assistant Director
Charles Solverson, P.E., Building Official

Public Works and Utilities Representatives 747 Market Street, Room 1036
Jim Parvey, City Engineer/Assistant Director, Public Works Department Tacoma, WA 98402-3793
Heather Pennington, Resource Planning Manager, Tacoma Water 253-591-5365 (phone) / 253-591-2002 (fax)
Diane Lachel, Community and Government Relations Manager, Click! Network, Tacoma Power www.cityoftacoma.org/planning

(Agenda also posted at: www.cityoftacoma.org/planning > “Planning Commission” > “Agendas-Minutes-Recordings”)

MEETING: Regular Meeting
TIME: Wednesday, October 19, 2011, 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Room 16, Tacoma Municipal Building North
733 Market Street, Tacoma, WA 98402

A. CALL TO ORDER
B. QUORUM CALL
C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES — Regular Meeting and Public Hearings of September 21, 2011

D. GENERAL BUSINESS

40spm) 1. Large Scale Retail Moratorium

Description: Review testimony received at the public hearing on October 5 and
written comments received through October 7; review draft Letter of
Recommendation and draft Findings of Fact and Recommendation;
and forward a recommendation to the City Council.

Actions Requested: Recommendation
Support Information: See “Agenda Item GB-1"
Staff Contact: Brian Boudet, 573-2389, bboudet@cityoftacoma.org

435pm) 2. Downtown Parking Requirements

Description: Review testimony received at the pubic hearing on September 21 and
written comments received through September 30; and review staff
responses to public comments and possible changes to the proposed
amendments.

Actions Requested: Discussion; Direction
Support Information: See “Agenda Item GB-2"
Staff Contact: Chelsea Levy, 591-5393, clevy@cityoftacoma.org

The Community and Economic Development Department does not discriminate on the basis of handicap in any of its programs and services.
f} Upon request, accommodations can be provided within five (5) business days. Contact (253) 591-5365 (voice) or (253) 591-5153 (TTY).


mailto:bboudet@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:clevy@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:clevy@cityoftacoma.org

Agenda for Regular Meeting on Wednesday, October 19, 2011 Page 2

@00pm) 3. Brewery District Subarea Plan

Description: Review the scope of work and major issues pertaining to the Brewery
District Subarea Plan, one of the Growing Transit Communities
catalyst projects in the Puget Sound region funded by a grant from
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Actions Requested: Discussion; Direction
Support Information: See “Agenda Item GB-3”

Staff Contact: lan Munce, 573-2478, imunce@cityoftacoma.org

E. COMMUNICATION ITEMS

F. COMMENTS BY LONG-RANGE PLANNING DIVISION
G. COMMENTS BY PLANNING COMMISSION

H. ADJOURNMENT


mailto:imunce@cityoftacoma.org
mailto:imunce@cityoftacoma.org

Members

Jeremy C. Doty, Chair

Donald Erickson, Vice-Chair

Chris Beale

Sean Gaffney

Tina Lee

lan Morrison -

Matthew Nutsch M I n u teS
Erle Thompson

Scott Winship

gyanr??eftr;ftgirzrcltgrEconomic Development Department Tacoma Plan N I ng Comm ISSIOn

Peter Huffman, Assistant Director
Charles Solverson, P.E., Building Official

Public Works and Utilities Representatives 747 Market Street, Room 1036
Jim Parvey, City Engineer/Assistant Director, Public Works Department Tacoma, WA 98402-3793
Heather Pennington, Water Distribution Engineering Manager, Tacoma Water 253-591-5365 (phone) / 253-591-2002 (fax)
Diane Lachel, Community and Government Relations Manager, Click! Network, Tacoma Power www.cityoftacoma.org/planning

(For Review/Approval on 10-19-11)

MEETING: Regular Meeting and Public Hearings
TIME: Wednesday, September 21, 2011, 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Council Chambers, Tacoma Municipal Building, 1% Floor
747 Market Street, Tacoma, WA 98402

Members Jeremy Doty (Chair), Donald Erickson (Vice-Chair), Chris Beale, Sean Gaffney,

Present: Tina Lee, lan Morrison, Matthew Nutsch, Erle Thompson
Staff Donna Stenger, Brian Boudet, Karla Kluge, Chelsea Levy
Present:

Chair Doty called the meeting to order at 4:05 p.m. The minutes for the meeting of August 17,
2011 were approved after a correction was made — changing “appended” to “appealed” in the
3" paragraph under the item of “Medical Cannabis Moratorium.

GENERAL BUSINESS

1. Large Scale Retail Moratorium

Chair Doty recused himself from the discussion and Vice-Chair Erickson presided over this
portion of the meeting. Additionally, Commissioner Morrison, in keeping with public disclosure
practices, indicated that he had been involved over the summer with a law firm that represented
Walmart but that he had no involvement with Walmart or any case associated with them, that he
no longer works for the firm, and that this would not affect his ability to be impartial on this issue.

Brian Boudet, Long-Range Planning, gave an overview of the moratorium that was adopted by
the City Council on August 30, 2011. He explained that the moratorium was established to
restrict the issuance of any building or land use permits for all large retail uses — those being
greater than 65,000 square feet. He gave a brief explanation of the purpose of the moratorium,
the standards and review process for moratoria, and what actions the City Council expects from
the Planning Commission. Mr. Boudet indicated that the moratorium specifically affects any
new construction of large retail establishments and additions to existing large retail
establishments. He also clarified that these restrictions only affect individual large retalil
establishments and do not prevent the construction or alteration of large shopping centers that
don’t include any individual use that is over the 65,000 square foot threshold.

The Community and Economic Development Department does not discriminate on the basis of handicap in any of its programs and services.
é} Upon request, accommodations can be provided within five (5) business days. Contact (253) 591-5365 (voice) or (253) 591-5153 (TTY).



The Commissioners asked for an explanation of why a moratorium can be adopted and how it is
done as an emergency measure. Mr. Boudet explained the steps the Council takes to adopt an
emergency moratorium as outlined in the Municipal Code. He also went over the
responsibilities that are given to the Planning Commission in cases involving the establishment
of emergency moratoria. The review of emergency moratoria includes two phases. The first
phase is the Planning Commission’s review of the moratorium itself and its recommendation to
the Council addressing whether the moratorium is warranted or not, whether it should be
modified, and whether the duration established by the Council is reasonable. Following the
Commission’s recommendation, the Council will hold a public hearing and then decide whether
to retain, modify or rescind the moratorium. If the moratorium is retained by the Council, the
second phase of the Planning Commission’s review is then to examine the issues identified by
the Council and public and consider whether changes to the land use regulations are needed
and, if so, recommend such changes to the Council for approval.

At this point, Mr. Boudet went over the details of where large retail businesses are currently
located in the City, the zoning districts where they are allowed, and the zoning designations in
which the 17 existing ones are currently found — the C-2, CCX and UCX Districts. Mr. Boudet
provided information on each of the locations and discussed generally the types of design and
development standards that apply to these types of uses and these districts. While the existing
large retail stores are spread throughout the city it is not surprising that the Tacoma Mall
contains the largest concentration. Mr. Boudet also noted that most of the large retall
establishments are located in large shopping centers, with the exception of just one or two
examples of large stand-alone retail businesses, such as Costco.

The Commissioners questioned Mr. Boudet regarding the reason that the moratorium was put in
place. Mr. Boudet explained that the ordinance indicates that the Council has very broad
concerns about the impacts that large retail establishments may have on the community,
including economic, environmental, health, traffic and public safety, as well as concerns about
whether the existing standards are carrying out the Comprehensive Plan. While it is likely that
discussions surrounding a potential project helped to highlight some of these issues, the
moratorium affects more than one particular project, location or business. The Council enacted
a city-wide moratorium on all permitting associated with large retailers and is clearly concerned
about these types of uses and their potential impacts on the entire community.

The Commissioners asked about why the number 65,000 square feet was used as the threshold
in this instance. Mr. Boudet said that the ordinance does not indicate why that particular
number was chosen to define “large.” That number is not used elsewhere in the code or plan as
a threshold for standards or review, but as can be seen in the size of our current retail uses
there is generally a cut-off point around 65,000 square feet that separates grocery stores and
similarly-sized retail stores and the much larger retail establishments..

The Commission also asked about what constitutes an “emergency.” Mr. Boudet indicated that
in this case the purpose for declaring the emergency, as outlined by the Council, was to protect
the public welfare and prevent vesting projects under the current regulations before the City has
a chance to evaluate whether the standards are sufficient or not. However, the actual affect of
declaring the moratorium under an emergency is really to allow the Council to adopt the
moratorium prior to holding a public hearing and prior to getting a recommendation from the
Commission. In cases where the Council declares an emergency they can adopt the
moratorium immediately and then get the full community input and Commission’s
recommendation before deciding whether the moratorium was warranted or not.

Planning Commission Minutes — Regular Meeting and Public Hearings, September 21, 2011 Page 2



The Commissioners discussed briefly how the development standards for large retalil
businesses might be changed but wanted to wait to see what public comment would add to the
mix regarding this issue. The Commission also discussed environmental review and impacts
fees and how other jurisdictions utilize impact fees, particularly for traffic, to ensure that new
uses sufficiently address traffic infrastructure issues. However, they did express some
reservations about whether this seems to be an emergency and whether the regulations are so
insufficient that a moratorium is needed.

The Commissioners also questioned if Walmart was the only big retail business that is
controversial and whether there was enough time to go over the questions involved in this issue.
Ms. Stenger replied that this was the purpose for having a public hearing, to help identify the
community concerns about large retail uses and get a better feel for the scope of this project.

Mr. Boudet expressed his appreciation for all the input from the Commission and noted that staff
would return with responses to the concerns that were expressed. At the close of the
presentation, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to set the public hearing date for
October 5, 2011 at 5:00 p.m.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Downtown Parking Requirements

At 5:03 p.m., Chair Doty called to order the first public hearing regarding Downtown Parking
Requirements. Chelsea Levy, Long Range Planning Division, reviewed the proposed changes
to the off-street parking requirements for new development in downtown. Ms. Levy provided
background on the development of the current proposal and a summary of the primary
amendments associated with the proposal. She then discussed the public outreach that had
been conducted in preparation for the public hearing, including notifications distributed to over
1,800 stakeholders and presentations on the topic to over 100 interested individuals. Ms. Levy
then described preliminary public feedback on the proposal, which has been generally
supportive with some concern about reducing the parking maximums.

Chair Doty called for oral testimony. The following comments were received:

(1) Eric Bjornson, attorney — Supports the proposal, especially the elimination of parking
minimums; citing best practices from other model cities and peer reviewed research.
Mr. Bjornson stated that good urban design occurs when the city enable the market to
determine the “right” amount of parking.

(2) Andrew Austin, Transportation Choices Coalition — Fully supports the proposal because
it works toward the goals creating a more walkable and livable downtown. Mr. Austin
suggested the benefits of the proposal should be expanded to a larger area of downtown.

(3) Tom Luce, Executive Council for a Greater Tacoma — Objects to reinstituting the parking
maximum in the International Financial Services Area and reducing the parking maximum in
the DCC. While the Executive Council supports eliminating the parking minimums, Mr. Luce
is concerned that parking maximum may make it more difficult to attract large employers into
downtown.

Planning Commission Minutes — Regular Meeting and Public Hearings, September 21, 2011 Page 3



(4) Herb Simon, developer — Objects to reinstituting the parking maximum in the International
Financial Services Area and reducing the parking maximum in the DCC. Mr. Simon is
concerned the City is developing a solution to a problem that does not exist in bad economic
times. He is concerned that more regulations could scare off potential investors interested
in Downtown. Mr. Simon proposed a collaborative meeting between City staff, Planning
Commissioners and the downtown development community to identify a solution to parking
concerns that would not deter others from investing in Tacoma.

(5) Kristina Walker, Downtown: On the Go! — Supports the elimination of the parking
minimums and reducing the parking maximums to 2.5 stall per 1,000 square feet.
Ms. Walker stated that additional parking will not make downtown a more attractive place to
live and work.

With no further speakers coming forward to testify, the public hearing was closed at 5:25 p.m.

2. Critical Areas Preservation Code Update

At 5:26 p.m., Chair Doty called to order the second public hearing regarding Critical Areas
Preservation Code Update. Karla Kluge, Building and Land Use Services, presented a
summary of the proposed code revisions and briefly reviewed the topics discussed with the
Focus Group including volunteer enhancement provisions designed to support and promote
voluntary restoration efforts. She also indicated that in addition to the focus topics, the code
was reorganized and cleaned up to eliminate duplicity and further streamline the permit process.

Ms. Kluge also explained how collaborative efforts were used in developing this Code. She had
notified a large list of agencies, groups, environmental experts, and neighborhood groups of the
public hearing and solicited their comments on this issue.

Chair Doty called for oral testimony. The following comments were received:

(1) Jim Bedoun, Puget Creek Restoration Society (PCRS) — Mr. Bedoun provided
suggestions from PCRS for addition to the Code. PCRS took exception to the fees in lieu
process. PCRS would also like to be given a large share in commenting and having input
on projects that may have an impact of habitat. Mr. Bedoun would like to see extensive re-
write of sections of the Code.

(2) Joe Brady, Metro Parks Natural Resource Management — Mr. Brady commended staff for
their efforts in developing code to support volunteer and restoration and enhancement
efforts that will also support the Parks’ goals. He would like the Code to be simplified in
order to work for the many volunteers that help maintain the large areas of property that the
Parks owns. He suggested that City staff work toward developing the “programmatic
section” of Code so that it would be an easier tool for his volunteers to work with.

(3) Cory Kramer, Cascade Land Conservancy — Mr. Kramer thanked staff for their efforts in
developing restoration and enhancement supportive code for volunteers. He also had some
questions regarding the “programmatic permits” of the Code and asked that there be more
clarification of this section.

Commissioners asked that the last two speakers request in writing their concerns about the
“programmatic section” for review and comments and Ms. Kluge will get back to them with

Planning Commission Minutes — Regular Meeting and Public Hearings, September 21, 2011 Page 4



comments. With no further speakers coming forward to testify, the public hearing was closed at
5:45 p.m.

COMMUNICATION ITEMS

Chair Doty acknowledged receipt of the following announcements:

1. Announcement — Joint City Council and Planning Commission Study Session
concerning the Planning Commission’s Recommendation on Shoreline Master Program
Update, Tuesday, September 27, 2011, 12.00 noon, in Room 16, Tacoma Municipal
Building North.

2. Announcement — The City of Tacoma’s Mobility Master Plan (adopted in 2010) won a
2011 VISION 2040 Award from the Puget Sound Regional Council for its innovative
projects, programs and strategies for pedestrian and bicycle improvements that will help
achieve the goals of sustainable transportation and active living.

COMMENTS BY LONG-RANGE PLANNING DIVISION

Ms. Stenger noted that a few of the Planning Commissioners have expressed interest in
attending the joint study session with the City Council on September 27 concerning the
Shoreline Master Program Update and she encouraged other members of the Commission to
attend if at all possible.

Ms. Stenger announced that the Fuzhou Ting (pavilion) Dedication Ceremony and Grand

Opening is scheduled for September 22, 2011 at 2:00 at the Chinese Reconciliation Park and
she encouraged the Commissioners to attend.

COMMENTS BY PLANNING COMMISSION

Commissioner Nutsch shared his experience on recent visit that he took to Europe and
observed that the buildings there are constructed without setbacks and adjacent to each other.
Chair Doty responded with the comments that any concerns for the difference that were noted
actually fall under auspices of Building Code regulations and economics.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 5:55 p.m.

Planning Commission Minutes — Regular Meeting and Public Hearings, September 21, 2011 Page 5






- Agenda Item
i&&l“ GB-1

wssetill City of Tacoma
w Community and Economic Development Department

TO: Planning Commission
FROM: Donna Stenger, Manager, Long-Range Planning Division
SUBJECT: Large Scale Retail Moratorium

DATE: October 12, 2011

On August 30, 2011, the City Council passed an emergency moratorium on the permitting of
large scale retail uses (Ordinance No. 28014) and referred the matter to the Planning
Commission to conduct a public hearing and develop findings and a recommendation on the
moratorium by October 19. The Commission conducted its public hearing on October 5 and
received substantial testimony in favor of maintaining the moratorium and extending its duration.

At the meeting on October 19 the Commission will review the drafts provided by staff, modify as
appropriate, and then adopt their findings and recommendation regarding the large scale retalil
moratorium. Attached are four documents for your information and your discussion at the
meeting:

Written public testimony submitted prior to the comment deadline
Draft Recommendation Letter to the City Council

Draft Findings and Recommendation Report

Draft 12-Month Work Plan

PwpnPE

In addition, as requested at the last meeting, staff is providing a copy of the current Planning
Commission Work Program. This document is largely as it was previously presented to the
Commission except that the two new moratoria have been added to the program. This
information is being provided in response to concerns about the capacity of staff and
Commission to add new planning activities caused by the Council’s adoption of two moratoria.
The moratoria planning activities will take precedence over other work activities causing delays
or reduction of effort to these activities. Staff will discuss the anticipated impacts and proposed
adjustments to the work program to enable the Council mandated priorities to move forward.

If you have any questions or requests, please contact Brian Boudet at (253) 573-2389 or by
e-mail at bboudet@cityoftacoma.org.

Attachments (5)

c: Peter Huffman, Assistant Director

747 Market Street, Room 1036 | Tacoma, Washington 98402 | (253) 591-5577
http://www.cityoftacoma.org


mailto:bboudet@cityoftacoma.org




North End Neighborhood Council
Tacoma, WA

September 20, 2011
Re: Support of “Big Box” Moratorium and Ban in Tacoma
Tacoma Planning Commission, Mayor Strickland and Tacoma City Council Members

The North End Neighborhood Council (NENC) supports the current moratorium and a
strong ordinance in Tacoma banning Big Box stores over 65,000 sq. ft.

The NENC has consistently advocated the construction of a walkable “pedestrian
friendly” environment and against massive 1960 era surface level parking lots and
sprawl. On July 7, 2007, the NENC wrote a detailed recommendation for Tacoma's
Mixed Use Centers which was submitted to the Planning Commission and the Tacoma
City Council emphasizing these values.

The construction of massive one-story, car-centric Big Box stores set back from the
street and with multi-acre parking lots are the antithesis of good urban design. Hence,
many cities have rightfully banned such projects. The more appropriate development
for this site would be a mixed use center with commercial and residential elements.

In addition, such a massive store on Union Avenue would likely have a very negative
traffic impact.

Reey

E jorngon

Chair, North End Neighborhood Council



From: Jessica Brewer [mailto:jessbru27@hotmail.com]

Sent: Monday, September 26, 2011 7:22 PM

To: lauren.walker@cityoftacoma.org; ryan.petty@cityoftacoma.org; Ishadduc@cityoftacoma.org;
notacomawalmart@yahoo.com

Subject: no Walmart in Tacoma

To Whom it May Concern,

I would like to voice my opinion and concern for the Walmart building proposal at the Union Ave Tacoma
Elks site. A Walmart at this site would result in too much traffic in that area and it would provide unfair
competition for local businesses. Walmart's backdoor tactics for sneaking a building into our community
sets a bad example. If Walmart wants to open a store (which is a different project than original proposal
for a medical center) then there needs to be a new study into the enviornmental and community impact
of this development.

Thank you for your time,

Jessica Brewer



October 1, 2011

TO: Planning Commission
747 Market Street - Room 1036
Tacoma, WA 98402

Re:  Ordinance No. 28014 - Moratorium on Large Scale Retail

NO MORATORIUM
DON’T BE A GHOST TOWN SUPPORTER!

Large Scale Retail = JOBS! JOBS! JOBS!

atricia S. Lowry, a senio{ciéor future Tacoma growth
3712 Tacoma Av S. Tacoma, WA 98418
Mailing: P.O. Box 8747 Tacoma, WA 98419
(253) 475-4491



From: sem3@u.washington.edu [mailto:sem3@u.washington.edu]
Sent: Saturday, October 01, 2011 9:23 AM

To: Planning

Subject: Large Scale Moratorium

Tacoma has not yet reduced our negative air quality rating. Large scale retail venues located adjacent to
a freeway system with mimimal public transportation will further contribute to an increase in the release
of carbon monoxide. Another disadvantage is the ability to recycle large shells once the original occupant
closes. Typically, these sites become isolated high-crime areas. Most importantly, uni-purpose shell
structures do not contribute to Tacoma's vision of mixed-use development.

Susanne E. Marten



From: Bree Lafreniere [mailto:bree5225@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, October 03, 2011 8:03 AM

To: Planning

Subject: Comment for Public Hearing

Dear Leaders,

I would like to express my concern about a six month moratorium regarding large scale retail
establishments. Although I am all for thoughtful development, we are in an emergency situation
and | don't support taking six months to develop findings. We are badly in need of economic
development and jobs. Unemployment is the root cause of multiple devastating problems for
individuals, families and the society which take years to solve. | understand the jobs created may
be low paying but they could be, for example, the difference for a college student struggling to
go to college. Please, don't be disconnected from the reality of people's lives. Your job is to lead
us to a better life.

Bree Lafreniere



Bricklin & Seattle Office: Spokane Office: Contact:

; 1001 Fourth Avenue 35 West Main Phone: 206-264-8600

Newman Suite 3303 Suite 300 Toll Free: 877-264-7220
] Seattle, WA 98154 Spokane, WA 99201 Fax: 206-264-9300

I.I.P www.bnd-law.com

Reply to: Seattle Office

October 5, 2011

Planning Commission
City of Tacoma

747 Market Street
Tacoma, WA 98402

Re:  Large-Scale Retail Moratorium
Dear Planning Commissioners:

I write on behalf of UFCW 367 whose members have a profound interest in assuring
development in the City adheres to central tenets of the Comprehensive Plan. Unions members
live, work, shop, and recreate in the City. They care about the City and care about how it
develops.

In particular, the Union supports the Comprehensive Plan’s focus on mixed-use centers which
are to include a “dense, well-integrated variety of development types, combined in such a way
that it is pedestrian-oriented and transit supportive.” Properly developed, mixed-use centers can
provide great opportunities for affordable residential living within walking distance of places to
shop, eat, and play.

Unfortunately, the existing regulations for mixed-use centers do not assure that development will
be consistent with this Comprehensive Plan vision. As currently written, the City development
regulations allow suburban-style shopping centers and “big box” retail establishments to be
newly created in mixed-use centers. These Code provisions are inconsistent with the goals and
policies of the Comprehensive Plan which repeatedly stress the importance of developing mixed-
use commercial areas in a pedestrian-oriented manner. See, e.g., LU-UAD-11. The Plan calls
for streetscape design which “promote[s] pedestrian-activity” and which will “reinforce/enhance
the character of individual neighborhoods within the City.” LU-UAD-10. Mixed-use centers are
supposed to be places that are “distinctive, attractive, and rich in amenities.” Comprehensive
Plan at LU-20. They are to include an “increased mix of uses,” “higher density housing,” and
“community gathering space.” Id. “Buildings should be sited and designed to encourage
walking.” LU-21. Different land uses (e.g., commercial and residential) are to be integrated
“within the same building or site in order to maximize efficient land use, foster a variety of
developments, and support multi-modal mobility.” LU-MU-3. The Comprehensive Plan
recognizes that “[1]arge parking areas disrupt the continuity of the streetscape and development
pattern, and provide formidable barriers to pedestrian movement.” LU-23.



Planning Commission
October 5, 2011
Page 2

These laudatory Comprehensive Plan policies are, unfortunately, not carried through into the
existing development regulations. For instance, one of the mixed-use center districts is the CCX,
the Community Commercial Mixed-Use District. The Zoning Code currently allows shopping
centers to be developed within these mixed-use districts. A suburban style shopping center is
anything but “mixed use.” It does not contain a mix of residential and commercial uses. It does
not promote pedestrian activity.

In like manner, the regulations impose no size limits on retail establishments in the mixed-use
zone and, in fact, do not even require that developments contain a mix of uses (contrary to the
express guidance in the Comprehensive Plan). The only exception is that the Zoning Code
establishes a 7,000 square foot maximum for retail in the HMX District. Inexplicably, none of
the other mixed use districts contain any limitation on the size of retail nor do they include other
measures to assure a mix of uses that accomplish the above-referenced policies and goals of the
Comprehensive Plan. For instance, Tacoma Municipal Code (TMC) 13.06.300.E establishes no
maximum floor area for buildings in most of mixed-use districts and does not restrict the size o '
potentially massive parking lots. Nor does that section require that projects in the mixed-use
districts include any residential use.

The discrepancy between the goals of the Comprehensive Plan and the regulations in the Zoning
Code are dramatic and threaten severe harm to the City’s development and planning efforts. As
currently written, the development code allows suburban style shopping centers and big box
retail to invest tremendous sums in new buildings that will move the City away from its
pedestrian-oriented, mixed use goals, instead of towards them.

The City Council correctly determined that action was needed to correct the inconsistencies
between the Comprehensive Plan and the development regulations. The City Council also
correctly perceived that it was important to put a moratorium into place while the staff and the
Planning Commission worked on the issue. As you know, without a moratorium, property
owners can vest development rights under the existing Zoning Code. That means that property
owners could secure the right to develop suburban style shopping centers and big box retail at the
very time that the City was working to re-write its regulations to address that issue in the context
of the Comprehensive Plan’s call for mixed-use, pedestrian-oriented development in these zones.
Staff has advised that there are at least two property owners who were, in fact, indicating an
interest in submitting applications for just that kind of development. The City’s efforts to
reexamine and, potentially, revise its development regulations to address developments of that
sort would have been undermined if a moratorium had not been adopted. The City Council was
clearly well justified in adopting a moratorium to preserve its options and protect the integrity of
its Comprehensive Plan and its forthcoming planning efforts.

In an effort to have this letter submitted to you for your hearing on October 5, 2011, I will not go
into greater detail at this time regarding the justifications for the moratorium. I will attempt to
provide you with additional information of that type before the close of the period for submitting
written comments this Friday.



Planning Commission
October 5, 2011
Page 3

You have been asked to address not only the need for the moratorium, but also its length. As
staff has advised, a moratorium can be imposed for up to six months and, if a work plan is
adopted, for up to 12 months. Staff has drafted a work plan which suggests that the work
necessary to review the Zoning Code can be completed in six months. While we appreciate the
staff’s efforts to avoid a moratorium any longer than necessary, it seems unrealistic that six
months would be sufficient time.

Under the proposed schedule, a draft of new language would be submitted to you by November
2, 2011. Given the breadth of changes that we believe are necessary in the Zoning Code, it
seems entirely unrealistic that staff could provide you with draft code language by that date.
Certainly, if all that is contemplated is imposing a size limit on large retail in the mixed-use
zones, code language to that effect can be drafted in short order. But we do not believe the issue
is that simple, for two reasons.

First, even if code language creating a size limit can be drafted quickly, it will take longer than
that to develop an understanding of the issues that inform the decision as to where draw that size
limit line. Staff has provided you with a few articles of considerable length that address a
number of matters related to this issue. For the Planning Commission to make a fully informed
decision as to an appropriate size limit, we believe a considerable amount of time should be
devoted by staff and the Planning Commission to review that literature and other studies and
develop an informed judgment as to an appropriate size limit.

Second, the problems with the existing code run deeper than the absence of a size limit on retail.
As noted above, the Comprehensive Plan calls for a mix of uses in this zone and a focus on
pedestrian-oriented activities and streetscapes. We believe a number of code revisions will be
necessary to accomplish this Comprehensive Plan vision. Simply imposing a size limit on retail
will not be enough. Development of these other code provisions will undoubtedly take much
longer than a month or two. There is no way preliminary draft language could be ready by
November 2, 2011. It seems unlikely that it could even be ready by the end of the year.

For these reasons, we suggest that you ask staff to revisit the schedule and develop one that is
more realistic given the concerns listed above. We suspect a full year will be required.

Thank you for your consideration of these matters. I wish you good luck with your work on this
very important issue.

Very truly yours,

BRICKLIN & NEWMAN, LLP

David A. Bricklin
DAB:psc



.Plzmm'ng Commission
October 5, 2011
Page 4

cc: Client

UFCW367/Tacoma Planning Commission — 10 05 11



From: M O [mailto:ostermy@hotmail.com]

Sent: Wednesday, October 05, 2011 10:34 AM

To: Planning

Subject: Public Comment: Large Scale Retail Moratorium

Dear Planning Commission:

I am writing in support of the Large Scale Retail Moratorium. | was disappointed to hear of the plans to
build a large retail complex at the site of the Elks Lodge. Traffic is already a nightmare in that area due
to all the cars going to the Target complex or trying to get to the highway interchange at Union. 1 also
don't believe that giant retail stores are good for Tacoma's future. Tacoma already has a myriad of large
retail stores to serve its residents. Further addition of large retail stores will just take business away from
existing stores, causing a blight of empty big boxes. We have seen this blight especially in the Tacoma
Mall area when national retail chains have gone bankrupt. 1 am also concerned that further addition of
large retail chains will also pull business away from locally owned small businesses. Large retail stores
also provide only low-wage work that often don't provide benefits. Large retail chains also usually only
carry cheaply made imported products that further erode our nation's economy.

I would support long-term development of mixed-use medical, educational, hospitality, business
professional, or small business retail facilities in that location.

I would also support extending the Large Scale Retail Moratorium for 4 years in order to support
Tacoma's current businesses and encourage sustainable planning and growth.

Thank you for your time and consideration.
Sincerely,

Michele Drochak
NorthEnd Neighborhood Resident



SN

Tacoma Large Scale Retail Moratorium
COMMENT SHEET

Name: SM&W l@f"'
Affiliation: Viited £ Ferce 8 Soshce

Address: - gDo) M ?ﬁ)&g‘&f— 5‘!"‘

Tocona.  gg40 ¢,
E-mail/Phone: OTRLSTM [ Q/VM-LQ Com
Date: J 0/ §/ A

Subject: NMW] 4A

Comments: WM + DM { M@M ,
No mow QDM’H ,UZM .,/1 \obs | whewg 4he
M\M}QMVM hane 0“1(55 3{} PﬁHﬁ hoadtr_

(Over)



@

@ Large Scale Retail Moratorium
COMMENT SHEET

Name: Lf “ q{f} QAY_ e
Affiliation: Ql tioe In_ m‘F PIE((E’ C ot m"h 1/
Address: L0 My o) [_CE Tﬁ:_q__ S

Tac  I¥y4sy
E-mail/Phone:
Date: |0{C)_l |

t

Subject: mya fov U~ Lq; —gu(a (Q:Q,J(-q}/
\ J

Comments:

3l etzd, o, Qiidw T _
C Pozf’HmJ\ Sl /\muﬁi A

\QO\M\Q(‘&* fi"\ TU\I“MM& _9( [’UM{LO[LQ?@
\T C;FPJr 1L0w b teat-¢ O\VJ

@E ood fe/\ \9\)\(\;(‘* (‘gmH_ bﬁ!\e@’f’
LGF_{A_{S O\h(i Kﬂ\/\i({'\ Skal Eu&r“&%

G QM@@:&L{
@*\ﬁ &P Y(

(@Kd o (T‘da : Oire eSS Fﬁ\ﬁf/
QF 3 ' _[@4&@5:.1.&1_&[@6_

B v ~ —
)&( { St vn‘,CL( S"‘O(f’_

(Over)




From: Susan Cruise [mailto:susanmcruise@gmail.com]

Sent: Thursday, October 06, 2011 11:57 PM

To: Planning

Cc: Tricia DeOme

Subject: Ordinance 28014 Moratorium Retail Establishments in Excess of 65,000 Square Feet

Dear Commissioners and Staff,

I understand that an application was filed seeking permission for Walmart to build a 150,000 sq. foot
super store in the vicinity of S. 23rd St. and S. Union Ave. on the property occupied by the Elks Club. I
will explain my support for Ordinance No. 28014 in relation to the application to build a Walmart super
store at this location in Tacoma. | support Ordinance No. 28014 adopting an immediate six month
moratorium relating to land use and zoning and establishing a moratorium on the acceptance of
applications for new building and related permits for the establishment, location and permitting of retail
establishments that exceed 65,000 sqg. feet for the following reasons:

1. A 150,000 square foot superstore such as Walmart will have damaging economic, environmental and
social impacts on Tacoma.

2. Itis inappropriate to have such a large store across the street from residential apartments such as the
Villas at Union Park on S. Union Ave. due to the traffic congestion it will bring diminishing the quality of
life of those apartment residents.

3. Because the neighborhoods to the immediate west of the proposed store, as well as to the north and
east are primarily residential, the proposed location will clog the main arterials of these neighborhoods
such as S 19th St. S. 12th St. 6th Ave., S. Union St. and Proctor St. increasing traffic congestion and the
potential for accidents. It has been come increasingly hard for me to make a left turn from 6th Ave. at
Proctor on to N. Proctor because of the increased traffic on 6th Ave. and this would worsen with the
traffic driven to 6th Ave. by congestion on S. Union.

4. 1 do not think that the citizens and residents of Tacoma should have their quality of life damaged, and
compromised and subjected to daily traffic delays and increased congestion due to a store that is known
for not being a good corporate steward.

5. Because Walmart's business plan includes a very low wage low benefit model of employment, Walmart
burdens tax payer funded services such as medicaid. | understand that in Georgia a 2002 survey found
that Walmart was the largest private employer of parents whose children were enrolled in the state
subsidized medical program.

6. Therefore, although people pay lower prices for products at Walmart there are hidden costs that
people pay, such as in funding medicaid.

7. In addition, during a recession when people are spending less money generally the City of Tacoma
should not welcome a store that has been sued on several occasions for predatory pricing, meaning
pricing that is so low that it intends to or has the consequence of putting competitors out of business.
The City of Tacoma should show more support for its local businesses who can be harmed by predatory
pricing practices. Since profit margins are probably much smaller for local businesses due to the recession
a store like Walmart with its aggressive business plan can put local businesses that have contributed and
enhanced Tacoma out of business.

8. Since there are already a number of large stores in the same area - such as Target, Top Food and
Office Depot - and in view of the numbers of residential homes in the immediate vicinity west of the
proposed location and starting a few blocks north and east the time has come for the City of Tacoma to
reevaluate its zoning code, study these problems and change the code to not permit such a large retail
establishment at S 23rd and S Union.

Thank you for your consideration of my comments.
Susan Cruise

615 S. Madison St.
Tacoma, WA 98405



From: marshalm@g.com

Sent: Thursday, October 06, 2011 9:01 AM

To: lwung@cityoftacoma.org

Subject: Support for the moratorium on "big box" stores

Dear Sirs,

| unreservedly support and urge this Planning Commission and City Council to support the moratorium on
the building of large "big box" stores in Tacoma until such time as appropriate regulations for their
establishment can be created. These are large stores and their massive above ground parking lots must
be appropriately zoned and regulated.

Marshall McClintock
701 North J Street
Tacoma, WA 98403



From: Mitch Robinson [mailto:boonrob@msn.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 06, 2011 9:49 AM

To: lwung@cityoftacoma.org

Cc: Marty Campbell

Subject: Big Box Moritorium Comments

As a resident of the city of Tacoma, | ask that the council carefully weigh the pros and cons of a "big box
moratorium."

My overall concern is that we are in economic times where the city needs all the potential revenue
through sales tax it can get. As just one example that is of concern to many residents, we have
something like 100 years of deferred maintenance on our roads. The sales tax revenue derived from new
large businesses could go a long way towards paying for long-needed public works improvements.

My other concern is we can't really guess what a "good" or "bad" future big box store might look like--but
to put a ban in place might discourage a national retailer from even considering Tacoma. A few
possibilities:

e Apple comes up with a new business model and starts stores similar to Best Buy versus their
current smaller mall locations. Would we be left out?

e Large local employers like Fred Meyer or Best Buy want to add an additional Tacoma location.

e A well thought of brand like Amazon or Microsoft goes into the large retail space--would they not
even consider Tacoma?

e Alocal merchant find enormous success in Tacoma and wants to build a large box-type space.
How sad if they started that business in Tacoma but would not be able to carry there business
vision through in the town they started in.

I know city residents have concerns about wages paid by these large retailers along with traffic patterns,
congestion, etc. These same local residents also expect basic city services that are paid through sales
tax. Let's make sure our citizens understand that for every business we turn away--it could potentially
lead to a reduction in city services.

-Mitch Robinson
Tacoma, WA



(AP0
c‘; To: City of Tacoma- Planning Commission

CENTRAL From: Central Neighborhood Council
COUNCIL Date: October 7, 2011

THE HEART OF TACOMA - IRTT o] [Tl Planning Commission Public Comment — Ordinance No 28014

Dear Planning Commission Members:

Ordinance No. 28014 was adopted on August 30, 2011 which put in place an emergency
moratorium on the permitting of large scale retail establishments with a floor area greater than
65,000 square feet. The moratorium applies City-wide and was enacted for a duration of six
months (until February 28, 2012). As stated in the ordinance, the purpose of the moratorium is
to allow the City time to evaluate the impacts of these kinds of land uses and to consider
potential changes to applicable regulations and requirements.

The Central Neighborhood Council (CNC) agrees the emergency moratorium is necessary and
the moratorium should be in place at least six months or until the City evaluates the impacts of
big box stores and revises the maximum floor size and parking requirements in Commercial
Community Mixed-Use District (CCX) zoned areas. Our reasoning is discussed below.

Why is the moratorium necessary?

“Big Box” stores with floor area greater than 65,000 square feet are currently allowed in C2-
General Community Commercial, CCX — Community Commercial Mixed Use, UCX — Urban
Center Mixed Use, CIX — Commercial-Industrial Mixed Use, M1 — Light Industrial, and M2 -
Heavy Industrial Districts. It is our understanding the areas were zoned CCX during the
formation of Mixed-Use District and specific building design and parking requirements were not
thoroughly evaluated. There are seven CCX areas distributed throughout the city. The
moratorium is necessary to allow time to evaluate building requirements in CCX areas before
parcels within the CCX areas are developed or redeveloped with suburban style big box stores.

Why should CCX allowed uses be reevaluated?

The Tacoma Municipal Code (TMC 13.06.300) states one of the purposes of the Mixed-Use
Districts is to “increase the variety of development opportunities in Tacoma by encouraging
greater integration of land uses within specific districts in a manner consistent with the Growth
Management Act, the Regional Plan: Vision 2020, the County-Wide Planning Policies for Pierce
County, and the City’s Comprehensive Plan.” CCX areas are to “provide for commercial and
retail businesses intended to serve many nearby neighborhoods and draw people from throughout
the City. These areas are envisioned as evolving from traditional suburban development to
higher density urban districts. Walking and transit use are facilitated through designs which
decrease walking distances and increase pedestrian safety. Uses include shopping centers with a
wide variety of commercial establishments; commercial recreation; gas stations; and business,
personal, and financial services. Residential uses are encouraged in CCX Districts as integrated
development components.”




Planning Commission Public Comment — Ordinance No 28014 — October 7, 2011

There currently is no designated maximum floor area per story for a single business or a
minimum floor-area ratio (total building area divided by site size) within CCX areas based on the
City of Tacoma code. Therefore, a 150,000 square foot building serving one use with an
expansive surface parking lot and little to no interface with transit options is allowed by the City
code. This is the exact opposite of what the City of Tacoma’s Comprehensive Plan describes as
an urban style, pedestrian and transit friendly development that provides an environment for
building synergies between local businesses, entrepreneurial opportunities, workforce housing,
and living wage employment in designated Mixed-Use District.

The CNC recommends the Planning Commission retain the moratorium to allow for a thoughtful
evaluation of impacts of large scale retail operations on:

e existing land use plans;

= implementation of zoning and design regulations appropriate to recently-adopted
updates of Mixed-Use Districts;

e traffic congestion and patterns;

e pedestrian and bicycle travel; and

e investment in and support for locally-sustainable economic development.

Further, the CNC recommends the Planning Commission consider appropriate regulations for
large scale retail land uses, to include prohibition in Mixed-Use Districts, or at least restriction
of the suburban characteristics. Additional regulations may include:
¢ limitation on floor area per story per single use;
limitation on vehicular access and parking (including deliveries);
pedestrian and bicycle access and amenities;
outdoor storage;
landscaping; and
location and size of signage.

The Comprehensive Plan sets policy to build up not out, especially in Mixed-Use Districts.
However the City of Tacoma code is not strict enough to implement that policy. The purpose of
the moratorium is to provide time to evaluate the code so development is in line with policy
before it is too late.

Tricia S. DeOme Justin D. Leighton
Chair Corresponding Secretary
Central Neighborhood Council Central Neighborhood Council

cnc-tacoma



P 0 W R 0 U 6 H

eSS cONNEeCTIONS

RECEIVED

\ TACOMA-PIERCE COUNTY CHAMBER
NS

October 7, 2011

Per_______

Jeremy C. Doty

City of Tacoma Planning Commissioner
District 5

747 Market St

Tacoma, WA 98402

Chairman Doty:

The Chamber of Commerce is writing to you in opposition to the large scale retail moratorium currently
being evaluated by the Planning Commission. While the Planning Commission heard testimony at the
public hearing addressing one potential site with one potential project, it is important to remember that the
question posed to you by the Council (and state and local law) is not about a project. Rather you have
been asked:

1) Does the municipal code and review process fail to address issues
associated with large scale retail uses over 65,000 square feet in size,
and,

2) If it does fail to, how much time is needed to make corrections to
address these gaps?

The Chamber believes the municipal code, the State Environmental Policy Act and the associated
processes with these regulations allow the City and the public ample opportunity to address potential
impacts associated with large scale retail uses. Therefore, the moratorium is not warranted and should be
ended immediately. Furthermore, if additional municipal code changes are warranted there is a clear
process in place to make these changes absent a moratorium.

Existing Regulations

The municipal code has extensive regulations governing the types, sizes, locations, and build out of an
array of uses. Currently the regulations governing land use regulations are over 400 pages long — not
including regulations associated with administration, buildings, streets, traffic or other public works rules.

In addition to the City’s regulations, Washington State has its own sets of regulations governing the
development of properties. While these are wide in scope, the most significant of these is tied to the State
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA). As the Planning Commission is undoubtedly aware, SEPA is
designed to identify potential adverse impacts and provide mitigation of these impacts.

Finally, SEPA allows that if the City “determines that a proposal may have a probable significant adverse
environment impact” (WAC 197-11-360) it may require the more substantial environmental review
associated with an Environmental Impact Statement — which includes an analysis of alternative
development scenarios. This is true regardless of whether the impacts are associated with wetlands,
public safety or other quality of life issues.

950 Pacific Avenue + Suite 300 « PO Box 1933 + Tacoma, WA 98401 » P 253.627.2175  F  253.597.7305 « www.tacomachamber.org



Testimony to date in support of the moratorium has focused on the potential impacts associated with
traffic. SEPA is specifically designed to address these potential impacts with seven questions about
transportation, including “[What are the] proposed measures to reduce or control transportation impacts?”
(WAC 197-11-960) Through the SEPA process, the City may propose mitigating measures to address
these impacts.

Furthermore, the Planning Commission and City Council are constantly reviewing and updating the code
through existing processes. Some examples:
e The municipal code was just amended on June 14, 2011 with the completion of the annual
amendments to the comprehensive plan.
® A couple of years earlier the Planning Commission recommended a significant package of
amendments to Council addressing development in our most significant retail centers, our mixed
use centers. These amendments were adopted by Council July 28, 2009 — a process that began in
2006.
e The Planning Commission has just begun its review of the 2012 Comprehensive Plan
amendments. These will likely amend the municipal code around the middle of 2012.
® Additionally, studies are underway around the City looking at regulations and development in
areas like the South Downtown, the Dome District, the Foss Waterway, and the MLK Corridor.

These layers upon layers of regulations have existed for years with constant updating. The City has seen
successful developments and businesses operating that now contribute to the local economy. The idea
that yet another “emergency” moratorium is necessary to address an existing legal land use is
unimaginative at best.

Adverse Impacts

The purported purpose of the moratorium is to allow the City time to address potential adverse impacts
associated with development. While regulations are in place to address these impacts at both the local
and state level, there has been little discussion of the impacts associated with another emergency
moratorium.

As the first person testifying at the October 5® public hearing stated, “The only time I’ve gotten in trouble
is when I’ve gone into something too fast without thinking it through.” Unfortunately, her warning was
after the Council had already adopted this moratorium. Now is the opportunity to think the moratorium
through and consider the impacts of halting businesses that conform to all laws including the Growth
Management Act, the Comprehensive Plan and the Municipal Code.

A moratorium reduces the predictability of development which strongly impacts the economic growth of
the City. This reduced predictability:
® Reduces the ability for property owners to solicit Tacoma properties to interested developers,
retailers, and businesses meaning more empty lots and empty buildings.
Halts development plans of both new and existing developments.
Limits the potential of the City to act as the economic engine for the South Puget Sound meaning
less revenue for needed public services and less revenue for filling the projected budget shortfalls
of the next decade.
e Keeps people out of work in the construction sector, a sector seeing unemployment rates that are
still over 14%.
e Prohibits tenant improvements on large retail buildings throughout the City, potentially keeping
smaller retail and non-retail tenants from coming to the City.

950 Pacific Avenue * Suite 300 » PO Box 1933 + Tacoma, WA 98401 « P 253.627.2175 « F  253.597.7305 « www.tacomachamber.org



The City has failed to address these potential impacts. Unfortunately, there was no public discussion
before the implementation of this moratorium and there is no SEPA process available to ensure
appropriate mitigation. At this point in the economy’s recovery, the City of Tacoma cannot afford to
keep businesses away while the surrounding cities and counties are finding ways to attract them.

The Chamber encourages you to recognize the validity of existing regulations that past and current
Commissioners and Councilmember’s have worked hard to implement. The state mandated
comprehensive planning process is designed to allow for reasoned discernment of land use issues
revolving around the community’s vision and its implementation. The Planning Commission should
support this process and recommend that the Council reverse its shortsighted adoption of the large scale
retail morgtorium.

Tom Pierson
President & CEO

cc: Mayor Marilyn Strickland
City Council
City Staff
Chamber Board

950 Pacific Avenue < Suite 300 « POBox 1933 + Tacoma, WA 98401 « P 253.627.2175 » F 253.597.7305 - M.tacomachamber.org



o P

e

f#f@"%ﬁ Brick'i“ & - Seattle Office: Spokane Office: ' Contact:

- ~ 4001 Fourth Avenue 35 West Main Phone: 206-264-8600

Newma“ Suite 3303 _ Suite 300 Toll Free: 877-264-7220
- Seattle, WA.98154 . Spokane, WA 99201 Fax: 206-264-9300

I.I.P : : www.bnd-law.com

Reply to: Seattle Office

October 7, 2011

Planning Commission
City of Tacoma

747 Market Street
Tacoma, WA 98402

Re: Large-Scale Retail Moratorium — Ordinance 28014
Dear Planning Commission:

As noted in my letter of October 5, 2011, on behalf of UCFW 367, 1 submit these written
comments in regards to Ordinance No. 28014. As you know, this recently enacted Ordinance
puts in place a six-month moratorium on the filing, acceptance, and processing of applications
associated with large-scale retail establishments; meaning those establishments with a floor area
greater than 65,000 square feet. The City Council, as provided in TCC 13.02.055, has referred
the moratorium to you for the development of findings of fact and a recommendation addressing
both the need for and the duration of the moratorium.

»' The Need for Moratorium

The moratorium itself is a City Council initiated action. Currently, according to City Planning
Staff, within Tacoma there are approximately 17 large-scale retail establishments, including the
retail anchors at the Tacoma Mall. Proposals to expand or modify these existing proposals are
subject to current regulations which, as discussed below, do not effectively accomplish many of
the goals of the Comprehensive Plan.

Moreover, proposals for new large retail establishments continue to arise, even in these difficult
economic times. Two additional large-scale projects were proposed in August 2011 and
September 2011 alone. One of these additional proposals would be located within the Tacoma
Central Mixed Use Center and the other within a C-2 General Community Commercial zoning
district. These new proposals are seeking between 135,000 and 152,000 square feet of space.
These new proposals further demonstrate the need for the moratorium. Unless the existing
regulations are reviewed and necessary improvements made, these new proposals and others
following them will be judged by the lax regulations in effect today.



Planning Commission
October 7, 2011
Page 2

We refer to the current regulations as lax and ineffective because they allow large scale retail
developments which are inconsistent with the goals and policies of the City’s Comprehensive
Plan. As discussed in detail below, the city’s policies eschew suburban style, auto-dominated
malls and large retail establishments surrounded by a sea of parked cars. Instead, the
Comprehensive Plan calls for pedestrian-oriented developments, often in a mixed-use setting,
that makes Tacoma a “distinctive place” and which is compatible with surrounding
neighborhoods and Tacoma’s vision for growth and development. :

* Tacoma’s Vision for Growth and Development -

Tacoma’s Comprehensive Plan provides the primary framework for addressing land use issues in
the City. Thus, in considering the issues posed by large-scale retail establishments and the
moratorium, primary reference should be made to the Comprehensive Plan.

The Comprehensive Plan seeks to address managed, desirable growth and development so as to
both shape and reshape the City’s urban form. The Comprehensive Plan specially states that the
policies in the Plan serve as:'

[A] means of managing growth in a way that is physically, socially and
environmentally acceptable, while at the same time providing for the
preservation, redevelopment, and improvement of the City’s establish residential
neighborhoods. '

The General Growth and Development goal is:?

To achieve orderly, timely, and desirable planned growth and development that
enhances the quality of life for the citizens of Tacoma.

These visionary statements are supported by Policy LU-GGD-3 which states:

Growth and development throughout the urban area should be regulated,
stimulated, and otherwise guided toward the development of compact
concentrated areas to discourage sprawl, facilitate economical and efficient
provision of utilities, public facilities and services, and expand transportation
options to the public. (Emphasis added.)
The Intent section of the Comprehensives Plan’s Urban Aesthetics and Design section builds on
these statements by expressly setting forth Tacoma’s visionary aspirations: ’

Comprehensive Plan, Growth Strategy and Development Concept Element at GD-2, § I (emphasis added).

~

Comprehensive Plan, Generalized Land Use Element, at LU-6, §Section 1.

Comprehensive Plan, Generalized Land Use Element, at LU-12.



Planning Commission
October 7, 2011
Page 3

Positive urban design and architecture can enhance Tacoma’s livability, the health
of its residents, the natural and built environment, and encourage a sustainable
and economically vibrant city ... Tacoma aspires to be:

o Pedestrian-oriented ...

. A desirable and inviting place to live, work and play ...
o A safe place to live, work and play ...

® A distinctive place ...

These aspirations are reiterated in Policy LU-UAD-3, which seeks to enhance the distinct
character and identity of Tacoma by:

* Emphasizing pedestrian-oriented design ...

* Recognizing and retaining existing scale, proportion and rhythm ...

* Embracing the natural setting and encouraging regional character ...

* Balancing the historic, work-class character and its physical development with the
community’s desire to be progressive, innovative ...

As noted in my comment letter of October 5, 2011, several other policies within the Urban
Aesthetics and Design section of the Land Use Element speak to these same features: LU-UAD-
10 (streetscapes designed to promote pedestrian-activity and enhance the character of
neighborhoods) and LU-UAD-11 (mixed-used commercial areas in a pedestrian-oriented
manner).

As noted in the Growth Strategy and Development Concept Element, future growth in Tacoma is
to be directed towards compact mixed-use centers.* One of the recently announced large-scale
retail proposals is in an area designated as “Mixed-Use Centers” in the Comprehensive Plan.
The vision for Mixed-Use Centers is a dense, well-integrated variety of development types that is
pedestrian-oriented and supports transit. > Mixed-Use Centers have several objectives or key
principles, including:®

Create walkable and transit-supportive neighborhoods;

Build on and enhance existing assets and neighborhood character and identity;
Reduce dependence on cars and enhance transportation connectively;

Support neighborhood business development;

Provide community gathering space and public spaces;

Increase mix of uses (residences, shopping, jobs, and services).

4 Comprehensive Plan, Growth Strategy and Development Concept Element, at GD-2, § 1L

3 Comprehensive Plan, Growth Strategy and Development Concept Element, at GD-5, § III and at 6-9, § VL

6 Comprehensive Plan, Growth Strategy and Development Concept Element, at GD-9.to GD-10; Generalized

Land Use Element, at LU-20 to LU-21, § IL



Planning Commission
October 7, 2011
Page 4

The Comprehensive Plan sets forth a variety of policies to facilitate these goals. Policies address
pedestrian orientation, integration of a variety of uses, compact development, reduction in
vehicle dependency, and impediments created by large parking areas.” More specifically,
policies address ensuring compatibility of design for mixed-use centers and the need to establish
design guidelines.®  With all of the policies related to mixed-use centers, the desire for a
pedestrian-friendly design is replete and detailed.’

In regards to commercial development, the Comprehensive Plan recognizes the pressure for
retail and service uses to support a growing population. But, the Comprehensive Plan anticipates
demand can be accommodated through redevelopment and intensification within established
commercial areas, many of which have been designated as mixed-use centers. And, consistent
with the Comprehensive Plan’s overarching policies, commercial development is to be designed
in a pedestrian-friendly manner and compatible with the character of the area.!®

Thus, it is abundantly clear the vision for future growth and development the City of Tacoma has
adopted for itself — compact urban development with an emphasis on a pedestrian-
oriented/friendly design compatible with the surrounding area. The Comprehensive Plan
recognizes that its aspirational vision and policies are not self-implementing. Instead,
regulations must be adopted to turn this vision into a reality. Thus, LU-UAD-5 seeks the
creation of:!! '

...[C]lear and detailed standards that are crafted to encourage desired types of
developments.

This is the very thing that is missing when it comes to Large-Scale Retail Establishments. The
very reason a moratorium is necessary is to allow for the development of these regulatory
standards so as to ensure the proper design and placement of these large-impact uses.

It must be noted that the term “large-scale retail establishment” is not defined in Tacoma’s Land
Use Regulatory Code, Title 13. While retail use is a permitted use within a multitude of zoning

7 See Comprehensive Plan, Generalized Land Use Element at LU-21 to LU-24.

s See Comprehensive Plan, Generalized Land Use Element at LU-26 to LU-33.
? Comprehensive Plan, General Land Use Element, Policy LU-MU]1 (Pedestrian and Bicycle support); LU-
MCD-6 (Compactness, support more walking, bicycling, and transit use); LU-MUCD-7 (Circulation, convenient
and attractive pedestrian and bicycle linkages); LU-MUCD-13 (Restrict Auto-Oriented Uses, negatively impacts
walkability and pedestrian orientation); LU-MUP-4 (encourage pedestrian connections through parking lot in
Community Center and Regional Growth Center); LU-MUD-3 and LU-MUD-4 (Pedestrian streets and uses); LU-
MUD-6 (Design guidelines including those addressing pedestrian-friendly areas); LU-MUD-11 (Pedestrian-Friendly
Design).

10 See Comprehensive Plan, Generalized Land Use Element at LU-56, Policies LU-CDD-1, LU-CDD-2, and
LU-CDD-3.

1 See also LU-MUD-6 and LU-CDD-1 (design and/or development standards/guidelines); LU-MUCC-3
(site plan review). .



Planning Commission
October 7, 2011
Page 5

districts, the regulations prescribe a square footage limitation in only a few of those districts.
Despite the Comprehensive Plan’s intent to focus growth into Mixed-Use Centers, with few
exceptions, the zoning districts intended to implement the City’s Mixed-Use Centers permit
retail use with no size limitation.'> For instance, the C-2 General Community Commercial Zone
permits retail uses outright and sets no maximum floor area, > Similarly the M-1 Light Industrial
- and M-2 Heavy Industrial Zones permit retail uses outright, but provide no restrictions as to
maximum floor area.!* ¥°

The square footage of the establishments relates directly to its impact on Tacoma’s urban
community. The design of large-scale retail establishments, through both the structure and the
associated parking, are allowed to sprawl over the landscape. This sprawling, auto-dominated
(and often linear) development pattern makes inefficient use of land and does not adequately
support alternatives to automobile transportation; rather it creates a single-use, auto-centric
development. This style of development is in Juxtaposition to the City’s Comprehensive Plan
which seeks an evolution from expansive suburban large-scale retail to a compact, more
pedestrian friendly, mixed-use urban center concept.

The code’s effort to require a pedestrian-oriented streetscape is also deficient. The code starts
out on the right track, requiring that retail buildings larger than 30,000 square feet have no more
than a five foot setback from the public right-of-way along 75% of their front and side facades.
TCC 13.06.300.F. But, inexplicably, this requirement only applies to buildings “located in close
proximity to the street.” The intent of this regulation (and the Comprehensive Plan) is easily
avoided by simply locating the building far from the street with, for instance, a large parking lot
between the street and the store. That is, the code does not preclude the very kind of auto-
dominated, suburban mall design that the Comprehensive Plan seeks to avoid. This is the kind of
deficiency in the existing code that needs to be addressed immediately if the goals of the
Comprehensive Plan are to be realized. ' :

In addition to design elements for these large-scale retail establishments, the economic impact
cannot be ignored. The Economic Development Plan of the City’s Comprehensive Plan seeks to
not just recruit new business, but also foster the growth of existing businesses.'® The Economic
Development Plan recognizes that how a city regulates land is critical to economic development

2 TCC13.06.3 00(D)(2) Use Table. Only the URX and NRX Mix-Use districts prohibit retail.

13 TCC 13.06.200(C)(4) Use Table; TCC 13.06.200(D) Building Envelope Restrictions.
4 TCC 13.06.400(C)(4) Use Table (Except within the ST-M/IC area — 10,000 to 15,000 square feet); TCC

13.06.400(D) Building Envelope Restrictions (no reference at all to floor area).
15 One of the few zoning districts with a size limit is the C-1 Neighborhood Commercial Zone which permits
retail uses outright, but sets a maximum floor area of 30,000 square feet.!” Similarly, the Hospital Mix-Use Zone
also permits retail uses, establishing a 7,000 square foot maximum, but this is “per business” not per structure.
These two zones are the exception to the rule. Most of the zones allowing retail include no limit on size.

16 Comprehensive Plan, Economic Development Plan at 41.



Planning Commission
October 7, 2011
Page 6

and Action L-2 specifically seeks the efficient use of land through denser development.'” As
noted above, larger retailers have shifted their focus from suburban markets to urban markets not
only because of market coverage, but also a realignment of population. Given the impact of
these uses on existing urban retail businesses and local employment, determining the proper
sizing and location is vital to ensuring business sustainability within the City of Tacoma.

Duration of Moratorinm

Ordinance 28014 was adopted pursuant to RCW 36.70A.390 which allows for a moratorium to
be effective for not longer than six months. This same provision also allows for the renewal of a
moratorium, in six month increments, subject to certain procedural requirements. There is,
however, an exception to this time limitation - a moratorium may be effective for up to one year
if a work plan is developed for related studies to support the longer period.'®

City Planning Staff has crafted a very aggressive schedule for the review and adoption of
necessary amendments to the Tacoma City Code, encompassing both Planning Commission and
City Council review along with study sessions and public hearings. While every interested party
appreciates the City’s efforts to avoid a moratorium any longer than necessary, the proposed
schedule is devoid of any discussion related to studies we believe are necessary to fully inform
the decision-making process. It also seems to ignore that the changes to the code may need to
- sweep more broadly than simply imposing a maximum size on large retail establishments in
certain zones.

As the background information provided to the Planning Commission in its meeting packet
indicated, the past few years have seen a shift in the design and layout for large-scale retail
establishments, most notably by creating a new market area for such establishments — the urban
area. However, use of this information is .questionable given the dates of preparation (1995-
2008) and its relevance to Tacoma’s unique community character. This background information
also provided commentary on the economic impacts. However, given the economic
transformation Washington State has experienced in the past years, this information may also not
accurately reflect the economic impact of large-scale retail establishments within the urban area.

Thus, we believe region-specific studies or more current analysis as to land use and economic
impacts of large-scale retail uses is vital to ensuring the development of regulations that not only
reflect Tacoma’s land use vision, but also continue its “business friendly” atmosphere that has
drawn a variety of business to the area in the past few years.'” After the background studies are
obtained, City Planning Staff needs adequate time to determine the full extent of amendments

17 Comprehensive Plan, Economic Development Plan at 44; Economic Development Plan, § II Land Use.

18 This same language is contained in TCC 13.02.055(D).
19 Councilmember comments at the August 30 council meeting spoke to Tacoma’s being seen as a “business
friendly” community but that this also meant the success of businesses, with the future for retail being “hot” in
Tacoma: Councilmember Mello (Business Friendly); Councilmember Woodards (Ensure the success of businesses);
Councilmember Campbell (Retail hot for Tacoma).



Planning Commission
October 7, 2011
Page 7

that will be required for the development regulations so as to address the impact of these types of
facilities on the urban form of the Tacoma community. The time to obtain and analyze such
studies and then draft appropriate regulatory language would undoubtedly take more than six
months. A one-year moratorium seems appropriate.

In addition to the need for studies and analysis, a realistic schedule would take into account the
time of year activity is slated to occur. Under the schedule proposed by staff, much of the
Planning Commission’s work is scheduled to occur during the busy holiday season, creating
potential time-conflict issues not only for the Commission and City Staff, but also for members
of the public wishing to attend public hearings or comment on proposed amendments. When
adopting this moratorium at its August 30 Council Meeting, one of the reasons councilmembers
stated for enacting the moratorium was the need to ensure a “community conversation” regarding
large-scale retail establishments. 2° The need for a community conversation denotes a respect for
the vision and character the citizens of Tacoma are expecting based on the Comprehensive Plan.
The process necessarily entails affording a variety of opportunities for citizen involvement.
Tacoma’s distinct character — based on its unique physical setting, its history, and its people — is
a strategic asset that can be leveraged through compatible, high guality, new urban development.
The public will provide valuable input, if provided a fair chance.?!

In conclusion, the future of large-scale retail establishments within Tacoma needs to be
thoughtfully analyzed. The City has recognized that current regulations addressing these
establishments are not adequate. New regulations should be development which not only respect
Tacoma’s economic desires, but also respect the community’s character. To develop high
quality regulations that achieve this, adequate time must be provided. Thus, on behalf of UCFW
367, we ask the Planning Commission to recommend that the moratorium be left and place and
extended to an entire year so as to ensure that Tacoma’s vision for its growth and development is
accurately reflected within its development regulations.

Thank you for the consideration of UCFW 367’s comments in regards to this moratorium.

Very truly yours,

BRICK & NE {LLP

‘David A. Bricklin

20 Councilmembér Mello stated the moratorium allows for the community to have a conversation about

community character. Councilmember Boe noted the process for adoption of the Mixed Use Centers and the
community vision behind those centers; the very area such large-scale establishment would be located.
Councilmember Woodards believed the moratorium demonstrates a “thoughtfulness for the community and the
council needed to ensure the success of the community. Mayor Strickland concluded the moratorium allowed the
City to “take a deep breath” and address such things as the surrounding neighborhood.

2 Comprehensive Plan, Generalized Land Use Element at LU-12.



Planning Commission
October 7, 2011
Page 8

DAB:psc

ce: Client



.
N
TR

City of Tacoma

Planning Commission

Tacoma
[ R

October 19, 2011

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council:

On August 30, 2011, the Council adopted Ordinance No. 28014, enacting an emergency, city-wide, six-
month moratorium on the acceptance or processing of applications for development permits for large
scale retail establishments. The purpose of the moratorium is to prevent vesting of permits under the
current regulations while they are reviewed and updated to better implement the policies and goals of the
Comprehensive Plan and sufficiently address the potential economic, social and environmental impacts
associated with these types of uses.

As required by the Tacoma Municipal Code, the Commission conducted a public hearing on

October 5, 2011 concerning the moratorium. Thirty people testified at the hearing. They all expressed
their strong support for the moratorium and most called for extending it. The Commission also received
15 written comments which, while including some opposition to and concern about the impact of the
moratorium, still largely favored continuing the moratorium. The overwhelming message from the public
testimony was that the community has significant and wide-ranging concerns about large retail uses,
particularly within the City’s Mixed-Use Centers, and feels that a temporary hold on the permitting of
such uses is warranted while the City reviews and considers whether changes to the existing regulations
and associated requirements are needed.

The Commission’s preliminary review of the Comprehensive Plan and associated regulations found that
there are numerous areas where the existing land use regulations do not sufficiently implement the Plan’s
policies and goals. These discrepancies are particularly problematic within the City’s Urban and
Community Mixed-Use Centers because center development is a key part of the City’s vision for
accommodating future population and employment growth. The center vision expresses how we, as a
community, will shift from the auto-centric pattern that has dominated development over the past few
decades to a more compact, mixed, sustainable, vibrant and dense urban pattern that promotes pedestrian
activity and multi-modal transportation options. Ensuring that these areas develop in a manner that is
consistent with the community’s vision is critical to achieving our long-term land use and economic
goals.

The existing language of the moratorium is very broad, applying to all types of permits associated with
large retail establishments in all portions of the city. While the concerns expressed have also been broad,
a common message has been that development of new large retail establishments is of particular concern
within in the Mixed-Use Centers. The Commission shares this sentiment and has found that the
differences between the regulations and Plan policies are also most significant in the Community and
Urban Mixed-Use Centers. Therefore, the Planning Commission supports the continuation of the
moratorium but is recommending that its geographic scope be reduced to focus on the Community and
Urban Mixed-Use Centers, where it is most clearly needed and appropriate. As noted in our findings and
recommendation report, it may also be appropriate to clarify how the moratorium is intended to affect
remodels and additions to existing large retailers, which could include minor and/or necessary
maintenance and repair or the reuse of existing, potentially vacant buildings.

747 Market Street, Room 1036 | Tacoma, Washington 98402-3793 | (253) 591-5365
http://www.cityoftacoma.org



Mayor and Members of the City Council
Large Scale Retail Moratorium

October 19, 2011

Page 2

Although imposition of moratoria should be used infrequently and with caution, in this instance, the
moratorium provides an opportunity to conduct needed analysis of the impacts of these kinds of uses and
an evaluation of where and how they can be accommodated in a manner that is consistent with the
Comprehensive Plan. Continuing to permit development that is inconsistent with the community’s vision
will only hamper our ability to achieve it.

While the Commission supports having a moratorium within the Community and Urban Mixed-Use
Centers, we are also concerned that the six-month duration originally adopted would require that draft
code be ready for public review in less than a month from now. Considering the scope outlined in the
moratorium ordinance, the findings of our initial analysis and the numerous and wide-ranging concerns
expressed by the public it is apparent that this effort will require significant resources and attention and
should include multiple opportunities for general public and stakeholder input and coordination between
the Council, Commission and staff.

The Commission is also very concerned about the impact that this project will have on other planning
work items. In addition to the two other existing moratoria, the Commission is working on numerous
other planning program items, many of which are in response to City Council requests and/or grant
funding, such as the proposed amendments to downtown parking requirements, the critical areas
regulatory update project, and the two sub-area plans being developed. These projects are in addition to
our regular work on the 2012 Annual Amendment, which includes review of seven proposed
amendments. The Commission and staff’s ability to manage existing responsibilities in addition to this
new task will be severely constrained within a six-month schedule. In order to minimize such impacts
and ensure that this project receives the level of review, outreach and coordination it deserves, a one-year
timeline is needed. | am providing a one-year work plan for the development of regulations that provides
a reasonable schedule for the necessary review by the Commission, Council, staff and community.

Therefore, on behalf of the Planning Commission, | am forwarding our findings and recommendations in
response to the emergency moratorium. Enclosed you will find a copy of our Findings of Fact and
Recommendations report that summarizes the public review process and the Commission’s actions. We
believe the enclosed document addresses the review requested by the Council and required by City Code.
We look forward to our continued work in addressing large scale retail uses within the City.

Sincerely,

DONALD K. ERICKSON
Vice-Chair, Planning Commission

Enclosure



A

ﬁ City of Tacoma

2C0Ma Planning Commission

LARGE SCALE RETAIL
EMERGENCY MORATORIUM REVIEW

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

TACOMA PLANNING COMMISSION
October 19, 2011

A. SUBJECT:

Emergency moratorium on the permitting of large scale retail establishments within the City of
Tacoma.

B. BACKGROUND:

On August 30, 2011, the City Council enacted an emergency moratorium on large scale retail
establishments. The moratorium specifically prohibits the filing, acceptance and processing of
applications for land use, building or other development permits associated with the establishment,
location, or permitting of retail sales establishments with a floor area greater than 65,000 square feet
in size. The moratorium applies Citywide and was enacted for a duration of six months (until
February 28, 2012). As stated in the ordinance, the purpose of the moratorium is to allow the City
time to evaluate the impacts of these kinds of uses and consider potential changes to its regulations
and requirements.

C. FINDINGS OF FACT:

1) On August 30, 2011, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 28014, enacting an emergency
moratorium on all permitting for large scale retail uses (those with a floor area greater than
65,000 square feet) and referred the moratorium to the Planning Commission to hold a public
hearing and develop findings of fact and a recommendation addressing, at a minimum, the need
for and appropriate duration of the moratorium, by October 19, 2011.

2) As noted in the moratorium ordinance, the purpose of the moratorium is to allow time for the
Planning Commission and City Council to assess the impacts associated with large retail
establishments, including economic, environmental, health, traffic and public safety, and to
review and consider changes to the City’s regulations and standards for these types of uses.

3) The moratorium applies City-wide and is in effect for six months (until February 28, 2012).

4) RCW 35A.63.220 and Tacoma Municipal Code (TMC) 13.02.055 permit the establishment of
moratoria when it found to be necessary as a protective measure to prevent vesting under current
regulations or to maintain the status quo.

5) With regards to the duration of moratoria, the Code provides:

“Moratoria or interim zoning may be effective for a period of not longer
than six months, but may be effective for up to one year if a work plan is
developed for related studies requiring such longer period.” [Excerpt
from TMC 13.02.055.D.]

6) With the adoption of Ordinance No. 28014, the City Council declared that an emergency existed
and that immediate adoption of a moratorium was necessary to prevent the continued permitting

Large Scale Retail Moratorium Page 1
Planning Commission Findings and Recommendations (DRAFT)



of large scale retail establishments that might be inconsistent with the general public welfare and
undermine the policies and intent of the Comprehensive Plan.

7) TMC Chapter 13.02 sets forth the procedures and criteria for amending the City’s development
regulations, including temporary moratoria.

8) TMC 13.02.055 provides that following adoption of an emergency moratorium, the Planning
Commission is required to conduct a public hearing and provide findings and recommendations
to the City Council before the Council, after further review, takes final action to retain, rescind or
modify the emergency moratorium. The Commission’s findings and recommendations are
required to address, at a minimum, the need for and appropriate duration of the moratorium.

9) The emergency moratorium was presented to and discussed by the Planning Commission at its
September 21, 2011 meeting and the Commission authorized the distribution of the moratorium
ordinance for public review and set October 5, 2011 as the date for the Commission’s public
hearing on the matter.

10) Written and/or electronic notice of the Planning Commission’s public hearing was provided to all
recipients of the Planning Commission agenda, the Planning Commission’s electronic mailing
list, City Council members, Neighborhood Councils, business district associations, adjacent
jurisdictions, state and other governmental agencies, the Puyallup Tribal Nation, City staff, City
Commissions, environment, development, civic and social organizations, major institutions and
employers, and other interested individuals and groups. In addition, notice was sent to
community members who testified on the emergency moratorium to the City Council at its
August 30, 2011 meeting, all known owners/operators of existing large retail establishments in
the city, those who own property on which such large retail establishments are located, and
taxpayers of record for all known properties with 400 feet of these properties. In total, the notice
was sent out to over 3,000 addresses. Additionally, the public notice was posted on the bulletin
boards on the first and second floors of the Tacoma Municipal Building, at all branches of the
Tacoma Public Library, and on the City’s internet website.

11) The notice included general information regarding the time and place of the public hearing, a
description of the purpose of the public hearing, where additional information could be obtained
and how to submit public comment.

12) A copy of the moratorium ordinance was available for review at the offices of the Community
and Economic Development Department and was also posted for public review on the City’s
website.

13) The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the moratorium on Wednesday,
October 5, 2011. Thirty people provided testimony at the hearing and all were strongly in favor of
the moratorium, with many requesting to extend the duration beyond 6-months and some
requesting a permanent ban on large retail establishments within the City.

14) In addition to the oral testimony received at the October 5, 2011 public hearing, 15 written
comments were submitted in response to the public notice prior to the October 7 comment
deadline.

15) The Planning Commission reviewed all testimony offered at the October 5, 2011 public hearing
and all written testimony submitted to the Commission prior to the comment deadline.

16) The testimony at the public hearing and the information contained in the public record indicate
that the public overwhelmingly supports continuation of the moratorium to prevent the
establishment of new large retail uses while the City reviews and considers revisions to the
regulations for such establishments.

Large Scale Retail Moratorium Page 2
Planning Commission Findings and Recommendations



17) Public testimony in support of the moratorium raised a wide range of land use concerns about
these types of uses, such as the appropriateness of current zoning, their consistency with the plan
policies and vision for various areas of the city, the current permitting process for these types of
uses, the inadequacy of the existing design and development standards, and environmental review
processes and mitigation standards.

18) Four of the written comments received by the Commission opposed the continuation of the
moratorium. The associated concerns included its potential impact on economic development and
job recovery within the city and that the City already has regulatory tools in place to address
potential design and environmental impacts that may be created by large retail establishments.

19) It is important to note that the moratorium ordinance and the community have expressed concerns
about large retail establishments that extend well beyond land use issues and the Planning
Commission’s purview (e.g., living wages and employment conditions, unionized labor, crime,
corporate conduct, international trade and labor practices, and other significant but very far-
reaching socio-economic concerns associated with large retail establishments).

20) The existing moratorium prevents the “filing, acceptance, and processing of applications for land
use, building permits or other development permits associated with the establishment, location, or
permitting” of large retail establishments. As drafted, this language is very broad and could be
interpreted to encompass any and all permitting associated with large retail establishments,
including minor remodels or additions to existing large retail establishments (possibly including
necessary or needed maintenance and repair), or establishing a new large retail use within an
existing, potentially vacant building. It is likely that even if the Commission and Council review
and modify the design and development standards for large retail uses, many of these minor types
of projects would not be affected by the revised regulations. Also, based on the input received by
the Commission it would appear that the primary community concern is associated with the
construction of new large retail uses and potentially significant expansions or remodels. If the
Council did not intend for the moratorium to affect all types of permitting, including these types
of minor actions, it would be appropriate to modify the language of the moratorium to clarify how
it impacts remodels, additions and new businesses going into existing buildings.

21) Based on staff research, the City receives requests for approximately one new large retail
establishment or a significant remodel of an existing establishment each year. Just over the past
couple of months the City has received one building permit application for a new large retailer
and an inquiry about construction of another one. It is likely that if the moratorium is not retained
one or more new or significantly remodeled large retailers will be permitted under the current
regulations and before any amendments could be considered through the standard code update
process.

22) Staff has also indicated that there are approximately 17 existing large scale retail uses (as defined
by the moratorium ordinance) located within the City, as follows:

Location Zoning Approximate Size
Macy’s (Tacoma Mall) uUcx 255,000 sq. ft.
JC Penney’s (Tacoma Mall) UCX 233,000 sq. ft.
Sears (Tacoma Mall) UCX 180,000 sq. ft.
Costco (37" & Steele) UCX 152,000 sq. ft.
Nordstrom (Tacoma Mall) UCXx 144,000 sqg. ft.
Large Scale Retail Moratorium Page 3

Planning Commission Findings and Recommendations



Location Zoning Approximate Size

Fred Meyer (19" & Stevens) C-2 143,000 sq. ft.
Fred Meyer (72" & Pacific) CcCX 142,000 sq. ft
Lowe’s (80" & Hosmer) C-2 138,000 sq. ft
Lowe’s (25" & Orchard) c-2 131,000 sg. ft
Target (Allenmore) CCX 124,000 sq. ft
Home Depot (Center & Mullen) C-2 117,000 sqg. ft.
Home Depot (74™ & Sprague) C-2 110,000 sq. ft
Forever 21 (Tacoma Mall) UCX 106,000 sq. ft
K-Mart (72" & Portland) ccX 106,000 sq. ft
K-Mart (6™ & Orchard) C-2 106,000 sq. ft
Winco (72" & Hosmer) C-2 103,000 sq. ft.
Fred Meyer (19" & Mildred) CccX 68,000 sq. ft.

23) Large retail uses are currently allowed in many areas of the city. The zoning districts that allow
large retail uses include the C-2 General Community Commercial District, CCX Community
Commercial Mixed-Use District, UCX Urban Center Mixed-Use District, UCX-TD Urban Center
Mixed-Use Tacoma Dome District, CIX Commercial Industrial Mixed-Use District, M-1 Light
Industrial District, M-2 Heavy Industrial District, and all of the Downtown zoning districts. It is
worth noting that all of the existing large scale retail uses are located within the districts which
allow such uses.

24) The intent statements for most of these districts recognize that they are areas appropriate for large
scale uses that will attract people from throughout the city and beyond. However, many of these
districts, particularly the Mixed-Use Center Districts, are also intended to incorporate a dense and
compact mix of uses and a development pattern and form that encourages and supports pedestrian
activity and multi-modal transportation choices.

25) The existing large retail establishments in the city generally represent significant portions of the
districts in which they are located, often occupying large properties at major intersections or other
key locations in the center of their districts. The manner in which these types of projects are
developed has a substantial impact on whether these areas can and will meet the applicable Plan
policies and goals of the community.

26) The Mixed-Use Centers are a key part of the City’s growth strategy and how it intends to
accommodate new population and employment growth as required by state law and regional and
local growth management policies. The centers are supposed to incorporate a dense and varied
mix of uses that provide opportunities to live, work, play, learn and recreate and are to be
designed to support pedestrian activity and multi-modal transportation options. The Plan
specifically provides the following objectives for the centers (pages GD-9 — GD-10):

e Strengthen and direct growth with a concentrated mix of diverse uses (work, housing, and
amenities) and development toward centers;

o Create a range of safe, convenient, and affordable housing opportunities and choices;

o Create walkable and transit-supportive neighborhoods;

Large Scale Retail Moratorium Page 4
Planning Commission Findings and Recommendations



Build on and enhance existing assets and neighborhood character and identity;

Foster efficient provision of services and utility;

Reduce dependence on cars and enhance transportation connectivity;

Support neighborhood business development; and

Encourage sustainable development, including green building techniques, green/plant coverage,
and low impact development.

27) The Planning Commission and City Council recently conducted a substantial update to the
Comprehensive Plan policies, zoning and development regulations for the Mixed-Use Centers.
That effort resulted in expanded policy guidance and the creation of three new centers in 2007
and the adoption of revised zoning and design and development regulations in 2009. However,
while that project resulted in significant improvements it was largely focused on the
Neighborhood Mixed-Use Centers and the Urban and Community Centers did not receive
sufficient attention. The eight Community and Urban Centers are:

MIXED-USE CENTER CENTER TYPE
Tacoma Mall Area Urban

East 72nd and Portland Avenue Community
James Center/TCC Community
Lower Portland Avenue Community
South 34th and Pacific Avenue Community
South 72nd and Pacific Avenue Community
Tacoma Central Plaza/Allenmore Community
Westgate Community

28) Of particular note, the Comprehensive Plan policies adopted in 2007 specifically call for the
creation of a special permit process for large developments within the Community and Urban
Mixed-Use Centers. Implementing regulations for these policies have not yet been developed.

29) Based on the Commission’s preliminary review of the Comprehensive Plan and development
regulations, there are discrepancies between the current Plan policies relative to Community and
Urban Mixed-Use Centers and the associated code requirements, particularly as they relate to
large retail establishments. While the current regulations applicable to large retail developments
in Community and Urban Mixed-Use Centers include provisions to promote plan goals they still
allow for a largely suburban style of development with large single-use buildings, surrounded by
expansive parking. That style of development could thwart the ability for the community to
achieve its long-range vision for these areas as described in the Comprehensive Plan goals and
policies.

30) Based on the moratorium ordinance adopted by the City Council, the public testimony provided,
and a preliminary review of the associated Comprehensive Plan policies and associated
development regulations, the Commission has identified the following items that are in need of
review:

a) Consider creation of a discretionary permit process for large developments within
Community and Urban Mixed-Use Centers that would allow for community input as well as a
more comprehensive review of large projects to ensure they are consistent with the intent and
goals of the Comprehensive Plan and development regulations.

b) Modify the design and development standards applicable to large scale retail uses within
Community and Urban Mixed-Use Centers. This could include exploration of new or

Large Scale Retail Moratorium Page 5
Planning Commission Findings and Recommendations



modified standards addressing business size limitations, building mass and design details,
maximum setbacks and site layout, required mix of uses, parking requirements, and
pedestrian orientation and amenities.

¢) Review and assess the existing environmental review processes and standards to ensure that
they provide the appropriate guidance and authority to address environmental impacts
associated with large scale retail uses, with a particular focus on traffic impacts.

31) Under the proposed 6-month moratorium staff would be required to provide draft code changes
for Commission review by November 2 and the Commission would have to authorize a full
proposal for public review by November 16. If the proposed changes only involved creating a
permit review requirement for large projects in certain districts these deadlines could be met.
However, based on the Council and community input, all of the identified issues cannot be
sufficiently addressed through this one measure. A more detailed review and sophisticated
regulatory response are needed and to accomplish this with appropriate community input and in
coordination with the Council, this process will require additional time.

32) In order to properly address the identified land use issues and prepare code amendments that
sufficiently balance the community’s concerns, this evaluation should include a significant public
outreach component. Collaboration with key stakeholders, such as the Neighborhood Councils,
Business Districts, other commercial, real estate and business organizations, and the Public
Works Department, will require more than the six months provided in the original moratorium
ordinance.

D. CONCLUSIONS:

On August 30, 2011, the City Council declared an emergency and adopted an immediate, six-month,
city-wide moratorium on the acceptance or processing of development permit applications for large
scale retail establishments.

Based on a preliminary review of the Comprehensive Plan and development regulations, the
Commission concludes that there are areas where the current land use regulations do not sufficiently
implement the Plan policies and goals, particularly as they relate to Community and Urban Mixed-
Use Centers and the potential development of large retail establishments in these important distrits. It
is also clear that, absent this moratorium, continued permitting of large scale retail establishments
within these districts is likely and if allowed, that continued development under the current
regulations will impact the community’s ability to achieve the goals, policies and vision laid out in
the Comprehensive Plan.

State law and City Code allow a moratorium to be in effect for up to one year if a work plan to
address the permanent regulatory requirements is developed that requires a longer period. After a
review of the findings in the moratorium and the extensive public comments provided at the Planning
Commission public hearing, it is apparent to the Commission that the range of land use issues raised
cannot be addressed with one simple regulatory change. If this project were focused only on creating
a discretionary permit review process for large projects in these areas that could likely be
accomplished in 6-months. However, considering the much wider scope outlined by the Council and
the wide range of community concerns expressed during our public hearing it is apparent that this
project involves multiple highly contentious and, in some cases very technical issues and will require
significant research, study and public outreach than cannot be accomplished within the original 6-
month timeline. The wide-range of issues raised deserve a thorough and considered review and will
likely necessitate a comprehensive update to the regulations associated with these uses, potentially
including changes to permitting procedures, zoning, design and development standards and
environmental review processes and standards. The new land use regulations could impact a wide

Large Scale Retail Moratorium Page 6
Planning Commission Findings and Recommendations



range of residents and businesses in our community and, based on the substantial interest shown so
far, should be developed in a manner that includes community and stakeholder input and close
coordination between the City Council, the Commission and City staff.

The two other moratoria currently in effect, as well as the numerous other work program items, many
of which are in response to City Council requests and/or grant funding, do not allow for the
Commission or staff to dedicate all of their energy to this particular project. The Commission is also
concerned about the potential for this new task to impact these and other important planning work
currently underway or planned to occur this fall, such as the proposed amendments to downtown
parking requirements and our regular work on the 2012 Annual Amendment. The Commission and
staff’s ability to manage existing responsibilities in addition to this new task will be severely
constrained within a six-month schedule. In order to minimize such impacts and ensure that this
project receives the level of review, outreach and coordination it deserves, a one-year timeline is
needed.

E. RECOMMENDATION:

The Planning Commission finds that there is a need for an emergency moratorium to preserve the
status quo and prevent vesting of development permits under the current regulations while the City
reviews and considers development of improved regulations pertaining to large scale retail
establishments.

However, the Planning Commission also recommends that the City Council reduce the geographic
scope of the moratorium so that it applies only to Community and Urban Mixed-Use Centers and, if
appropriate, clarify how the moratorium is intended to apply to remodels and additions to existing
large retail uses and the potential reuse of existing, potentially vacant buildings.

Lastly, the Commission further recommends that the City Council extend the timeline associated with
the emergency moratorium on large scale retail establishments to one year (until August 30, 2012) in
order to allow the Commission, Council, staff and community sufficient time to develop a
comprehensive and balanced regulatory approach that will address the myriad of land use issues that
have been raised during this process, as outlined in the attached work plan.

F. ATTACHMENTS:
1. Proposed 12-Month Work Plan

Large Scale Retail Moratorium Page 7
Planning Commission Findings and Recommendations






~. A4
«‘\\,\-\'_*

Tacoma LARGE SCALE RETAIL MORATORIUM
- ]

PrROPOSED WORK PLAN
October 19, 2011

Date Event

August 30, 2011 City Council adopts emergency moratorium; Ordinance No. 28014
September 1, 2011 Effective date of emergency moratorium
Planning Commission discussion of Ordinance No. 28010, State law, Council
September 21 . .
direction and proposed code amendment schedule
September 23 Provide notice for Commission public hearing on emergency moratorium
October 5 Planning Commission public hearing on emergency moratorium
October 5 Commission review of preliminary draft code options
October 19 Recommendation to City Council on emergency moratorium
Provide notice of Commission’s recommendation on moratorium in advance
October 20 . . .
of Council public hearing
October 25, 2011 City Council conducts public hearing on emergency moratorium
November 1, 2011 City Council clarifies and extends the moratorium to one-year
Commission discussion of identified issues, timeline, public outreach, project
November 2 . L
scope, and benchmarking from other jurisdictions
Commission discussion of Community and Urban Centers policies, vision,
December 5 . . .
geographies, existing circumstances
December Community/stakeholder outreach
Council Committee discussion of identified issues, Mixed-Use Centers
December

policies and vision, community and stakeholder input, and project scope

Commission discussion of large retail and shopping center design and
January 18 development standards (parking, setbacks, landscaping, mass reduction,
pedestrian-orientation, and other site and building design requirements)

January/February Community/stakeholder outreach

Commission discussion of environmental review processes and mitigation

February 15 standards

Council Committee discussion of design and development standards and

February/March . . e
v/ environmental review processes and mitigation standards
Commission authorizes draft amendments for public review and sets the
March 21 . .
public hearing date
March 28 Distribution of public notice for Planning Commission public hearing

Large Scale Retail Moratorium
Proposed One-Year Work Plan (Draft)
Page 1



Date Event

April 11, 2012
April 18, 2012
April 27

May

May 16
May 30, 2012
June 5

June 8
June 19
June 26, 2012
July

July 31
August 7
August 17
August 19

August 30, 2012

Public informational meeting on draft amendments
Planning Commission public hearing on draft amendments
Last day to submit written comments on draft amendments

Council Committee discussion of public review draft and public comments
received

Planning Commission discussion of hearing testimony

Planning Commission makes recommendation to City Council
City Council sets hearing date

City Clerk distributes public notice for City Council public hearing

City Council study session on proposed amendments, as recommended by
the Planning Commission

City Council conducts public hearing on proposed amendments

Council Committee discussion of hearing testimony and potential changes to
the draft ordinance

City Council — first reading of ordinance(s) to adopt amendments
City Council — second reading and adoption of amendments
Submit final amendments to State

Effective date of amendments

Moratorium expires

Large Scale Retail Moratorium

Proposed One-Year Work Plan (Draft)

Page 2



PLANNING COMMISSION 2011-2012 PLANNING ACTIVITIES
OCTOBER 11,2011

Project

Source

2011

2012

1%t Qtr 2" Qtr 3 Qtr 4™ Qtr

Shoreline Mgt Act

1"atr  2™aQtr

3 Qtr

4t Qtr

State Review

The City is required to update the SMP by Dec 1, 2011

Municipal Code

¢ Container Port Element

Growth Mgt Act/Grant

* Housing Element Update - Affordable Housing Policy Principles

City Council

* Transportation Element Update

Staff

* Sign Code Revisions - Digital on-premises signs

Planning Commission

* Platting and Subdivision Code Revisions

Growth Management Act

* Urban Forestry Code Revisions — Landscaping and Vegetation

PW/Env. Services

* Minor Plan and Regulatory Code Refinements Staff

Billboard Regulations City Council
Revise regulations per Council’s direction

 Medical Cannabis Moratorium and Regulation Development City Council
Develop regulations for medical cannabis uses

 Large scale Retail Moratorium and Regulation Development City Council
Revise regulations for large scale retail uses in mixed use districts

Transfer of Development Rights (OR) EPA Grant

Develop TDR program in coordination with county and region

PSRC Regional Grant

Conduct subarea planning and SEPA upfront review

State Commerce Grant

Conduct subarea planning for the MLK corridor

i

 Critical Areas Preservation Ordinance (CAPO) Staff
Code revisions to support voluntary restoration & simplify permits

Historic Preservation Staff
Code revisions to further implement Historic Preservation Element

Parking Requirements - Downtown City Council
Revise requirements in DCC zone and historic districts
Shoreline Public Access and Restoration Planning Staff

Implement Master Program




Project
Parking Requirements — Commercial Districts Citywide
Add incentives and revise code to reduce parking requirements

2013 Annual Amendment
* Private Applications
* Council/Commission/Staff applications
* Plan and Regulatory Code Refinements

Other Potential Projects Being Discussed

Affordable Housing Strategies
Plan and code revisions to increase availability of affordable housing

Implement Sustainable Tacoma Commission Priorities
Establish policies for green house gas emissions review under SEPA

Capital Facilities Planning and Programming
Revise procedures for meeting GMA requirements for capital facilities

A

EY:
Mandated projects

Grant obligations

()
=
o
[0)
>

Tan Projects committed and underway
Planned for initiation

Pin Projects under consideration

<

||

=5
g

Source
City Council

Municipal Code
Private
Various

Staff

City Council

Sustainable Commission/EPW

Finance & Public Works Depts

1*t Qtr

2" Qtr

2011

3 Qtr

4™ qtr

1 Qtr

2012
2" Qtr

3 qtr

4™ Qtr



Agenda Item

NN GB-2
7 City of Tacoma
dcoma Community and Economic Development Department
TO: Planning Commission
FROM: Donna Stenger, Manager, Long-Range Planning Division

SUBJECT: Amendment to the Downtown Off-Street Parking Regulations

DATE: October 13, 2011

At your next meeting on October 19, 2011, the Planning Commission will review the public
testimony from the September 21 public hearing on the proposed amendment to the downtown
off-street parking regulations. At this meeting staff will also present alternatives for public
amenities related to the proposed changes to the surface parking lot regulations that are part of
this proposed amendment. A handout on this topic is attached for your review and discussion.

The attached Public Comments and Staff Responses Report summarizes the written and oral
comments received on the proposal during the public comment period, which closed September
30, 2011. Testimony was provided by eight individuals or organizations. Among those who
provided comments there is unanimous support for eliminating parking minimums. Downtown
On the Go and the Sustainable Tacoma Commission support retaining parking maximums. The
Executive Council for a Greater Tacoma opposes reintroducing the parking maximum in the
International Financial Services Area and reducing the parking maximums in downtown zones.
One comment was received on the proposed surface parking lot regulations suggesting the
regulations be expanded to additional streets.

On October 12, 2011 at the joint meeting of the Environment and Public Works and Economic
Development Committees of the Council staff presented the downtown off-street parking
amendment that was released for public review and discussed the written and oral public
testimony that has been received. At the meeting Tom Luce from the Executive Council for a
Greater Tacoma spoke and subsequently provided written comments addressed to the
Committee Members and Planning Commissioners. The letter is attached for your information.
At the next Planning Commission meeting staff will also discuss comments from the City
Council on the draft proposal.

If you have any questions, please contact Chelsea Levy at (253) 591-5393 or
clevy@cityoftacoma.org.

c. Peter Huffman, Assistant Director

Attachments (4)

747 Market Street, Room 1036 | Tacoma, Washington 98402-3793 | (253) 591-5365
http://www.cityoftacoma.org/planning






PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE DOWNTOWN OFF-STREET PARKING REGULATIONS

SUMMARY OF PuBLIC COMMENTS AND STAFF RESPONSES REPORT
October 1, 2011

COMMENTS SOURCE(S) STAFF RESPONSE
PARKING MINIMUMS
1. | Eliminating parking minimums will support the Bjornson, Comment noted. Eliminating parking maximums is a stated goal
City’s environmental, urban design and e oiion, | of the 2008 Climate Action Plan and could help the City achieve
transportation goals Downtown On the Go, | the established Commute Trip Reduction Goal to reduce the
Sustainable Tacoma | qowntown drive alone rate by 11% by 2015.
Commission, Sierra
Club
2. | Eliminating parking minimums is an established Bjornson Comment noted. Mr. Bjornson provided supporting documentation
best parking management practice for downtowns that describes parking regulations from peer cities like
Bellingham, Olympia, Seattle, Portland and San Francisco that
have eliminated parking requirements in downtown commercial
core zones. Additionally Bjornson provided documentation from
peer reviewed research at the University of California Berkeley,
Victoria Transportation Policy Institute, University of California Los
Angeles, and the City of San Francisco that contends parking
requirements negatively impact housing affordability and urban
design.
3. | Eliminating parking minimums will make downtown ER?,ZhExeCUtive Comment noted.
more attractive to investors
4. | Parking minimums should be eliminated in all Eﬁ:iggrg;glﬂmn Comment noted. The original proposal to eliminate both the
downtown zones parking minimums and maximums in the Reduced Parking Area
(RPA) was created in response to testimony in 2009 that the
parking minimums and maximums should be eliminated in a
larger area of downtown than just the IFSA.
PARKING MAXIMUMS

Support for parking maximums

Downtown On the Go,

Sustainable Tacoma
Commission

Support noted. Adopting parking maximums is a goal of the 2008
Climate Action Plan

Proposed Amendment to the Downtown Off-Street Parking Regulations

Comments and Responses Report

Page 1 of 3



COMMENTS SOURCE(S) STAFF RESPONSE

6. | Oppose reinstituting parking maximum in IFSA E_XGCU“VG Council, Opposition noted. The parking maximum was removed in the

mon IFSA in 2009. The proposed RPA includes the IFSA within its
boundaries. Within the RPA, the minimum parking requirement is
proposed to be eliminated, while the parking maximum is
proposed to be retained and reduced.

7. | Maximums will help to control parking supply. Downtown On'the Go | Comment noted.

Given the significant available supply of parking in
downtown, there is no need to add more parking
until demand increases.

8. | Reducing maximum parking regulations is an Simon Comment noted. The current parking maximum has been in effect
attempt to fix a regulation that does not need to be in downtown since 1999. A review of recent projects and the
fixed at this time when investment in downtown is amount of parking provided revealed that on average these
minimal. projects provided approximately 2.5 stall per 1,000 sq. ft.

Additionally, the code provides an option to exceed the maximum
parking limit if the additional parking serves the public. The intent
of having a maximum is to prevent an oversupply of parking and
to preserve valuable land for development not the storage of cars.
The parking maximum helps encourage dense urban
development and pedestrian friendly streets.

9. | Reducing parking maximums will make it more E_XE‘CU“VE Council, Comment noted. The current parking maximum has been in place
difficult to attract new, large businesses in men since 1999. Staff is unaware that any project was deterred by this
downtown. requirement. Parking maximums are common and are used in the

cities of Bellevue, Redmond, Olympia, Seattle, Portland.
SURFACE PARKING LOTS

10. | The restrictions proposed for surface parking lots ghar!SpOfg“ﬂq_ Comment noted.

should be expanded to other streets oees ~oatfion
GENERAL COMMENTS

11.

Proposal will not promote density in downtown Executive Council

Comment noted. Limiting the amount of parking that can be
provided promotes density by making more land available for
development rather than car storage. As the city continues to
develop, pressure will increase to develop and redevelop
property. Surface parking lots are generally considered a
“temporary” use in the context of a thriving economy as the land
becomes more valuable for uses other than parking.

Proposed Amendment to the Downtown Off-Street Parking Regulations
Comments and Responses Report

Page 2 of 3



COMMENTS SOURCE(S) STAFF RESPONSE
12. | Request meeting of Planning Commissioners, E_XGCU“VG Council, Following the public hearing, Planning Commissioners suggested
Council members and local developers to discuss mon that local developers communicate any additional concerns about
proposal the proposal in an existing open public meeting and offered that
they could attend the October 12" joint Environment and Public
Works/ Economic Development Committee meeting to discuss
their concerns.
13. | No objection TPCHD Comment noted.
SOURCE KEY

Oral Testimony on September 20, 2011

No.| Last Name First Name Affiliation Address City State | Zip E-mail

1.| Austin Andrew Transportation Choices Seattle WA Andrew@transportationchoices.org
Coalition

2.| Bjornson Erik Law Office of Erik Bjornson | 711 Court A, Suite 114 Tacoma WA | 98402 | ebjornson@msn.com

3.| Luce Tom Executive Council for a PO Box 111347 Tacoma WA | 98401 | tom@exec-council.com
Greater Tacoma

4.| Simon Herb SimonJohnson LLC Tacoma WA | 98401 | simonjohnson@simonjohnsonlic.com

5.1 Walker Kristina Downtown On the Go PO Box 1933 Tacoma WA | 98401 | kristinaw@tacomachamber.org

Written Comments received by September 30, 2011
No. | Last Name First Name Affiliation Address City State | Zip E-mail Date

1.| Bjornson Erik Law Office of Erik Bjornson | 711 Court A, Suite 114 Tacoma WA | 98402 | ebjornson@msn.com 9/2/11

2.| Coughlan Philip Sustainable Tacoma 747 Market Street Tacoma WA | 98402 9/28/11
Commission

3.| Harp Brad D. Tacoma-Pierce County 3629 South D Street Tacoma WA | 98402 9/16/11
Health Department

4.| Luce Tom Executive Council for a PO Box 111347 Tacoma WA | 98401 | tom@exec-council.com 9/20/11
Greater Tacoma

5.| Moore Bliss Tatoosh Group, Cascade 6116 N. Park Ave Tacoma WA | 98407 9/30/11
Chapter of Sierra Club

6.| Walker Kristina Downtown On the Go PO Box 1933 Tacoma WA | 98401 | kristinaw@tacomachamber.org 9/6/11

Proposed Amendment to the Downtown Off-Street Parking Regulations

Comments and Responses Report

Page 3 of 3






PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO DOWNTOWN OFF-STREET PARKING REGULATIONS
SURFACE PARKING LOTS

BACKGROUND

Implementing the proposed code regulating surface parking lots could result in creation of a vacant area
between a Primary Pedestrian Street and a new or expanded surface parking lot. In the proposed code
new or expanded surface parking lots are to be setback 60 feet from the Primary Pedestrian Street (see
Figure 1). To achieve the following goals:

1. To encourage the construction of buildings, not parking along Primary Pedestrian Streets
2. To offer an alternative public amenity in lieu of a building for an interim period

Figure 1A

7’7/53?

WHAT GOES IN THE SETBACK AREA?

A permanent building that meets the design requirements for Primary Pedestrian Streets in subsection
13.06A.070, Basic Design Standards is the desired alternative for the setback area. However, in the
event that a building is not immediately built in the setback area, staff has developed the following
alternatives to inform the Commission’s discussion about interim uses in the setback area.

OPTIONS:

1. Landscaping
Require at a minimum, landscaping consistent with current
parking lot perimeter landscaping requirements, which includes a
mix of trees, shrubs and ground cover as required by the City’s
Urban Forester. Ongoing maintenance should be required.

Figure 2

2. Public Amenities
The following list of public amenities was developed from the
City’s standards to increase allowable FAR and bonus amenities
used by Seattle, Olympia and Portland and could be used to
augment minimum landscaping requirements. A review process with appropriate city staff and
Commissions would allow for flexibility and creativity to create a public amenity in exchange for
additional parking on a Primary Pedestrian Street. Ongoing maintenance should be required.

e Decorative lighting e Water feature or drinking fountain
e Seating, benches or low sitting walls e Hill climb assist (if appropriate)
e Planters e Landscaped and/or hardscaped public
e Unit paving in sidewalks plaza
e Works of public art as approved by the e Bike Racks or bike boxes
appropriate City Commissions e  kiosks, pavilions, pedestrian shelters

* All amenities including landscaping should be identified clearly with a sign identifying the nature of
the public amenity and its availability.






Law Office of Erik Bjornson

711 COURTA, SUITE 114
TACOMA, WA 98402
(253) 272 -1434
FAX (253) 573-1209

SEPTEMBER 2, 201 1
Tacoma Planning Commission
747 Market Street
Tacoma, WA 98402-3701

RE: Support of Removal of Antiquated Off-Street Parking
Requirements in Downtown Tacoma

Tacoma Planning Commission Members,

Please accept this letter and the enclosed articles in
support of removing Tacoma’s 1950 suburban era off-street parking
requirement which has devastated downtown Tacoma, left it pocked
with blightful parking lots and thwarted investment in the ciiEvt

Permitting the market to determine the amount of parking
built in downtown Tacoma will 1) follow the best practices of
model cities such as Seattle, Portland, San Francisco and
Bellingham, and 2) implement the best peer reviewed research on
the matter which recommends removing off-street parking
requirements. Tacoma cannot afford to lag on this issue any
longer.

As the enclosed articles and other research on the matter
indicates, the benefits will include lower cost of housing, less
reliance on automobile, decreased pollution, more residents and
businesses downtown, increased investment, a more walkable
vibrant attractive downtown, better building designs, increased
competition of Tacoma, the saving of land in Pierce County.

Thank yo
reached at (

for your attention to this matter. I may be
3) 272-1434.

Erik ‘Bjoy¥nson



Most Major Washington Cities have removed their off-street parking
requirements in their downtowns

in the last 10 years to attract investment, housing and greater density.

Bellingham

Bellingham Municipal Code 20.12.010 - Parking

B.2.a. Central Commercial, Core and Fringe only: Uses are
exempt from parking requirements, except for hotels and
motels, which shall provide the number of spaces required in
BMC 20.12.010 B. 3. below.

Olympia

Title 18 — UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 18.38.040 Parking and
Loading

EXEMPT: Land uses within the Downtown are exempt from all
parking requirements..

Seattle

Seattle Municipal Code MNC 23.49.019
A. Parking Quantity Requirements.

1. No parking, either long-term or short-term, is required
for uses on lots in Downtown zones

Portland

Chapter 33.278.400 C(2)



C. In Commercial zones

2. Off-Street Parking. No Off-street parking is required.

San Francisco

Has eliminated off street parking requirements.



PLANETIZEN

Wel to Planetizen

It appears you found us through a web search. Consider bookmarking Planetizen -- the leading source of news for urban planning, design and
development.

Even better, subscribe to our hand-crafted, free email newsletter, and we'll deliver to you the top news headlines twice each week.

Onsite Parking: The Scourge of America's Commercial Districts

31 March 2006 - 7.00am

Author: Mott Smith

In this final installment of Planetizen's three part series on parking, Mott Smith, Principal of planning and
development firm Civic Enterprise Associates in Los Angeles, analyzes the urban design problems
generated by gratuitous "onsite" parking requirements, which ruin street life and force property owners
to use their lots inefficiently.

Onsite Parking: The Scourge of America's Commercial Districts

Onsite parking requirements, which have crept into many cities' laws over the past 50 to 70 years,
have sucked the potential out of commercial properties on main streets and in downtowns
everywhere. Perhaps more than anything else, rules requiring onsite parking -- to be distinguished
from "on street” or "offsite" parking -- have created the blighted conditions that characterize many
older North American commercial districts and boulevards.

The Geometry of Parking

How this has happened is simple geometry. Parcels in older commercial areas are often small by today's
standards. A typical one might be 50 feet wide by 150 feet deep, or 7,500 square feet (Figure 1).

Figure 1. Typical commercial parcel, 7,500 square feet.
(All illustrations by MDA Johnson Favaro Architecture & Urban Design.)

This is traditionally the perfect size for a small businessperson to build a shop and maybe even housing or
office space above, with minimal capital. An entrepreneur with a property like this could get a lot of bang for
his or her buck by building right up to the front and side property lines, so land-use efficiency is maximized
and pedestrian-friendliness is encouraged. Moreover, once several such properties are developed in a single
area, an authentic community of small owners and businesspeople can emerge. (Figure 2 shows a one-story,
full-lot building typical of an older commercial district.)




Figure 2. Typical parcel with one-story building, built to the property lines.

But onsite parking rules have made this sort of development nearly impossible. Now, it's often economically
infeasible to build anything at all on a 7,500 square foot parcel, let alone something that's pedestrian-
friendly.

In a city that requires four parking spaces for every 1,000 square feet of retail space, for example, the largest
store you could build on a typical property would be 3,000 square feet -- less than half of what was possible
before onsite parking requirements came into play. Figure 3 illustrates such a retail development, with its 12
surface parking spaces separating the building from the street.

N

St

Figure 3.

For restaurants, the requirements are often even more stringent. In a city that requires 10 spaces per 1,000
square feet of restaurant, the largest building you could construct on a typical property would be 1,600 square
feet -- less than 25 percent of the potential build-out area before parking-requirements (Figure 4).




Figure 4.
Parking Rules Create Blight

As a result of these rules, a familiar dynamic emerges in our older commercial areas. Some property owners

keep old buildings for storage and other low-performing uses, because improving the properties or changing

them significantly would mean complying with today's parking rules -- often a deal killer. Rather, they prefer
to sit on their properties until a developer or public agency comes along, hoping to assemble a larger parcel

for a corporate-style development.

Other owners opt to undertake changes of use themselves and either replace existing buildings with new ones
that are 50 to 75 percent smaller, or they buy and bulldoze the buildings next door to make parking lots.

Neither of these strategies fosters vibrant, pedestrian-oriented commercial districts that provide economic
opportunity for non-corporate owners.

So what's a city to do? Is it possible to encourage economic vitality and create opportunities for the little guy
in an automobile age?

Thankfully, the answer is yes. But it takes a fundamental shift in how we think about parking.
Cheap and Free Parking is OK

First of all, in most parts of North America -- particularly in struggling commercial areas -- low-cost parking
can3€™t be eliminated. Area shopping mall owners will always offer plentiful, cheap parking as a loss-leader
to draw customers. And these customers, given the choice between shopping in a clean place with free
parking versus a gritty one with expensive parking, will usually opt for the former.

Provide Parking, But As a Community

So, if parking is a necessary evil, it should be provided by the community rather than by individual owners, on
a site-by-site basis. This can be accomplished using on-street spaces (metered or not), public lots, public
garages, and/or public valet services to increase capacity.

When retail parking must be provided onsite, owners have a strong incentive to “trap" visitors in their stores'
lot and discourage them from traveling anywhere elsewhere on foot. (If they didn't discourage walking to
other properties, their parking could potentially be filled by people shopping at competitorsa€™
establishments.) The result is that shops are designed to be inward-looking, and opportunities to encourage
pedestrian activity are quashed.

But when parking is public, the incentives are flipped. All customers arrive on foot, so retailers do best by
building stores that are attractive and accessible to pedestrians.

Don't Forget the Entitlements

Many cities have invested heavily in downtown parking lots or garages only to see business decline and
customers lost to suburban malls. Clearly, lack of market potential, poor urban design, and other factors can
contribute to such failures. But even when all other stars are aligned, building great parking facilities in an
older commercial district with booming demographics will accomplish very little if the local property owners
dond€™t enjoy relief from the parking standards most cities still apply.



The key is for small property owners to be able to develop modest pedestrian-oriented projects by-right for a
reasonable cost.

Some cities have accomplished this goal by eliminating parking requirements in downtown areas. Others have
created mechanisms that let property owners purchase waivers from parking requirements, often as part of
lengthy and expensive discretionary review processes. A third, exciting solution has cropped up in two
Southemn Califomnia cities, Pasadena and Los Angeles.

Pasadena attributes much of its success in revitalizing its Old Town area to the decision to build public
parking garages and allow property owners to get entitlements to convert underperforming space into shops
and restaurants by leasing "parking credits" instead of building onsite parking. The program, which has an
even more fundamental effect than the parking management strategies proposed by Don Shoup, has restored
much value to older commercial properties without necessitating large-scale use of eminent domain to create
super-sized parcels.

And now Los Angeles, long identified as the world capital of car-culture, is exploring a parking credits system
that would make use of underutilized on-street spaces. The result will be a tool for revitalizing older
boulevards with pedestrian-oriented uses, without need for significant public investment.

The Bottom Line

We're all living with the consequences of well-intentioned rules that seek to saddle property owners with the
burden of providing parking for occupants and visitors. These rules, while perhaps fair on paper, have had the
effect of eviscerating the value of typical properties in our older commercial areas and making sprawl-style
development the only option for many owners.

The solution is not, as many have suggested, to tumn back the clock to the days before the car. Rather, it is
to accept that many people will drive for most trips and, accordingly, to make communities, not individual
shopping centers, their destination.

Mott Smith is Principal of Civic Enterprise Associates, LLC, a planning and development firm in Los Angeles
that helps revitalize emerging neighborhoods in Southem California and beyond through strategic planning,
real estate development and targeted investment in community assets.

Related links:

e Pric i t St S

G SHARE of &y

Related News Stories
+ Extreme Makeover: Housing Policies Edition - Aug 28, 2011

" a_Legitim, f Poli wer? - Aug 27, 2011
+ NYC's Answer to Silicon Valiey - Aug 27, 2011
» Publicly-Funded Stadiums Bad Deal for Cities - Aug 21, 2011
+ Best Smail Towns in the USA - Aug 15, 2011

13
To take urbanism to the top of the sustainability discussion, one of the CNU's focus is reforming the technocratic post-World
War 11 planning disciplines that remain, intentionally or not, locked into the habit of moving cars as fast as possible and

sprinkling land uses lightly across the land... 9

Read the fu i written by Mike L

PI; izen: Urban Pl ing, Design and Development Network www,planetizen.com
Copyright © 2000 - 2010 Urban Insight, Inc. All rights reserved



Eliminating Off-Street Parking Requirements

is a Critical Step to Revitalize Downtown Tacoma
By Erik Bjornson

Although progress has been made in revitalizing downtown
Tacoma, empty buildings and vacant lots abound and locating
significant retail in the downtown core remains elusive. Many
buildings and residences that have been built have been much
shorter than allowed.

City Council members and the public have wisely expressed a
desire to infill the vacant parcels and building with
residential, commercial buildings, and retail. One of the most
significant impediments to downtown Tacoma being redeveloped
is the current city municipal building code which mandates
that large numbers of off-street parking be built with each
new commercial or residential buildings, costing up to $30,000
each.

Executive Summary

Most West Coast cities such as Portland, Seattle and San
Francisco have removed the off street-parking requirement to
the benefit of their downtown as

Off-street parking requirements especially harm the CBD.
High density is a prime advantage of the CBD because it
offers proximity to many social cultural and economic
activities. The clustering of museums, theaters,
restaurants, stores and offices is what a downtown can
offer but other areas cannot.

Parking requirements thus reduce the CBD’s attractiveness
by undermining the essential features that make it
attractive-high density and accessibility.

High Cost of Free Parkingz (Shoup 2004) pg 158 - 159.

Thus, Tacoma’s retention of the off street parking requirement
impedes businesses and residents from locating downtown, and



thus, is injurious to the revitalization of downtown Tacoma
and should be removed.

The current Tacoma Municipal Code bars residents locating
downtown unless a parking space is built for every residential
unit (Tacoma Municipal Code 13.06.510). Retail and commercial
buildings are currently barred from locating downtown unless a
surface level parking lot or mini parking garage is built with
the addition of 2.5 parking stalls for each 1000 feet of floor
space.

Tacoma’s off-street parking requirement is a significant
barrier to the success of downtown Tacoma as the policy has
numerous negative consequences for the downtown, which:

1. Result in an unnecessary barrier for people and
businesses to locate downtown;

2. Reduces the density of downtown, the primary attraction a
downtown has to offer;

3. Makes the downtown less attractive and usable by
pedestrians by creating and retaining surface level
parking lots and excessive number of small parking
garages downtown;

4. Creates an unnecessary barrier for retail (including a
grocery store) to move downtown;

5. Creates a significant barrier for the construction of
low-income housing by increasing prices by up to 20
percent, and by discouraging developers from building
smaller units;

6. Essentially mandates car use in downtown Tacoma reducing
the ability for mass transit to be successful and causes
unnecessary traffic congestion and pollution;

7. Causes architecturally poorer buildings to be built in
downtown Tacoma;

Ql: How do off-street parking requirements harm the
attractiveness of Downtown Tacoma and the efforts to infill

and add residential, commercial and retail downtown?

From the High Cost of Free Parking:



Off-street parking requirements especially harm the CBD.
High density is a prime advantage of the CBD because it
offers proximity to many social cultural and economic
activities. The clustering of museums, theaters,
restaurants, stores and offices is what a downtown can
offer but other areas cannot.

Off street parking requirements increase the supply and
thus reduce the cost of parking in the CBD, but they also
have other consequences. They increase the costs of all
development, reduce density by preempting land for other
uses, and increase traffic within the CBD and on the
routes to it.

Page 158. The off-street parking requirement often results in
surface level parking spaces near buildings downtown and/or
require each building having a mini parking garage with gaping
car entrances and exits which are undesirable for pedestrians.
The intensity of use of a downtown is gained by having as
continuous buildings as possible in an area.

Q2: How does the off-street parking requirement pose financial
barrier for businesses and residential to locate in downtown
Tacoma?

At a cost of $30,000 per parking stall, the off-street parking
requirement is yet another barrier for residents and
businesses to build downtown. Yet, as discussed below, it
serves no legitimate social policy and thwarts the efforts to
ever have the intensity of use to be attractive.

The off street parking requirement also poses a disincentive
for businesses and residents to locate downtown as land is
more expensive downtown core than at the outskirts of the
city.

If the parking requirement is satisfied by placing it under
the building, there is less space for the residential or
commercial part of the building. Costs per sq. foot generally
rise as a building gets higher. Thus, the net effect is that
for any set height, less commercial and residential space can
be built as it must be sacrificed for parking spaces
regardless of whether they are desired or used or make
financial sense to build.

Q3: How does the off-street parking requirement make downtown
less attractive and usable by pedestrians?



As Jane Jacobs describes in her book Death and Life of Great
American Cities (1961):

The main purpose of downtown streets is transaction, and
this function can be swamped by the torrent of machine
circulation. The more downtown is broken up and
interspersed with parking lots and garages, the duller
and deader it becomes in appearance, and there is nothing
more repellant than a dead downtown. . . In a panicky
effort to combat the suburbs on their own terms,
something downtown cannot do, we are sacrificing the
fundamental strengths of downtown-its variety and choice,
its bustle, its interests, its compactness, its
compelling message that this is not a weigh station, but
the very intricate center of things. The reason people
come downtown or set up business downtown at all is
because downtown packs so much into such a compact area.
{(emphasis added)

Pg 161. Fred Kent, president of Partners for Public Spaces,
contrasts parking requirements for a great place with one that
is dull:

Parking is important where the place isn’t important. In
a place like Faneuil Hall in Boston its amazing how far
people will walk. In a dull place, you want a parking
space right in front of where you are going.

Kent also states that minimum parking requirements “assure
that a place will be uninteresting.” Pg 162. Architecture and
planning critic Jane Holtz Kay explained:

Where there are plenty of off street parking spaces, “the
pedestrian is now likely to be ambushed by a car sliding
from some underground garage as visually assaulted by gap
toothed parking lots and eerie garage facades.”

Pg 162. The latest parking inventory in Tacoma showed that
even with free on street parking, 40 percent of it remained
unused. Thus, there is a much stronger case to remove the off
street parking requirement in Tacoma than the other cities
which have done so.

Cities such as Seattle, Portland and San Francisco have a far
greater demand for parking than Tacoma, yet they have removed
the requirement and now let residents and businesses decide
how much parking they need.



Q4: How does the requirement to provide free parking pose a
barrier to the construction of affordable housing.

Even without considering the land costs, parking spaces can
cost $30,000 each to build or more. Adding this cost to every
unit downtown can make a large difference for more affordable
units in the $150,000 to $250,000 range for condominiums.

As professor Shoup explains:
Off-street parking requirements harm low income and
renter families because the own few cars but still pay
for parking indirectly, and the hidden costs for all the
required parking consume a greater share of their income.

Imposing hidden costs on the entire population to
subsidize parking takes money from the poorest renters to
subsidize richer homeowners.

High Cost of Free Parking Page 165. Amit Ghosh, San Francisco’
chief of comprehensive planning stated:

Parking requirements are a huge obstacle to new
affordable housing and transit-oriented development in
San Francisco. Nonprofit developers estimate that they
add 20 percent to the cost of each unit, and reduce the
number of units that can be built on a site by 20
percent. We’re forcing people to build parking that
people cannot afford. We’re letting parking drive not
only our transportation policies, but jeopardize our
housing policies, too. We want to get away from the
situation where people are forced to pay for parking
regardless of whether they have a car.

Pg. 167. In many circumstances, parking spaces mandated for
low income housing are not used. Lower income residents do not
own as many cars. Page 165. Thus, they are more likely to use
public transportation. Requiring offstreet parking for low
income housing takes away the choice for residents to use
their limited funds for other purposes, serves as a barrier to
obtaining housing and essentially forces them to become
automobile dependent. If low-income residents cannot afford to
buy both housing and parking together as a package, they are
barred from any housing at all. Thus, many cities such as
Seattle now “de-couple” housing and parking and allows them to
be purchased separately as needed.



Subsidized Housing

Local and federal agencies have limited funds to build and
subsidize housing. Mandating that each resident have a parking
space diminishes the number of low income housing units that
can be built with any set amount of dollars.

Because of the current requirement to build costly parking
spaces with each unit, builders are forced to favor building
larger and more expensive residential units which have a lower
parking requirement per sqg. ft in order to make the project
financially feasible. Thus, the city’s current parking policy
has many unfortunate consequences, which reduce the
affordability of housing in downtown Tacoma.

Q5: How does Tacoma’s requirement for off street parking
increase congestion downtown and increase pollution?

The off-street parking requirements essentially mandate that
all Tacomans downtown use cars. Once the pricey housing and
parking space package is purchased, the parking space appears
as “free” to the resident and takes away any incentive to
share a car or use public transportation.

Once someone is forced to spend $30,000 by the city for a
parking space, most of the costs required to live a car
centric lifestyle have been expended, leaving little incentive
to use mass transit.

Many Tacomans, if given the choice may choose to use mass
transportation, bicycle, car share, walk or find other ways of
getting around the city. Yet, off street parking takes away
the residents ability to weigh the costs and benefits of using
mass transit.

Pollution

The city council has recently passed resolution to reduce
pollution in the city as well as greenhouse gases. Forcing
residents downtown to purchase spaces for cars takes away
residents choice to cut down on auto use and needlessly
increases congestion in violation of this environmental
policy.



At the very least, the City of Tacoma should be neutral with
respect to using a car and not require the purchase of parking
space when residents consider whether to buy or rent a living
space downtown.

Q06: How do other model West Coast cities regqulate off street
parking?

After studying the matter, most model West Coast cities such
as Portland, Seattle and San Francisco have now removed off
street parking requirements.

Seattle, Washington

In 2005, Seattle eliminated the requirement for off-street
parking in the downtown. See the Seattle Times article 12/10/
2006. Yet, Seattle has a far higher demand for parking than
downtown Tacoma.

San Francisco, California

Off-street parking requirements have been eliminated in San
Francisco. The city has taken a further step and has set a
maximum of parking units which can be built of .75 per unit.

In San Francisco, more downtown housing has been approved
over the last few years than in the last 20 years
combined, said Joshua Switzky, a city planner. The
booming real estate market there inspired local officials
to revoke minimum-parking requirements in the central
core, Mr. Switzky said. “The city’s modus operandi is
‘transit first,’ ” he said. “Everyone recognized the
existing rules didn’t match the policy.”

Under San Francisco’s new parking maximums, downtown
developers are also required to “unbundle” the price of
parking from the price of the condo. "“Buyers aren’t
obligated to buy a parking space, and developers don’t
have the incentive to build spaces they can’t sell,” Mr.
Switzky said. (emphasis added)

No Parking: Condos Leave Out Cars, New York Times, November
12, 2006.



Portland, Oregon

Portland eliminated off-street parking requirements in 2000.

In Portland, where central city parking minimums were
eliminated six years ago, developers are breaking ground
on projects with restricted parking.

The Civic, a 261-unit project, includes 24 condos without
parking. The building is six blocks from downtown and
near a major bus and light-rail line, and will offer
residents a rental-car-sharing arrangement.

No Parking: Condos Leave Out Cars, New York Times, November
12, 2006.

Q7: How does the off street-parking requirement hurt the
attractiveness and aesthetics of new buildings downtown?

Requiring off-street parking undermines the attractiveness of
buildings in three significant ways.

First, having the first few floors serve as a parking garage
certainly cannot result in the best aesthetic design
regardless of the ingenuity of the architect.

Second, if the building uses a surface level parking lot to
satisfy the parking requirement, the lot distracts
aesthetically from the building creating an adjacent dead
zone.

Third, a even a small surface level parking lot or parking
garage requires an entrance and exit for cars that runs over
the sidewalk and poses gapping holes in the buildings posing
an aesthetic as well as a functional detriment.

08: What policy should Tacoma adopt for off street parking
that would most benefit downtown, encourage the development of
an attractive, walkable downtown with high density of
residential, workspaces and retail while providing adequate
parking?

First, the City of Tacoma should let potential business decide
how much parking they need based on the cost and demand for



parking spaces. Certainly, some lenders will likely still
require off street parking to obtain financing.

Potential residents, developers, and businesses are in the
best position to judge the market and make the decision as to
the appropriate amount of parking that should purchased and
built.

Second, the City of Tacoma should then charge the “right
price” for on street parking so as to maintain a 15 percent
vacancy and use the funds for local improvements. This will
keep the on street parking spaces nearly full yet maintain
sufficient on street parking availability for people seeking
to park. Page 305.

Conclusion

The city of Tacoma should follow other successful and
attractive cities such as Portland, Seattle and San Francisco
which have infilled their downtown with businesses, retail and
residential units and eliminated their off street parking
requirement.

Please let me know if you have any questions. I may be reached
at (253) 272-1434 or Ebjornson@msn.com.

1 One of the leading comprehensive authorities, analyzing
hundreds of different parking studies is The High Cost of Free
Parking, Professor Donald C. Shoup (2005) by the American
Planning Association. Dr. Professor Shoup is a Fellow of the
American Institute of Certified Planners and a professor of
Urban Planning at Yale University and is extremely well
published. He has a Ph. D in economics. The High Cost of Free
Parking is considered authoritative by many planners and has
been reviewed extensively. The enclosed analysis is based on
the methodology of the author of the text. For more
information about Dr. Shoup see http://shoup.bol.ucla.edu.

1




Skip to content

V8 "tbb
% Experience how smart technologies are

& } transforming transportationt!
201 4

ORLANDO OCTOBER 18-20! JOIN US at www.itsworldcongress.org

Advertise on STREETSBLOG

contact us Lo iearn more...

Streetsblog
New York

Los Angeles

San Francisco

Capitol Hill

National Blog Network

Streetsblog Jobs Board
Streetfilims

Donate

tr log New York Ci

About

Contact
Calendar

RSS

Friday, February 11, 2011 13 Comments

Parking Minimums Make NYC Housing More Expensive, NYU
Report Finds

by Noah Kazs on February 11, 2011

You don’t need Jimmy McMillan to tell you that housing in New York is expensive. But figuring out why the rent is so
damn high, and what to do about i, is a knotty policy question.



Large parking lots, like the one at the Grant Houses on
125th Street, increase the cost of affordable housing and
take up space that could be used for more apartments.

Image: Google Street View.

Thanks to new research from NYU’s Furman Center for Real Estate and Urban Policy, one underlying reason for the
high cost of New York City housing is crystal clear: The mandatory parking minimums in the city’s zoning law, first
established more than half a century ago. The evidence is more solid than ever that the city’s parking minimums are a
major factor making New York City less affordable.

The report, “Minimum Parking Requirements and Housing Affordability in New York City,” shows for the first time the
extent to which parking minimums actually affect New York City developers. Data compiled by authors Simon
McDonnell, Josiah Madar and Vicki Been indicates that in many cases, they only build as much parking as they are
required to by law.

Before this research, said McDonnell, “‘No one had any idea at a broad scale whether developers were building at the

minimum.” Without the minimmums, developers would probably build less parking.

Looking at every large, market-rate and entirely residential building completed in Queens between 2000 and 2008, the
authors compared how much parking was required by zoning to how much was actually constructed. Of the 38
buildings that met those criteria, 18 of them had exactly the amount of parking required by the minimum. Another

four actually had less than required, perhaps because they received a variance. Only five buildings built more than four
more spaces than required. “That would suggest the minimum is quite binding,”” McDonnell concluded.

Academics have long understood how city-mandated parking can increase the cost of housing. If developers can turn a
profit on parking, they’ll build it themselves. Any additional parking built because of a mandate is a money-loser (at least
compared to the additional housing that might be built in its place), the cost of which must be borne by tenants and
buyers. Housing advocates, too, have argued that requiring more parking drives up housing costs.

Apologists for parking minimums could always contend, however, that developers would build that much parking
anyway, in order to meet demand. The new report confirms that the minimums are in fact distorting what gets built. In a
majority of the cases studied, parking requirements are binding developers and therefore increasing the price of housing,

McDonnell, Madar and Been don’t estimate exactly how much parking minimums increase housing costs, but they do



=

offer some guideposts. Above-ground structured parking, they say, costs more than $21,000 per space in New York
City, not inchiding the cost of land. Below-ground parking is even more expensive. Even surface parking carries
enormous costs given the price of land in New York. In the very least expensive residentially zoned areas in the city,
they estimate, just the land required to build a five car parking lot would cost more than $100,000.

And that’s only direct costs. By taking up valuable space and making it harder to build, parking minimums also restrict
the supply of housing, driving up costs across New York City. If the oversupply of parking leads to increased car-
ownership and increased driving, as all but one study in their lit review shows (that one, tellingly, is from the New York
City Department of City Planning), then all the safety, environmental and congestion costs of increased auto use should
also be inclided.

Future research, said McDonnell, will broaden the inquiry to smaller projects, other boroughs, and commercial uses.

Based on the author’s literature review, the case for making housing more affordable by cutting parking minimums is
already incredibly strong. A 2003 report by the New York chapter of the American Institute of Architects [PDE], for
example, noted that many of its members had to cancel projects because parking requirements made them
uneconomical. Moreover, they wrote, “Parking requirements often Iimit the size of a building footprint more than floor
area ratio,” the piece of the zoning code intended to limit density.

“The largest and most difficult zoning constraint affecting the development of new housing has been the requirement of
building on-site parking spaces,” stated a report commissioned by New York City to lay out a comprehensive program
for reducing housing costs [PDF]. That 1999 report, updated in 2005, found that even where parking minimums had
been cut, as for affordable housing projects, they were still making development expensive or impossible. The report
noted that NYCHA had recently abandoned attempts to build out some of its sites because the agency couldn’t meet
the parking requirements.

As McDormmell, Mahar and Been write, “Setting the minimum parking requirement is likely more high stakes than
municipal planners have realized.”



Parking Requirements and Housing Affordability:
A Case Study of San Francisco

Wenyu Jia

Transportation Planner, Office of Transportation
Fairfax County, Virginia 22035
email: wjiaol @co.fairfax.va.us

Martin Wachs

University of California Transportation Center
University of California, Berkeley
Berkeley, California, 94720-1720

email: mwachs@uclink4.berkeley.edu

July 1998

Submitted for possible presentation at the 1999 Annual Meeting of the
Transportation Research Board

UCTC No. 380

The University of California Transportation Center
University of California at Berkeley



Abstract

Residential parking requirements specify the number of parking spaces that must be
provided when new residential units are built. This paper examines the way such parking
requirements influence housing affordability. The provision of parking spaces requires land,
building materials and equipment which increase the price of housing. On the other hand, off-
street parking requirements are said to be needed to prevent streets overcrowded with parked
cars. In a case study of six neighborhoods in the City of San Francisco, this study investigated
the influence on housing affordability of code-required parking. A hedonic model was fit to data

describing housing and neighborhood characteristics in order to statistically explain the sales price

jl
of housing units that changed hands in those neighborhoods in 1996./ The analysis revealed that

single family houses and condominiums were more than ten percent more costly if they include

—

arking than if they did not{ Based on the selling prices and the distribution of

incomes of San Francisco residents, it was estimated that tens of thousands of additional
households could qualify for home mortgages for units without off-street parking if those units

could legally be provided under zoning and subdivisiorlmin,anffyf The policy implications of

this finding include the possible consideration of alternative forms of regulation regarding the

provision of off-street parking in residential projects.



Housing affordability and parking availability are two of the most vexing problems in the
nation’s largest cities. In San Francisco, internationally known for its ambience, most working
people find it almost impossible to find a house, condo, or apartment at an affordable price.
Finding a parking space is nearly as difficult. Many houses are situated on narrow lots, and
frequent curb cuts for their driveways reduce on-street parking. Cars circle the block looking for
rare empty spaces. Residents say parking problems are a major bane of urban life. In many other
urban centers as well—New York, Chicago, Boston, and Seattle—housing costs and parking
availability are twin public-policy problems that become enormous when combined.

Although Americans rarely connect housing affordability with parking availability, the
two problems are actually intimately linked, presenting planners with something of a conundrum.
To ease parking shortages, cities write zoning ordinances and subdivision regulations requiring

that new dwelling units provide off-street parking spaces. But parking spaces add significantly to

the cost of building houses, requiring more land, more materials and more labor. This, of cour.
raises their sales prices or monthlyritJ Todd Litman estimated that one parking space per unit

/—increases the cost by 12.5% and that two spaces increases cost by 25% in comparison with no
off-street parking(/). Donald Shoup, based on interviews with housing developers, has argued

that the cost of providing parking also acts as a ratchet that increases housing prices by more

than the direct cost of the parking spaces(2). Because developers must bear the costs of parking

and that raises the basic cost of the housing unit, they believe that the higher priced units are not
as marketable unless they increase the number of luxury features included in the units. Thus,
because parking places are required, more up-scale features are typically included in the unit and
this causes their prices to rise even further. So it seems that reducing the parking problem also
reduces housing affordability. If municipalities allowed new housing units to be built without
parking spaces, housing prices would be lower but streets could eventually overflow with parked
cars.

By requiring the provision of parking spaces as a condition of approval for new housing,
urban zoning and subdivision regulations may be inviting more cars into the city. Planners often
favor “transit oriented development” to increase public transit use and lessen residents’ reliance

on automobiles. It would seem logical to decrease the number of parking spaces in neighborhoods



www.vtpi.org
VICTORIA

Transport Info@vtpi.org
POI ICYINSTITUTE Phone & Fax: 250-360-1560

EFFICIENCY » EQUITY e CLARITY

Parking Requirement Impacts on Housing Affordability
18 February 2011

Todd Litman
Victoria Transport Policy Institute

Current development practices result in generous parking supply at most destinations, which
reduces housing affordability, increases vehicle ownership and stimulates sprawl. This is
regressive, since lower-income households tend to own fewer than average vehicles, and unfair,
because it forces residents to pay for parking they don't need. Alternative policies can increase
housing affordability and help achieve other transportation and land use planning objectives.

Abstract
Current zoning laws and development standards require generous parking supply at most
destinations, forcing people who purchase or rent housing to pay for parking regardless of

thelr needs. Generous parking requirements reduce hgusing affordability and im
and environmental costs on soci pical affordable
housing development costs, one parking space per unit increases costs by about 12.5%,

and two parking spaces increase costs by about 25% %ﬁﬁfé_;ﬁrﬂng costs increase as a
ercentage of rentfor lower price epresents a larger portion of
household expenditures for poorer households and vehicle ownership increases with
income, parking costs are regressive and unfair to many lower-income households that
own fewer than average cars. Current parking standards are a ineffective mechanism for
matching parking supply with demand because the number of vehicles per housing unit
varies significantly between households and over time. Various parking management
strategies can increase affordability, economic efficiency and equity.

© 1995-2011
You are welcome and encouraged to copy, distribute, share and excerpt this document and its ideas, provided the
author is given attribution. Please send your corrections, comments and suggestions for improvement.



Parking Requirement Impacts on Housing Affordability
Victoria Transport Policy Institute

Contents

[T MO coronarrdéraontooradoaacmoionairboncronanarrrancod b dinbse e o ncb e aoo T 2
Current Residential Parking Requirements...........cccccovviinnerinniiiinieiniiieinnnennn, 3
Parking Demand by Households..........ccccccciieiiiiiiiieneininiinreceninieeneenenan. 4
P arKin Gl R ACili Ty A0S S T L LI Tt oee it 9
Development Cost EXxample.........ccooiicvrreiiieiiiecniinenriee e csssesnnnnne 12
Impacts on Lower Income Households ..........cccceieiiiiiiinreiiinicnnieinecnnnnciiseneennn 14
Impacts on Automobile Ownership and Use.........cccccvveiiniiiniiiiiiiiicnniinennnnns 16
Mitig AN g R aC OIS . T e e et s remcaetiderreess 17
SOlUIONSEF SN o IR N T e Re i s, . 80, et ebc e titesh e shinns 18
Parkingi Uil ZatiOnS T i@ S P o ear e banan e ea ot e s buseeesatnelhse st st ss 21
Affordable Housing Opportunities ........ccccevecueeeeeiirciiiniciieniinicerrenieissenieeecennenns 22
G L) S0 e o b T G b S o R o B T T e PR T PP TR cr B T 11 25
(510 (VTS SIS e b (A EEE oo b ror T b e O e T T A TE C PO et P 28
References and RESOUICES ......cciicccvrmmeeiiieiirsceeteieesesssnnrersssissienreeeessissessnsesses 29
Preface

Hey, I've got a terrific idea! Let’s pass a law requiring all residential buildings to have gasoline pumps
that provide free fuel to residents and their guests. Fuel costs would be incorporated into residential
rents. Think of the benefits! No more worry about money to pay for gas. No delays at gas stations.
Everybody would be better off; especially poor folks. Great idea, right?

Wrong. It’s a foolish idea. Somebody would have to pay for the pump and gasoline. It would increase
everybody’s housing costs. It would be unfair to anybody who drives less than average, who would be
forced to subsidize their neighbors’ gasoline consumption.

Free gasoline would also encourage wasteful habits. It would increase motor vehicle use, leading to
more congestion, pollution, accidents, and sprawl, and it would continue the decline in non-automotive
transportation choices, leaving non-drivers worse off. The gasoline tanks would take up space. Gasoline
spilled from the pumps would degrade the environment.

Although requiring free gasoline is obviously unfair, wasteful and foolish, it is economically little
different from current residential parking standards. Both residential parking and gasoline typically cost
about $50 per month per automobile. Current practices of requiring generous free residential parking
contradict society’s goals to provide affordable housing, reduce environmental impacts, conserve
resources and develop a more efficient and diverse transportation system.




Parking Requirement Impacts on Housing Affordability
Victoria Transport Policy Institute

introduction

Adequate housing is essential for individual and community welfare. There are few
trends more tragic than the growing housing problems many people face. An
unacceptable number of people are homeless, and many lower-income households devote
an excessive portion of their income to housing.

Figure 1 Housing Portion of Consumer Expenditures (BLS, Various Years)
40%

30% A

0/ 4
20% ~—&— Lowest Quintile

—&— Second Quintile
~—&— Third Quintile

— Fourth Quintile
—¥— Highest Quintile

10% 4

Portion of Total Expenditures
Devoted To Housing

0% T T T y T
1972 1981 1986 1991 1996 2001

Year

This figure shows the portion of household expenditures devoted to housing by income quintile.
Housing averages more than a third of expenditures for the lowest income quintile households.

This report examines the impacts of residential parking requirements (the number of off-
street parking spaces mandated at a particular location) on housing affordability.
Increasing parking requirements increase housing development costs, which has reduced
the supply of lower priced housing and raised costs to consumer. This report does not
question the need for some off-street parking. The question issue is how best to determine
parking requirements and manage available parking supply. It describes more efficient
and equitable strategies that support social and environmental goals.

The parking problem is ultimately simple. Motorists have come to expect generous
amounts of free parking at most destinations, and planning practices attempt to provide
this. The result is more-than-adequate parking supply at most destinations, but high costs
in terms of resources consumed and distortions to development patterns. Current parking
practices are comparable to about a 10% tax on development, and much more for lower-
priced housing in areas with high land costs. These practices are regressive because
lower-income people tend to own fewer than average vehicles: we force five lower-
income households to purchase more parking than they need, to insure that one higher
income household can park all of its vehicles with no extra cost. Described more
positively, more efficient parking practices can provide large savings, increased
affordability and improved community design.



Parking Requirement Impacts on Housing Affordability
Victoria Transport Policy Institute

Current Residential Parking Requirements

Automobiles typically spend 95% of their existence parked, using either on-street parking
supplied free by the community or privately supplied off-street parking. Since on-street
parking is an expensive and limited public resource it seems fair to mandate off-street
parking. Most local governments require building owners to provide a certain minimum
amount of parking based on the assumption that buildings create parking demand.
Building owners are forced to include parking costs when selling or renting housing.

Table 1 Typical Parking Standards

“Parking Evaluation,” VTPI, 2005)

Housing Type Spaces Per Unit
| Single family 2.0
“Efficiency” apartments 1.0
1 to 2 bedroom apartments 1.5
3+ bedroom apartments 2.0
Condominiums 1.4

These standards are considered sufficient to meet typical residential parking

These parking requirements are based on recommended standards published by
professional organizations such as the Institute of Transportation Engineers
(www.ite.org) and the American Planning Association (www.planning.org). Table 1
shows typical recommended off-street standards. Many municipalities impose even
higher parking requirements than these recommended standards, as illustrated in Table 2.
These standards tend to be excessive in many situations, resulting in parking facilities
that are seldom or never fully used, particularly in areas where per capita vehicle
ownership and use tends to be low (Shoup, 1999).

Table 2

Typical Residential Off-Street Parking Standards (Stover & Koepke, 2002)

Multifamily, Studio

“One space per dwelling unit.” (Orange Co., CA)
*“1.2 spaces per unit.” (Bellevue, WA)

*1.25 per dwelling unit.” (Savannah, GA)

Multifamily, One Bedroom
“One space for each dwelling.” (Bay City, MI)
1.5 spaces for efficiency units.” (Schaumburg, IL)

Multifamily, Two Bedrooms

“1.6 spaces per unit.” (Bellevue, WA)

“1.75 spaces per dwelling unit.” (Savannah, GA)
“Two spaces per dwelling unit.” (Hillsborough, FL)

Multifamily, Three Bedrooms
1.8 spaces per unit.” (Bellevue, WA)
“2.33 spaces per unit.” (Lake Forest, IL)

Multifamily, Four Bedrooms
“Two spaces per unit.” (Albany, OR)

Manufactured Housing

“One space per unit.” (Fairbanks, AK)

“1.25 spaces per mobile home site.”(Durham, NC)
1.5 spaces per unit.” (Albemarle Co. VA)

“Two spaces per unit, plus one per five units for guest
parking.” (Prescott, AZ)

Townhouse

“1.5 spaces per dwelling unit.” (Clifton Forge, VA)
“Two spaces per dwelling unit.” (Lexington Co. SC)
“2.25 spaces for each dwelling unit.” (Plano, TX)

Single Family
Nearly all codes require two off-street spaces per unit.

“Detached two spaces per dwelling if access to the lot is
on a public street; 2.5 spaces per dwelling if access to
the lot is from a private street, common drive, or
common parking court.” (Leesburg, VA)




296

Most local governments’ off-strect parking
requifements promote quantity over
quality, focusing on ensuring an ample
supply of parking. This has undesirable
consequences for the built environment.
Parking lots and parking structures rou-
tinely overwhelm the architecture and
urban design of even the best buildings
and neighborhoods. We argue that plan-
ners should worry less about the quanticy
of parking, and pay more attention to its
quality. Through examples of zoning
reforms adopted by some cities, we show
how regulating che quality of parking has
the potential to improve urban design.

Vinit Mukhija (vmukhija@ucla.cdu) is an
assistant professor of urban planning at
che University of California, Los Angeles
(UCLA). He is an architect and planner,
and his research focuses on housing and
the builc environment. He is the author
of Squatters as Developers? Slum Redevel-
opment in Mumbai (Ashgate, 2003).
Donald Shoup, FAICP (shoup@ucl
.edu) is a professor of urban planning at
UCLA. His recent research has centered
on parking as a key link between land
use and transportation. In 2005 che
American Planning Association published

his book, The High Cost of Free Parking.

Joumal of the American Planning Association,
Val. 72, No. 3. Summer 2006.
@ Ametican Planning Association, Chicago, TL.

Quantity versus Quality
in Off-Street Parking
Requirements

Vinit Mukhija and Donald Shoup

ost local off-street parking requirements emphasize quantity over

quality. Local governments often have minimum parking requirements

that overwhelm the physical landscape with an excessive supply of
unattractive parking,' but relatively few impose design requirements on parking
lots and parking structures. Off-street parking requirements focus on the ratio of
parking spaces to floor area, usually neglecting the consequences for urban design.
As a result, most parking lots are asphalt breaks in the urban fabric, and most
parking structures present blank walls to the street. Parking lots and garages tend
to interrupt the streetscape, expand the distances between destinations, and
undermine walkability (see Figures 1 and 2). We argue that planners should
worry less about the quantity of parking provided and should pay more attention
to its qualicy.

Off-street parking requirements also reduce architectural quality. Architects
often complain that they must shoehorn a building into the space remaining
after the parking requirement has been satisfied, compromising the design. Thus
reducing or removing parking requirements can make better design possible, and
cities can use quality-based parking requirements within an urban design frame-
work to reinforce the desired character of each neighborhood.

The marker gives developers a strong incentive to provide adequate parking
because lenders are unwilling ro finance projects with inadequate parking and
tenants are unwilling to rent space in them. But the marker provides less incentive
to improve parking design because many of the bencfits of better parking design
accrue to the communiry rather than to the property owner. Developers are more
likely ro spend money on a marble-vencered lobby (which will increase the value
of the building) than on landscaping the parking lot (which will increase che
value of the whole neighborhood).

In chis article we show how planners can use the following five strategies to
improve urban design.

1. Dercgulate or limit the number of parking spaces.
2. Improve the location of parking.

3. Improve the design of surface parking.

4. Improve the design of parking structures.

5. Improve the design of residential garages.



Mukhija and Shoup: Quanticy versus Qualicy in Off-Street Parking Requirements

297

Figure 1. Off-strect parking in Los Angeles.

Shifting the focus of parking requirements from quan-
tity to quality will help planners to play a more constructive
role in shaping the built environment.

Eliminating Minimum Off-Street
Parking Requirements

Minimum parking requirements in zoning ordinances
would not be needed if they did not increase the parking
supply beyond what the market would provide (Shoup,
2005). Such requirements create a self-perpetuating cycle
in which increasing the supply of parking leads to increased
demand. Plentiful parking encourages people to buy more
cars, and more cars lead ciries to require even more parking
spaces. Parking lots consume land that could be put to
higher-value uses, such as housing, and they detract from
the traditional pedestrian ambience of cities. As Alexander,
Ishikawa, and Silverstein (1977) wrote 30 years ago:

We suspect that when the density of cars passes a cer-
tain limit, and people experience the feeling that there
are too many cars, what is really happening is that sub-
consciously they feel that che cars are overwhelming
the environment, that the environment is no longer
“theirs,” that they have no right to be there, that it is not
a place for people, and so on. After all, che effect of the
cars reaches far beyond the mere presence of the cars
themselves. They create a maze of driveways, garage
doors, asphalt and concrete surfaces, and building ele-
ments which people cannot use. When the density goes
beyond the limit, we suspect that people feel che social
potential of the environment has disappeared. (p. 122)

To preserve and enhance walkability, Alexander and
his coauthors suggested that only 9% of a city’s land should
be devoted to parking, though there is little empirical basis
for this number. Some cities, such as Cleveland, Milwaukee,
and Philadelphia, have eliminated parking requirements in



298 Journal of the American Planning Association, Summer 2006, Vol. 72, No. 3

Figure 2. Off-streer parking in San Francisco.
Source: San Francisco Planning Department

their downtowns to make them more accommodating to
pedestrians. Other cities have reduced or eliminated parking
requirements adjacent to public transit stops. An ordinance
in Portland, Oregon states, “There is no minimum parking
requirement for sites located less than 500 feet from a
transit street with 20-minute peak hour service” (City of
Portland, 2006).

Removing off-street parking requirements can also ease
adaptive reuse and historic preservation. Older buildings
rarely meet current minimum parking requirements, and
as a consequence many scunning buildings are demolished
and replaced by ordinary structures that do meer the
requirements. Apart from the irreplaceable loss of heritage,
such demolition limits the possibility of a rich and varied
collage of buildings from different time periods.? To
encourage the conversion of older, economically distressed
office buildings to apartments and lofts, some cities exempt
these buildings from parking requirements if they are con-
verted to residential uses. Los Angeles, for example, does
not require downtown buildings built before 1974 to add

parking spaces if they are converted to dwelling units, guest
rooms, or joint live-work quarters.?

Minimum parking requirements are intended to ensure
an ample parking supply, and they imply that parking is a
problem only when there is not enough of it. But too much
parking also creates problems. Most major U.S. cities,
including Boston, Chicago, New York, and San Fraacisco,
regulare the maximum rather than the minimum number
of parking spaces in their downtowns. Carmel, California,
which is famous for its attractive downtown, is an extreme,
but highly successful, example of limits on parking. Zon-
ing helps to maintain Carmel’s unique pedestrian ambi-
ence by prohibiting off-street parking spaces in the central
commercial district:

On-site parking is prohibited in the central commercial
(CC) land use districe. This policy reduces the need for
curb cuts in sidewalks and the interference with free
pedestrian traffic flow that would result from an ex-
cessive number of driveways. This policy is intended



Mukhija and Shoup: Quanticy versus Quality in OfF-Street Parking Requirements 299

to enhance the opportunities for creating intra-block
courts and walkways between properties and buildings.*
(City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, 1998b)

The absence of off-street parking (and of cars driving
across the sidewalks to reach it) helps make Carmel one of
the best places in America to be a pedestrian, and people
from all over the world come to walk around (see Figure 3).
Few cities will want to prohibit off-street parking, and many
may not want to limict it, but they may wish to reserict
surface parking lots, as in downtown San Francisco: “No
permanent parking lot shall be permitted in [downtown)];
temporary parking lots may be approved as conditional
uses . . . for a period not to exceed two years from the dace
of approval” (City of San Francisco, 2006).

Even without reducing their off-street parking require-
ments, cities like Palo Alco and Pasadena in California have
improved urban design by offering developers the opportu-
nity to pay a fee in lieu of providing all the parking spaces
required by zoning. The cities then use the revenue to
provide shared public parking spaces to replace those the
developers would have provided. Public parking spaces
built with the in-lieu revenue allow drivers to park once
and visic multiple sites on foot, reducing vehicle eraffic and
increasing foor traffic. The in-lieu option makes it easier to
restore historic buildings and rehabilitate historic areas for
the reasons noted earlier. And because developers can meet
their parking requirements withour on-site parking, store-
fronts can be continuous, without the gaps that parking
lots create. Developers can also undertake infill projects
without assembling large parcels for on-site parking, and
architects have greater design freedom. The public parking
structures consume less land than if each development pro-
vided its own parking lot, and cities can place the structures
where they interfere least with vehicle and pedestrian cir-
culatdion. To improve the streetscape, some cities dedicate
the first floor of public parking structures to retail uses.
The in-lieu policy thus contributes to a better looking,
safer, and more walkable city.

Some cities allow shared parking among sites where the
peak parking demands occur at different times (e.g., banks
and bars). Fewer spaces are needed to meet the combined
peak demand, and each parking space is occupied more of
the time.? For example, Circle Centre, a successful retail/
enterrainment development in downtown Indianapolis,
would have needed 6,000 parking spaces if it were built
with unshared parking for every individual use, but only
2,815 shared parking spaces were sufficient to meet the
demand (Smith, 1996).

Removing or reducing off-street parking requirements
does not restrice parking or reduce the market incentive for

developers to provide an adequate supply. Letting markers
determine the number of off-site parking spaces changes,
but does not eliminate, planning for parking. Local gov-
ernments should still regulate parking landscaping, layout,
location, pedestrian access, provisions for the handicapped,
sccurity, setback, signage, storm water runoff, and urban
design. The following section discusses ways to improve
urban design by regulating the location and appearance of
parking spaces.

Parking Location Requirements

The location and placement of parking greacly affects
urban design. Parking lots located between the sidewalk
and buildings make walking more onerous. To avoid this,
planners can use conventional zoning regulations to require
that parking be positioned below, behind, or beside build-
ings, rather than in front, and that buildings be oriented to
the sidewalk.

Although Los Angeles did not begin to require off-street
parking for retail and commercial buildings until 1946, cars
and parking transformed the character of its commercial
spaces in the first half of the 20th century. Richard Long-
streth documented these changes. His work explains how
merchants valued the sidewalk orientation of their busi-
nesses. Faced with an increase in the demand for parking,
merchants inidially provided parking spaces behind their
buildings. Thus, major retail corridors like Wilshire Boule-
vard “maintained a sense of street-front drama by adhering
to the pattern of showing facades and offering rear parking”
(Longstreth, 1992, p. 152). Wilshire Boulevard set an
example of pedestrian orientation for the region’s smaller
retail precincts during the 1930s and 1940s, but merchants
finally abandoned pedestrians to make life more convenient
for motorists and, as Liebs (1985) wrote, “the long-standing
tenec of Main Street commercial site planning—Iline the
shops along the sidewalk with room for parking only at the
curb—was finally cast aside” (p. 14).

In a Planning Advisory Service report on how to prepare
zoning ordinances, Lerable (1995) showed how the place-
ment of parking lots can influence the pedestrian quality
of the streetscape. The bottom panel of Figure 4 illustrates
his recommended approach, placing parking lots behind
buildings so that the only gap between shops is the access
to parking. An even more desirable approach would close
all gaps between the shops and provide access to the parking
lot from a side street or rear alley. This would eliminate
curb cuts on the main street, reduce driving across sidewalks
to access the off-street parking, and allow the maximum
amount of curb parking. Curb parking buffers the pedestrian



San Francisco’s Off-Street
Parking Requirements:

Understanding the impacts of these
requirements on housing costs
and consumer choice

A Guide for Neighborhood Organizations

A recent analysis Transportation for a Livable City
by a UC Berkeley graduate student exanuned the
mmpact of San Francisco’s residential parking
requirements from the pomts-of-view of consumers,
developers, lenders, neighborhood organizations,
and policy makers, all of whom desire to make the
best choices for San Francisco's current and future
lhivability. This guide summanzes useful information
firom this report for neighborhood organizations, and
suggests actions that will result in greater housing
availability at a more affordable price

Key Findings:




» Most of today’s housing bundles the price of parking with housing

» This means that any interested buyer or renter pays a price for parking that is
inseparable from the overall price of the housing.

* A parking space in San Francisco can cost 2-3 times the price of a new car

» Study estimates range from an average price for a parking space of $50,000 to
$70,000, although prices vary widely by neighborhood.

» With few exceptions, San Francisco currently requires at least one parking space for
every new unit of housing (known as *“‘one-to-one™).

» Many neighborhoods are concerned that not enough parking is built with new
housing, while some feel that there is too much parking and not enough transit

» The view of many is that not having enough off-street parking for new residents
results in fewer available on-street parking spaces.

» Much of San Francisco’s older housing has no off-street parking.

» 11% of owner-occupied and 38% of renter-occupied households in San Francisco do
not have a vehicle.

» Housing without parking sells/rents as quickly as housing with parking.

« San Francisco is fairly unique, in that most of its parking has a price, experienced
both in a dollar figure and in time spent searching for a parking space.

* In contrast, 99% of car trips in America have free parking.

S e
he Policy Outcomes:

° Residential parking requirements suppress the overall supply of housing, as
the space requirements for parking often constrain the amount of housing
possible on a given site.

> Developer profits — and consequently, the opportunity for the city to extract
public benefits from development — are reduced, because developers get
lower per-square foot profits on housing with parking versus without.

> Housing options for low- and moderate-income people are increasingly
limited, because bundled parking forces all buyers and renters to pay for a
parking space, whether they intend to use it or not.

> The current argument over off-street parking is not about how much parking
is appropriate for the location or for the intended consumer of the housing,
but how much above one-to-one the parking ratio should be.

o Sometimes parking requirements lead to building designs that place blank
walls next to sidewalks instead of active storcfronts or front yards.

*Both of these points are explained in greater detail in Chapter 4 of the analysis



Case Study: A Lot with 7,000 buildable square-feet —
A Look at the Parking Requirement’s Impact

Using the figures from the analvsis, this case study presents a specific example ir how the parking requirement
impacts the availability and affordability of housing.

On a lot of 7,000 square feet with a 60 foot height restriction, a developer would be able toj
build 20 parking spaces and, therefore, 20 units of housing, at 800 square feet each. Given the]
space constraints, she would have two floors with eight units each and a top floor with four
units. For this building, selling each unit at $500,000 (including parking), she would make al
total profit of $4.7 million.

If she could build out the unused fourth floor space, she could build 24 units of housing with
the same 20 parking spaces. In this scenario, her building costs marginally increase while
her selling prices increase more. Assuming the 11% price discount for the four units that sell
without parking (and no sales time difference), the developer now makes a $5.6 million profit.

If she could build even more housing without parking, she might seek to build up to the height
limit, giving her another floor of housing, with eight more units. Under this scenario, again
assuming the price discount for units without parking, she makes a $7.3 million profit, or morg
than a 150% increase over her profit when restricted to one unit of housing per parking space,

Criteria
This analysis considered a series of recommendations for
policy changes using several criteria, including:
= Any new policy is not a prohibitive barrier to most new development
= The market price for parking is readily apparent
= Parking allocated is responsive to demand
= The parking allocation is appropriate to the location

The Recommendations:




Short-Term

« Unbundle the price of parking from housing
Provides consumers the choice of housing without parking, to see a real price
associated with parking and make their transportation preferences accordingly

« Eliminate the parking minimum
Changes the debate on parking provision, gives developers more building options, and
allows for more flexible neighborhood-by-neighborhood planning

+ Eliminate the “independently accessible” requirement
Gives greater flexibility to developers and consumers

« Encourage City CarShare as a tradeoff for less than one-to-one
parking

Provides alternative transportation options to residents in new housing

Long-Term Considerations

» Lower and Strengthen the Maximum
Creates City expectations of appropriate parking allotments based on localized
characteristics, such as transit accessibility

+ Implement a Market-Rate Residential Parking Permit Program
[Explained in greater detail on the following page]

+ Create a City-Supported Development Fund
Allows the City to finance projects it deems important to future success that may
have difficulty securing financing in private markets

ne Issue at a Glance --

Neighborhood Organizations’
Concern:



Availability of On-Street
Parking

Proposed Solution:
Market-Rate Residential Parking Permit Program (MRPP)

Why MRPP?

The current Residential Parking Permit (RPP) program is not designed to assure residents of a
reasonable chance of finding on-street parking, leading to a desire for more off-street parking.
Residents are often opposed to new housing with reduced parking because they fear increased
competition for on-street parking, even while they may welcome greater vitality that more
residents and — in the case of mixed-use projects — more jobs, shops, and services may bring
to the neighborhood. Reforming the RPP program to reserve scarce on-street spaces for people
who need it — particularly current residents — is therefore essential to gaining support for new
housing with reduced parking.

What is it?

Currently, San Francisco collects a $29 annual fee for parking permits in neighborhoods
controlled by the Residential Parking Permit (RPP) program. MRPP involves a higher price,
particularly for those neighborhoods with higher on-street parking usage. Prices are set at
levels to discourage some potential drivers from parking in the neighborhood, allowing much
more efficient usage of on-street parking space.

How does it work?

MRPP can be administered in two different ways. In one, it is administered similarly to the
City’s current RPP program. Residents pay a predetermined amount based on their location
and receive full parking access in their neighborhood. In another, people can purchase a price-
tiered permit that allows them a certain level of access to on-street parking, based on the price
level. In both of these scenarios, parking is priced according to demand. Further, pcople pay a
price that has a much greater likelihood of altering transportation choices than the current $29.

How can it be implemented?
MRPP functions as a tax, which is different from the City’s current RPP program. Today’s $29
is a fee, defined as only covering the costs required to administer it and the street cleaning it
supports. In order to implement MRPP, voters would have to approve it by a 2/3 vote. It could
gain more support with the following provisions:

» Current RPP participants are “grandfathered” into MRPP at the $29 fee level.

* Permits can be bought, sold, and traded.

* Permit prices can be tiered based on applicants’ income levels.

* Monies raised through MRPP go back to the neighborhoods for street beautification

and neighborhood activities.



b

R

For More Information

Contact:

Transportation for a Livable City
(415) 431-2445
http://www.livablecity.org

Tom Radulovich, Exec. Director
Jeremy Nelson, Policy Director

The original policy analysis is available through Transportation for a Livable City.

The author, Luke H. Klipp, conducted his study as part of the program of professional
education at the Goldman School of Public Policy, University of California at Berkeley. It is
submitted in partial fulfillment of the course requirements for the Master of Public Policy
degree. The judgments and conclusions are solely those of the author, and are not necessarily
endorsed by the Goldman School of Public Policy, by the University of California, by
Transportation for a Livable City, or by any other agency.

[Postage Pemi{Transportation for a Livable City
1095 Market Street, Suite 402
San Francisco, CA 94103



JUMOP JNOQE SAIIM
e] & 5] uosusofg i

1uy pue 3AnORINE
£q sonfea frunut
Suuel € uf M0I3
ip e OS S9pOd
5 98ueyd 0} wn
ofjod Sumyred Sut
10081, 31} YHM
nsopad ‘aanoen
se ‘uorsaduod oy
npal pue Suisnoy
MOJUMOP JURWI
2178 JO onfeA Ay}
IARY SUBLIODE],
y[em suernsapad
‘01 PajoaUUOdSIP
{pBuy sory se yons
,Inq 3¢ 0} BUIOJRL,
& Juswasmbax Sur
urejal ‘ApAaneuial
eLnsopad pue aan
13 sy UMOIUMOD
q sey juatuaimbol

Bupjred joans-Jo a1y ‘0dspouURA] UBS U]
‘so[e8try 5077 10
09sIouRx] UBS I 210U U003 U3IM}
-aq 9UO SE 9210y Jf} SILIISIP dnoyg
"RUIOOR], UMOJUMOP 10j 2:159p Aoty UBISOp
UeqIN 21N T} NOJE UOISIHIP [ejuatiep
-umy © 9B IS SUBUOOE], “UMOoUMOPp
Ul 159.0JUT JUSUNRSIAUT PIMAURT LI
2ariyNy 3Y} I UONSAZU0 dfgyer uLms
-§® YOLIISIP SSUISTI] [BT}USD AU} Ul 35T LBI
soyepueUl A[lenJIA UONBURSIP A104d T8
soeds Sunjred e Sutimbaiing A0 Y3 UL
poonpoud sjueinfjod i1 3onpa1 0} po8paid
Apuadar frouno) ANO ewode], UL
‘spunj orjqnd Jo aImpuadxa A
N0} UAMOIUMOP SAT] PUE J10M O} SUBLL
-09%], 210U (U P[NOM }1 ISTIBIA] I[qE
-1S9p S1 JALLIEq STU} BUTAOUISL £q3umsnoy
o1eI-)a3IBU ‘O[qepIOyE a10W Sunea1)
-a8ex
-e3 Supypred dasuadxa pue Jodre] yonui
¢ annbal pnom uoneISyuoo € Yons
25N SHUN 9[qEPIOHe AIOW IS[[EWS

oyut sBUIp[ING M3U SUIPIAIP WO PALISRP

o1e SI9P[ING ‘UMOIUMOp HUN [RRUIPISA

Mmau A10Ad JO J[ing 9q jsmu 90rds Sunjred
U0 ey} S3jEpUBW [0S A0 AL o5TRddYq
; “Juaw
-aambai o) pasourax Apusnbasqns 09SO
-uBxg Ues g Suiaq wody syun 3uisnoy
ajqepIoge Jo spuesnoyy day pue jusorad
g'z1 fiq Sutsnoy jo 20ud sy} paseatoul
juswaxmbar Supjred jaams-}jo ay) yeud
PAUILLIAIIP PUE 0ISIOURL] UBS UT fpmse
PojoNpUOO BUIOHTED JO ANSIATUN YL
*SI9UMOIIOY JOYOLI 9ZIP
-1sqns 03 s12jual 1531004 A1) WO Auou
saye} Sunyred azipisqns 0} uonedod
21mud 9y UO s31509 usppry Suisoduy
«Apoaxpur Bupjred 1oy Aed [ms
0q SR MAJ UMO A1) 9518 SAI[ILUE] 1O
-JUS1 PUE SWOJUI-MO] ULTRY SIUsWdANba3
Supired 100.05-FO,, :Sure|dxe dnoyg sy
UM}
-umop Suisnoy arer-jesTew ‘dlqepioye
j0 Juswide[asp ) sapadust fjqegnsniun
osye juswdambai Supjred 199ns-JO YL
‘puEpIOg PUe 9[3189g SB Yons sanid
19130 O} UOHE[3] Ul UMOUMOP JUSUTSIA
-uj j0RH7e O SMOJA SII Ul 93eIURAPESIP

JueoyTuBIs © Je Jjasi paoefd sey BWOdE],
9onnsuod 03 000'GZ$ SIS0 aoeds Sunjred

yoes asneoag ‘suelnsopad 03 ssaudAn

-oeae oty Suisealoul AGaIay) ‘UMOIUMOD
fnsuap 1212238 21mboe pue sj0] Jued
-eA [[GUl 0} J[(B MOU e SO ISAYL
"SUMOJUMOP JIA} AZI[BHAIL
0} JopaIo ut juatoxmbal Supjred joons
~}JO TioY} PAAOUIAX o3e 8uo] 03s1OUBL] UBS
pue vdwAjO ‘Omess ‘ureyBuileg ‘puef
1104 Se yons sanm ‘Alqepuelsapun)
2IDUMAIIAD SUMOJUMOD Ul pUR 5300418
urew uo santadord [BIOIWILIOD JO JNO
renuajod o) paxons ALy ‘steaf 0L 01 0G
3sed a1J 1940 smef SoRIo Aurew oyt jdaxo
2ABY YoIyM ‘sjuauwiaambal 8unyred ays
-UQ, :(SIOMISI [BIDIOWWIO]) §,BOLIWY 3O
28moog ayJ, :Sunjred AisuUQ,, S[PNIE Sty Ui
JUN[q 210U USA S (IS NON Touure]d
fnqissaooe pure Aisuap y3u] -
aATORINE J 3B JEY} SAINIEDY [BNUISSI
o Susururapun Aq sSAULALIOBINE S,(THD
oy} 90npai sn sjueaNbaI upyred,,
'SOTIADO. OTLIOU0D? PUE [RINY[NO [BIO0S
fueur 03 Kyrurrxoad sI9JJ0 1 95N 4D

a1y Jo a8ejueape dwiid € st Aysuap YSIH
(JoLnSIp SsauISNq [81JUD0) AL Wey Ajjer0
-adsa sjuawannbai Sunjred 190m5-JO.,
:suredxa dnoys "Q preuod
x0ssojoad Suruuerd ueqm ‘weydeye) Aq
PO ‘UOTIBIO0SSY BulUiU]g UBILIDWY I
£q paystqnd 1xa) danjeIoyIne sty Ul
“Suisnoy 91el-jo3preuI 9[qEpIOye
JO UOTIONASUOD 3Y) 03 JoLireq JuROUSIS
® uisod st pue ‘s}0] JUBORA (M paxpod
“ouuew ysimeids e ul
MOI3 0 BUIOOE], WAMO0JUMODP
Busned SI JUIWSINDII o1}
‘soTjI0 1SBOD) 1SOM SAnORN
-je Aq pauopueqe 3uo]
“BWIODR],
umojumop jo juswdo
-joAap 9y} uo 3uiaey St
juoteambai Sunpred 19218
-po paenbrjue §BUOJEL
yetp 810291 atp) Jo dny oW AUl SIPHUIPL

.Amﬁ-m.ezta:aoéaov

Eo%ﬁqabmzco m:ﬂ_.anoao_z..

‘UUINOd JUIOAM s,usygej[eD 1919
NOSNYO[8 NRi3 A8

uosusolg

. et |

18 umoyusop sopadut syepurent Supjred 3915 HO

o AVASINCIM

AUVLNIWWOD

LNIOdMIIA

° INNAIYL SMIN 3HL




Lb,:.ﬂned
f W the

Nees Tr bue

@ [ 2003
Off-Street Parking Requirement Impedes 4/ / "/ ~
Downtown Revitalization Efforts

Peter Callahan’s recent article “[m]ore parking only strangles
our downtown” identifies the mere tip of the iceberg that
Tacoma’s antiquated off-street parking requirement is having
on the development of downtown Tacoma. Long abandoned by
attractive west coast cities, the requirement is causing
downtown Tacoma to grow in a sprawlish manner, pocked with
vacant lots, and is posing a significant barrier to the
construction of affordable market rate housing.

In his authoritative text published by the American Planning
Association, cited by Callahan, Urban Planning Professor
Donald C. Shoup explains:

Off-street parking requirements especially harm the
[central business district]. High density is a prime
advantage of the CBD because it offers proximity to many
social cultural and economic activities.

Parking requirements thus reduce the CBD’s
attractiveness by undermining the essential features
that make it attractive-high density and accessibility.

Planner Mott Smith, is even more blunt in his article Onsite
Parking: The Scourge of America's Commercial Districts

Onsite parking requirements, which have crept into many
cities' laws over the past 50 to 70 years, have sucked
the potential out of commercial properties on main
streets and in downtowns everywhere.

Understandably, cities such as Portland, Bellingham, Seattle,
Olympia, San Francisco have long ago removed their off-street
parking requirement in order to revitalize their downtowns.
These cities are now able to infill vacant lots, acquire
greater density downtown thereby increasing the attractiveness
to pedestrians. Because each parking space costs $25,000 to
construct, Tacoma has placed itself at a significant
disadvantage in its efforts to attract investment downtown in
relation to other cities such as Seattle and Fortland.



The off-street parking requirement also unjustifiably impedes
the development of affordable market rate housing downtown.

As professor Shoup explains:

Off-street parking requirements harm low income and
renter families because they own few cars but still pay
for parking indirectly

Imposing hidden costs on the entire population to
subsidize parking takes money from the poorest renters to
subsidize richer homeowners.

The University of California conducted a study in San
Francisco and determined that the off-street parking
requirement increased the price of housing by 12.5 percent and
kept thousands of affordable housing units from being built.
San Francisco subsequently removed the requirement.

Because the city still mandates that one parking space must be
built for every new residential unit downtown, builders are
deterred from dividing new buildings into smaller more
affordable units because such a configuration would require a
much larger and expensive parking garage.

Yet, creating more affordable market rate housing by removing
this barrier is highly desirable because it would enable more
Tacomans to work and live downtown without the expenditure of
public funds.

The Tacoma City Council recently pledged to reduce air
pollutants produced in the city. Yet, by requiring a parking
space at every destination, the off-street parking requirement
virtually mandates car use in the central business district,
assuring traffic congestion in the future.

With renewed investment interest in downtown, Tacomans must
make a fundamental decision about the future urban design they
desire for downtown Tacoma.

Professor Shoup describes the choice as one between becoming
more like San Francisco or Los Angeles.

In San Francisco, the off-street parking requirement has been
removed and the downtown has grown in a dense, attractive and
pedestrian friendly manner. Alternatively, retaining the off-



street parking requirement would force downtown Tacoma to be
built in car centric sprawl such as Los Angeles where
buildings are disconnected from each other and few pedestrians
walk the streets.

Tacomans have justifiably recognized the value of attracting
jobs and investment downtown, creating affordable housing,
reducing pollution and traffic congestion as well as creating
an attractive pedestrian friendly downtown.

With the Tacoma City Council reviewing parking policies this
year, now is the time to change our antiquated building codes
so that downtown Tacoma can grow in a manner that reflects our
community values by becoming more vibrant, attractive, and
inclusive.

Erik Bjornson is a Tacoma attorney who often writes about
downtown issues.
I



City of Tacoma
Tacoma Sustainable Tacoma Commission

l’%

September 28, 2011

Dear Planning Commissioners;

The Sustainable Tacoma Commission supports the proposed changes to the downtown off-street
parking requirements and the critical areas preservation codes. The changes help implement
recommendations and strategies outlined in the 2008 Climate Action Plan. Specifically that Plan
calls for:
e Reducing or eliminating parking minimums required for residential/mixed use
developments;
Adopting parking maximums for new developments or major remodels
Increasing tree planting and maintenance, and
Implementing and Funding the Open Space Habitat and Recreation Plan

Thank you for considering these important changes. All of our efforts will lead us towards reduced
greenhouse gas emissions and a more livable, healthy community.

Sincerely,

Wity CCgfio

Philip C. Coughlan
Co-Chair
Sustainable Tacoma Commission



r. Tacoma - Pierce County

o \ Healﬂl Department Governed by a local Board of Health
o

www.tpchd.org

September 16, 201°

Healthy People in Healthy Communities

Chelsea Levy

City of Tacoma

747 Market Street, Room 1036
Tacoma, WA 98402

RE: Off-street Parking update; ; SR0149782

Dear Chelsea Levy:

The Tacoma-Pierce County Health Department's (Health Department) Environmental Health
Program received the above mentioned checklist on September 07, 2011 and has reviewed
your proposal.

There are no objections to the proposal as presented.

Thank you for the opportunity to respond. If you have further questions, please contact
me at 253 798-2851 or by e-mail at bharp@tpchd.org.

Sincerely,

Brad D. Harp
Environmental Health Program

BDH:sfr

3629 South D Street Anthony L-T Chen, MD, MPH, Director of Health 253 798-6500
Tacoma, WA 98418-6813 800 992-2456

Printed on recycled paper TDD: 253 798-6050



EXecuTive COUNCIL FOR A GREATER TACOMA
PO Box 111347 Tacoma, WA 98411
(253) 779-0265

Tacoma Planning Commission
Jeremy Doty, Chair

747 Market Street, Room 1036
Tacoma, WA 98402-3793

Chairman Doty and Members of the Planning Commission:

We write today to express our concern about proposed changes to the off-street parking
regulations in downtown Tacoma, and how these changes might negatively affect the goals we share
with the city on building density, vitality, and economic growth in our downtown core.

As we understand the proposed changes, perhaps the most troublesome in our minds is the
proposal to institute a maximum parking requirement within the International Financial Services Area
(IFSA) while reducing the existing off-street parking maximum from 3.6 stalls per 1,000 square feet to
2.5 stalls per 1,000 square feet.

As it has been explained to us, the goal of this change is to promote density within the
downtown. Certainly, as many members of our Council are active in downtown real estate development,
we share this goal. But as we look at the challenges we face—filling the 909 A Street building, for
instance—we do not believe that the proposal as currently contemplated would work to achieve the
goal it sets forth to accomplish.

By setting a maximum parking requirement, the City makes it more difficult for our economic
development efforts to attract new, large businesses into the downtown. A business that may be
otherwise interested in locating here may be discouraged by the requirements, and in such a
competitive marketplace, that discouragement will be hard to overcome.

There are other concerns that we have with the proposal, and we would request that you
consider appointing a group of Planning Commission members, City Council members, and local
developers to continue talking informally about how best to achieve these commonly shared goals of
density, vitality, and economic development in our downtown.

Sincerely,

e e

Tom Luce
Director, Executive Council for a Greater Tacoma



(&~ SIERRA
CLUB

HOLSDID 12

Tatoosh Group

Cascade Chapter Sierra Club
Exploring, Enjoying and Protecting Pierce County... and Beyond

September 30, 2011

Tacoma PlanningI Commission
747 Market St, 9" Floor
Tacoma, WA 98402

Re: Downtown Off-Street Parking and CAPO Update
Dear Chair Doty and Planning Commissioners:

The Sierra Club Tatoosh (Pierce Co.) Group just wanted to complement you and staff, particularly,
Chelsea Levy, for the work that has been on amending the requirements regarding Downtown Off-
Street Parking. Most significant, is probably the proposed Reduced Parking Area with the reduced
parking requirements. These changes should, in the long run, promote walking, biking, and use of
public transit while reducing auto traffic (and its congestion, toxic and CO2 emissions, safety hazards,
noise, etc.) and help make downtown a better place to live and do business.

Also, much thanks to the Commission and Karla Kluge and her staff on proposing updates to CAPO
which greatly improve the rules by providing clarity and understanding of the code and streamlining
the administration of it. Since our Group has been actively working with Tacoma Metro Parks to
remove non-native invasive plant species in the parks, we really appreciate the modification in the
rules under the proposed 13.11.200 which makes it a little easier for environmental and community
groups to participate in such work projects to remove bad plants and plant the appropriate native
ones.

To summarize our views, we strongly support both the changes to the code regarding downtown off-
street parking and the refining updates to the CAPO.

Thanks again to the Commission and City staff for their good work on these recommendations.

Sincerely,

Bliss Moore, Vice Chair and Ivy League (Invasive Species Control Program) Coordinator
Sierra Club Tatoosh Group
253-752-6472 (h)

6116 N. Park Ave.
Tacoma, WA 98407

cc: Dorothy Walker, Chair, Sierra Club Tatoosh Group



DOWNTOWN:
Onthe 77

Tacoma-Pierce County Chamber | 950 Pacific Ave, Suite 300 | Tacoma, WA 98402
253-627-2175 | dotg@tacomachamber.org

September 6, 2011

City of Tacoma Planning Commission
747 Market Street — Room 1036
Tacoma, WA 98402

Dear Planning Commission,

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comment on the City of Tacoma Off-Street Parking
Requirements Proposal.

Downtown On the Go is the transportation advocate for downtown Tacoma. Our Board of Directors
represents twenty downtown businesses, organizations, and agencies, and approximately 30,000
employees and more than 3,500 students that commute to downtown Tacoma on a daily basis.
Downtown On the Go’s goal is to reduce the downtown drive alone rate by 11percent by 2015.

We cannot meet our goals if we do not support land use decisions that support a focus on the movement
of people rather than cars and provide opportunities for alternative transportation. Eliminating the
minimum on parking requirements not only meets the objectives of Downtown On the Go, but also of the
Tacoma Climate Action Plan and Tacoma’s Commute Trip Reduction goals. We encourage you to move
forward with this proposal.

Additionally, since downtown Tacoma already has a significant amount of downtown parking, there is no
need to add more until residential, office and retail density demand it. Retaining the parking maximums
will keep the focus on economic vibrancy and the movement of people rather than cars, and keep the
proportion of parking to people in balance. Without parking taking up space in our downtown core just to
meet code, opportunities will arise for new development and street front retail that create a dynamic and
vibrant downtown.

Downtown On the Go advocates for transportation choices and land use policies that promote a vibrant
and integrated downtown. While we recognize the need for parking, we also know that a balance of
options is what leads to a livable downtown where businesses want to open stores on our streets and
companies want to bring their offices here. Cyclists, pedestrians, drivers and transit riders are all part of
our local economy. Giving opportunities to all modes by limiting the amount of vehicle parking required
will help us realize this vision for downtown Tacoma.

Thank you again for the opportunity to comment.

Sincerely,
Krigtifla Walker

Waler

Downtowh On the-Go Manager
Tacoma-Pierce County Chamber



DOWNTOWN:

Downtown: On the Go! Board of Directors

Executive Committee

Judi Hyman, Downtown Merchants Group & TWOKOI Restaurant
Patti Sutton, Propel Insurance

Chris Green, Economic Development Board of Tacoma-Pierce County
Rachel Smith, Sound Transit

Dominic Accetturo, Kidder Mathews

Charles Bowers, Group Health - Tacoma Medical Center
Karen Bunger, CH2M HILL

Jennifer Burley, University of Washington Tacoma
Ana Grover-Barnes, DaVita, Inc.

Steve Kallberg, Franciscan Health System

Laura Kinney, MultiCare Health System

Natalie McNair-Huff, TrueBlue

Scott Morris, Pierce Transit

Tom O'Connor, O'Connor and Associates
Shannon Payton, BLRB architects

Kat St. Pierre, Columbia Bank

Bruce Stirling, GeoEngineers

Dan Voelpel, Tacoma Public Schools

Diane Wiatr, City of Tacoma



EXECUTIVE COUNCIL FOR A GREATER TACOMA
PO Box 111347 Tacoma, WA 98411
(253) 779-0265

Tacoma City Council

Environment and Public Works Committee
747 Market Street, Room 1036

Tacoma, WA 98402-3793

Chairman Fey and Members of the Planning Commission:

We write today to express our concern about proposed changes to the off-street parking
regulations in downtown Tacoma, and how these changes might negatively affect the goals we share
with the city on building density, vitality, and economic growth in our downtown core.

We testified earlier at a Public Planning Commission meeting, and our comments are on record
there. As we understand the proposed changes, perhaps the most troublesome in our minds is the
proposal to institute a maximum parking requirement within the International Financial Services Area
(IFSA) while reducing the existing off-street parking maximum from 3.6 stalls per 1,000 square feet to
2.5 stalls per 1,000 square feet.

As it has been explained to us, the goal of this change is to promote density within the
downtown. Certainly, as many members of our Council are active in downtown real estate development,
we share this goal. But as we look at the challenges we face—filling the 909 A Street building, for
instance—we do not believe that the proposal as currently contemplated would work to achieve the
goal it sets forth to accomplish.

By setting a maximum parking requirement, the City makes it more difficult for our economic
development efforts to attract new, large businesses into the downtown. A business that may be
otherwise interested in locating here may be discouraged by the requirements, and in such a
competitive marketplace, that discouragement will be hard to overcome.

We respectfully request that you amend the proposal to take away the maximum parking
requirement.

Sincerely,

o

Tom Luce
Director, Executive Council for a Greater Tacoma






- Agenda Item
S GB-3

wssetill City of Tacoma
w Community and Economic Development Department

TO: Planning Commission

FROM: Donna Stenger, Manager, Long-Range Planning Division

SUBJECT:  South Downtown Sub-Area Plan and Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)
DATE: October 13, 2011

At your October 19, 2011 meeting, the Planning Commission will have a brief presentation on

the proposed sub-area plan for the south end of Downtown Tacoma which is currently
underway.

Background
This project is being undertaken by the City of Tacoma fof

under a sub-contract with the Puget Sound Regional Lsincum
Council (PSRC). PSRC has been awarded a Sustainable »

Communities Regional Planning Grant by the U.S. :
t

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), a8

Office of Sustainable Housing and Communities. The SRS

PSRC grant is for “Growing Transit Communities: A o n\ -“-.‘1"
Corridor Action Strategy for the Central Puget Sound _ "i “‘;,E'Ei'n:sr;lil‘
Region”. This HUD grant is in Category 2 — Detailed ALK r:.f"; .i;‘n ‘_-,‘Wal-;oss
Execution Plans and Programs. PSRC'’s program is ; e =o)L e
focused on executing the region’s long-term growth L
strategy, VISION 2040. If the region is to meet VISION _ ey

2040's resource protection, climate change, smart growth,
and sustainability goals, the City of Tacoma, as one of the
region’s metropolitan cities, must support approximately 8
percent of the region’s total population and employment
growth between 2000 and 2040. Much of this growth can
be accommodated in a revitalized downtown Tacoma,
which has targets for an additional 60,000 jobs and 70,000
people by 2030.

g Lt Dome geess
~ District

. Figure 1: Downtown Regional Growth Center
The Sub-Area Plan/EIS will focus on the fact that the South  character Areas

Downtown, which includes the areas generally known as

the Tacoma Dome, Brewery, and UWT/Museum Districts and parts of the Hillside and Foss
Waterway Districts, has significant and well-documented capacity for additional density, access
to multi-modal transportation (e.g. transit, light rail, and commuter rail), and further development
will facilitate significant restoration of degraded areas. The Tacoma Dome multimodal
transportation station offers both significant potential for redevelopment and job creation, as well
as an access point to the region’s largest job centers. Further, the Sub-Area Plan/EIS will build
on existing neighborhood partnerships, bring in county and regional stakeholders and additional
private investment, and program further public investments (such as the Prairie Line Trail shown
in Figure 2).

747 Market Street, Room 1036 | Tacoma, Washington 98402 | (253) 591-5577
http://www.cityoftacoma.org



South Downtown Sub-area Plan
October 13, 2011
Page 2 of 2

The SEPA approach being used in conjunction with
the development of the sub-area plan is a new tool
authorized by the Growth Management Act in
2010. It allows cities to conduct upfront
environmental review on an area-wide basis
relieving subsequent investors from conducting
expensive environmental analysis. The new
approach is described in the attached article under
the heading “Transit-Infill Review”.

The $500,000 expenditure for the Sub-Area
Plan/EIS project is estimated to save $5.8 million in
separate project-by-project environmental reviews,
attract new regional investment incented by
improved permit processing times (for large
projects reduced from years to weeks), and provide
a model approach to streamlining and facilitating
major Transit Oriented Development (TOD)
redevelopments in existing metropolitan centers. It
is estimated that for every 10,000 new jobs added
to downtown Tacoma over the next 10-15 years,
approximately half will result in shorter commutes

m Existing Trail

ssss1 Proposed Trail

Prairie Line Trail
Phase 1

ssss Phase 2

Childrens |
Museum
{ F‘Jt:ure ]

T
Convention
- .

Center
(rr,-l o
Tollefson

Plaza|
)

Thea
Foss
. Waterway,

Figure 2: Proposed Prairie Line Trail

from nearby neighborhoods. These shorter commutes result in cost savings associated with
less vehicle operations and emissions, less congestion externalities and accident risks. Taken
together these cost savings (discounted to present values) are in excess of $20 million.

If you have any questions or requests, please contact lan Munce at 573-2478 or by e-mail at

imunce@ocityoftacoma.org.

Attachment

c: Peter Huffman, Assistant Director



mailto:imunce@cityoftacoma.org

Environmental &
Land Use Law
Newsletter

Published by the Environmental and Land Use Law Section of the Washington State Bar Association

Volume 38

June 2011

Number 1

Section Report

By Jill Guernsey, Section Chair

Thank you to all members and subscribers to the ELUL
Section. We are pleased to announce that almost everyone
rejoined the Section despite the increase in dues. The Execu-
tive Committee continues to work hard to provide value
for your dues. This year, we will again be sponsoring three
mini-CLEs free to all Section members/subscribers, the
ever-popular Newsletter, grants to all three Washington
law schools for students interested in environmental and
land use law, and the Midyear Program Reception.

By the time this Newsletter reaches you the 2011 Mid-
year at Alderbrook will have taken place. We thank this
year’s co-chairs, Jessica K. Ferrell, Marten Law PLLC, Se-
attle, and Phil A. Olbrechts, Olbrechts & Associates, PLLC,
Granite Falls, for an excellent program on Land, Water, and
Restoration: Local to National Trends.

We also thank those who provided funds so thatscholar-
ships could be awarded to nine individuals enabling them
to attend the Midyear: Cascadia Law Group PLLC; Chuck
Wolfe, Attorney at Law,;Foster Pepper PLLC,;GordonDerr
LLP; Gordon Thomas Honeywell LLP; Hillis Clark Martin
& Peterson, P.S.; K&L Gates LLP; Marten Law PLLC; Mc-
Cullough Hill Leary PS; Plauché & Stock LLP; and Stoel
Rives LLP.

Thank you too for completing the survey we sent out
in February. We will announce the results soon.

Editor’s Message

By Michael P. O’Connell, Newsletter Editor

Welcome to the June issue of the ELUL Newsletter. This
issueincludes articles, updates and law school reports. The
firstarticle, by Courtney Kaylor, addresses use of mediation
to resolve land use conflicts. The second article, by Jeremy
Eckert, addresses use of SEPA by cities to encourage eco-
nomic development and sustainable communities.

This issue also includes Matthew Love and Christo-
pher Zentz’s update on federal court decisions on federal
environmental law, Richard Settle’s update on significant
recentjudicial decisionsinland uselaw, Andrea McNamara
Doyle’s update on Environmental Hearings Boards deci-
sions, and Ed McGuire’s update on Growth Management
Hearings Board decisions. Finally, this issue also includes
reports from each of Washington’s law schools.

The Editorial Board welcomes Matthew Love as the
newest member of the Editorial Board. The Editorial Board
invites suggestions for articles for the next Newsletter.
If you have any comments or questions regarding the
Newsletter or its content, please contact me or any other
member of the Editorial Board listed on the back page of
this issue. Thank you for your interest in and support of
the Newsletter.

In This Issue

Section Report.......ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiciccccs 1
Editor’s MESSAZE ......cvvevvircreieiicicieiecctcie s 1
Land Use Mediation: “Smart Resolution” ..........c..cceuveue.. 2

Using SEPA to Encourage Economic Development and
Sustainable CommMUNItIes .........ccccceeveviiccieieieiceces 6

ENVIRONMENTAL LAW UPDATE

Federal Environmental Law Update........c.ccccoooviiinnnnen 9

LaND Use Law UPDATE
Significant Recent Land Use Decisions............ccccccceuuee. 20
Boarps UrPDATE

Recent Decisions from the Environmental Hearings
BOATAS ..o 30

Recent Decisions from the Growth Management
Hearings Board...........cccccceuiiiiiiiiiiiiiicccccccces 32

Law SchoOl REPOILS ..o 38




June 2011 Environmental & Land Use Law

19 RCW 7.07.030(3).

20 RCW Chapter 58.17.
21 RCW Chapter 36.70A.
22 RCW Ch. 36.70B.

23 RCW Ch. 43.21C.

24 Seee.g., League of Residential Neighborhood Advocates v. City of Los Angeles,
498 F.3d 1052 (9th Cir. 2007) (settlement agreement allowing construc-
tion of church without required conditional use permit invalidated).

Using SEPA to Encourage Economic
Development and Sustainable
Communities

By Jeremy Eckert, Foster Pepper PLLC'

This article reviews and analyzes State Environmental
Policy Act (“SEPA”) tools that cities can use to encourage
economic development and sustainable communities. The
SEPA tools include categorical exemptions, three forms of
“upfrontSEPA,” and functional equivalence. Used together,
these SEPA tools can limit (or eliminate) SEPA-based chal-
lenges for urban projects, providing cities with a competitive
edge to attract sustainable urban development.

A Challenging Task: Encouraging Urban Development

Washington State’s cities are responsible for encour-
aging economic development and sustainable communi-
ties under the State’s Growth Management Act (“GMA,”
Chapter 36.70A RCW). Generally, the GMA attempts to
direct growth away from areas that have high resource
and environmental values and into urban areas where
infrastructure exists. In other words, encouraging urban
developmentis anessential partof the State’s environmental
policy. Within this framework, the GMA attempts to balance
environmental, housing, and economic developmentgoals.
Although environmental review is a necessary requirement
to maintain the State’s ecological integrity and policies,
environmental review can also be used to obstruct rather
than promote sustainable development.

In 1971, nearly 20 years before GMA’s enactment,
the Legislature enacted SEPA (Chapter 43.21C RCW) to
ensure adequate environmental review of proposed proj-
ects. Since 1971, federal, state and local governments have
adopted numerous additional environmental and growth
management laws and regulations. Although specific en-
vironmental review occurs through these additional laws
and regulations, SEPA review is fundamental to achiev-
ing the State’s environmental and growth management
goals. At the same time, SEPA review, including related
administrative and judicial review, can delay and increase
costs of projects with significant overall environmental,
economic development and sustainability benefits, ob-
structing rather than promoting the State’s environmen-

tal, growth and economic development policies in some
cases.? For example, recently SEPA was used to challenge
the State’s first “Living Building,” a commercial building
located in a dense urban neighborhood and designed to
generate 100% of its energy and water needs on-site, in
addition to reaching numerous other “green building”
benchmarks. Project opponents argued that the project re-
quires an environmental impact statement, largely because
the project will block their views.? The legal challenge has
cost the developer tens of thousands of dollars; and, if the
opponents are successful, they will delay the project for a
year or more and substantially increase project costs. The
SEPA-based appeal of the Living Building is one example
that demonstrates how SEPA review can work in some
cases at cross-purposes with the State’s environmental,
growth and economic development policies.

This article reviews and analyzes the SEPA tools that
are available for cities (and counties within unincorporated
urban growth areas) to reduce regulatory delay and increase
certainty for cities and urban developers. Specifically,
this article reviews categorical exemptions, upfront SEPA
review, and functional equivalence. Additionally, recent
legislative enactments provide new financing mechanisms
for the State’s fiscally strained cities to fund the implemen-
tation of selected SEPA tools.

Categorical Exemptions

Table 1: SEPA CATEGORICAL EXEMPTIONS
(WAC 197-11-800(1)(c))

Project Exemption Level
Residential Development 20 units
Multi-family Development 20 units
Commercial Development 12,000 square feet

Categorical exemptions provide a cost-effective tool
for expediting development of projects that will not have
a significant adverse environmental impact by exempting
such projects from SEPA’s environmental review require-
ments.* Specifically, cities may use their legislative authority
to exempt from SEPA review projects that would develop
up to 20 residential units, 20 multi-family units, and 12,000
square feet of commercial development. The exemptions
provide a substantial development incentive for projects
at or below the categorical exemption levels. However, the
exemptions are limited, and some developments that cities
want to encourage are beyond the exemption levels. For
example, the six-story Living Building in Seattle would
not be eligible for the categorical exemption. Additionally,
a mixed-use development near a Sound Transit rail stop
would not be exempt from SEPA because the residential
development likely exceeds 20 units and the retail space
would likely exceed 12,000 square feet. Accordingly, proj-
ects that cities want to encourage (i.e., the Living Building,
transit-oriented-development, etc.) remain vulnerable to
timely and costly SEPA review processes and appeals.




Environmental & Land Use Law June 2011

Upfront SEPA

For projects not eligible for a categorical exemption,
SEPA provides cities with three forms of upfront SEPA to
minimize or eliminate SEPA-based appeals at the project
level. The three forms of upfront SEPA are: (1) infill exemp-
tions; (2) planned actions; and (3) transit-infill review.® If
adopted, each tool requires the city to prepare or reference
anon-project environmental impact statement (“EIS”) that
analyzes the environmental impacts of future develop-
ment at the planning stage for a specified sub-area. If a
new EIS is necessary, the city is responsible for preparing

EIS is complete, all projects that are consistent with statu-
tory criteria and the sub-area’s development regulations
may rely on the non-project SEPA review and mitigation
measures.

The intent of upfront SEPA is to streamline urban
development by reducing or eliminating duplicative en-
vironmental review and reducing or eliminating potential
SEPA-based administrative appeals at the project level. As a
practical matter, however, the form of upfront SEPA will
have differential consequences for both the city that com-
pletes (and initially funds) the upfront EISand the developer

and defending the non-project EIS. Once the non-project ~ who relies on that EIS, as further described in Table 2.

Table 2: “UPFRONT SEPA”

Planned Actions Infill Exemption Transit-Infill Review

(RCW 43.21.031) (RCW 43.21C.229) (RCW 43.21C.420)
Date enacted 1995 2003 2009
Non-project EIS re- | Yes Yes Yes

ired?
quired? Or reference another | Or reference another
relevant non-project EIS | relevant non-project
EIS

City’s EIS cost recov- | No No Yes

ery authorized?

Projects that may rely
on non-project EIS

All projects in the speci-
fied subarea except es-
sential public facilities

Not specified

Only projects that are
“mixed use” or resi-
dential

Not specified

All projects in the specified
subarea

“Shelf-life” of thenon-
project EIS

* The non-project EIS must
be issued by July 18, 2018

* The project must vest ten
years after the EIS is issued

EIS notice provisions | As provided in WAC

197-11-510

Subject to appeal under
WAC 197-11-172(2)(b)

As provided in WAC
197-11-510

Subject to appeal un-
der WAC 197-11-305

Extensive notice provi-
sions

Project appeals for Not subject to administra-

projects that are con-
sistent with sub-area
plan

tive orjudicial appeals if the
projectvests withinten years
of the EIS’s issuance

Planned Actions, RCW 43.21.031

To date, cities have predominantly relied on “planned
actions” (RCW 43.21C.031) to complete the upfront en-
vironmental review of a sub-area. Planned actions have
been used successfully to encourage economic develop-
ment and sustainable communities.® However, planned
actions have several practical limitations. First, preparing
and potentially defending a non-project EIS is expensive.
Other statutory provisions prohibit cities from recovering
funds associated with completing a non-project EIS for a
planned action ordinance, creating a significant cost for
Washington State’s fiscally strained cities. Second, essential
public facilities may not be included in a planned action

and rely on the planned action’s non-project EIS. Finally,
projects relying on the non-project EIS are vulnerable to
SEPA-based challenges at the project level: (1) if the project
does not meet the requirements of the planned action
ordinance or (2) where the earlier-completed EIS does not
adequately addressall probable significantadverseimpacts
of a particular proposed project (WAC 197-11-172(2)(b)).”
In effect, SEPA’s planned action provisions allow a proj-
ect opponent, instead of challenging the non-project EIS
years earlier when it was prepared, to “second guess” the
non-project EIS at the project level. This undermines the
purpose of SEPA’s planned action provision to increase
regulatory certainty and reduce delay for the development
of urban projects.




June 2011 Environmental & Land Use Law

Infill Exemptions, RCW 43.21C.229

The Legislature amended SEPA twice in an attempt
to address planned action shortcomings. The 2003 “infill
exemption” (RCW 43.21C.229) authorizes a city to enact
new categorical exemptionsbeyond the levels authorized in
WAC 197-11-800 (discussed above) if the city’s comprehen-
sive plan was subjected to environmental analysis through
a non-project EIS prior to adoption. The exemptions may
extend toall residential and “mixed-use” developments that
are consistent with a sub-area plan for which a non-project
EIS was completed. When used, the infill exemption is an
effective tool to reduce the scope of SEPA-based appeals for
certain types of urban development (e.g., the Living Build-
ing or transit-oriented development). In fact, it is unclear
why more cities do not use the infill exemption. Perhaps
elected officials are not aware of the tool, or perhaps they
are concerned about potential adverse public response to
enactment of additional categorical exemptions.

However, theinfill exemption does have certain limita-
tions. Like planned actions, the infill exemption does not
authorize a city to recover the costs associated with the
non-project EIS. The infill exemption is also limited to resi-
dential and mixed-use development, but the statute does
notdefine “mixed-use.” Apparently, the development must
include some residential development to be eligible, and
purely commercial and / or industrial and / or institutional
developmentisexcluded. Finally, projects relying upon the
infill exemption remain vulnerable to SEPA appeals based
on claims under WAC 197-11-305.%

Transit-Infill Review, RCW 43.21C.420

Enacted in 2009, “transit-infill review” (RCW
43.21C.420) is intended to expedite transit-oriented-
development by addressing the limitations of planned
actions and the infill exemption. First, transit-infill review
explicitly authorizes cities to charge developers a fee to re-
cover all costs associated with the non-project EIS. Second,
all development (e.g., commercial, industrial, mixed-use,
residential, and public facilities) may rely on the non-project
EIS. Finally, transit-infill review eliminates all SEPA-based
appeals for subsequent urban development projects if:

(1)The city completes a non-project EIS for a sub-area
plan and development regulations designed to ac-
commodate infill development;

(2)The infill development is consistent with the sub-
area plan and development regulations; and

(3)The developer submits an application sufficient to
vest the project within a period specified by the city,
not to exceed ten years after the issuance of the final
EIS.?

Unlike planned actions, project opponents may not
“second guess” the non-project EIS at the project level
in an attempt to establish a litigable SEPA issue. Accord-

ingly, using transit-infill review, cities can encourage
urban development (e.g., the Living Building or transit-
oriented-development) by eliminating project-based SEPA
appeals, provided that the specific project satisfies the
above criteria.

Cities considering using transit-infill review should be
aware of the statute’s eligibility criteria, extensive mailed
notice, and upfront public participation provisions. These
provisions vary depending on population and region of the
State. Additionally, transit-infill review contains a sunset
provision. That provision establishes a July 18, 2018 cut-
off date for EISs that may be used for transit-infill review.
After July 18, 2018, projects may continue to rely on the
non-project EIS for limitations on further SEPA only if the
EIS was issued by the city before July 18, 2018. In effect,
citieshave approximately aseven year window to complete
a non-project EIS for transit-infill review purposes.

Functional Equivalence

A “functional equivalence” provision enacted in 1995
(RCW 43.21C.240) arms GMA planning jurisdictions (for
the purposes of this article, “cities”) with a cost-effective
tool to limit the time, expense, and scope of SEPA review.
Functional equivalence allows cities to determine that
existing local, state, and federal laws or rules provide ad-
equate analysis and mitigation of some or all of the specific
adverse environmental impacts of a proposed project. This
allows the city to streamline the review process without
the preparation of a costly EIS.!

However, cities that rely on functional equivalence do
not immunize development projects from potential SEPA-
based judicial and administrative appeals. The regulations
enacting functional equivalence allow project opponents to
identify environmental “impacts resulting from changed
conditions, impacts indicated by new information, [or]
impacts not reasonably foreseeable in the GMA planning
process” (WAC197-11-158(3)). If suchimpacts are identified,
the project may require an EIS, and that EIS is then subject
to an adequacy appeal. This process may stall the project
for years and greatly increase project costs, perhaps to a
pointofinfeasibility. Inshort, SEPA’s functional equivalence
provision may not provide the same level of certainty and
expedition as upfront SEPA.

From a practical perspective, however, functional
equivalence can play a supporting role to narrow the
scope of potential SEPA-appeals. For example, a jurisdic-
tion that has enacted a planned action ordinance may
also use functional equivalence when issuing a threshold
determination for a proposed project. The city’s threshold
determination would state that the requirements for envi-
ronmental analysis, protection, and mitigation have been
adequately addressed in the city’s developmentregulations,
comprehensive plan, and in other applicable federal, state
and local laws or rules, including the mitigation identified in
the planned action ordinance. Therefore, if a project opponent
successfully challenges the planned action on the basis of a




Environmental & Land Use Law June 2011

no longer adequate non-project EIS, the city may rely upon
functional equivalence to demonstrate SEPA compliance
nevertheless.

Moving Forward: Urban Development and SEPA

Project opponents repeatedly use SEPA as their pri-
mary legal means to challenge urban development. The
use of the State’s most fundamental environmental law to
block urban development is particularly ironicbecause the
State has made strong policy decisions to encourage urban
development as a means to protect farms and forests (by
directing growth away from those lands) and to reduce the
State’s greenhouse gas emissions (by making transit and
transit-oriented-development available in urban areas).

Categorical exemptions, the three forms of upfront
SEPA, and functional equivalence used separately or in
combination provide effective tools to foster sustainable
urban development. By utilizing these tools, cities can
provide urban developers with significant reductions in
regulatory uncertainty and potential delay caused by time
consuming and costly SEPA-based appeals. In short, these
complementary SEPA tools may enable cities to promote
and expedite economic development and sustainable
communities.

Jeremy Eckert is an attorney at Foster Pepper, PLLC. Mr. Eckert
counsels privateand public clients on land use, environmental, real
estate, municipal law, and water law issues. He has represented
clients in issues involving federal, state and local regulations,
including the Clean Water Act, the Endangered Species Act,
the Growth Management Act, the Shoreline Management Act,
the State Environmental Policy Act, and the Land Use Petition
Act. Mr. Eckert’s practice also focuses on water resources and
water rights matters, including water right due diligence, water
right changes/transfers, municipal water systems, and associated
litigation. Mr. Eckert can be reached at 206-447-6284; eckej@
foster.com.

1 Theauthorthankshis colleagues Dick Settle and Pat Schneider for their
assistance with this article. Mr. Settle, Mr. Schneider, and Mr. Eckert
assisted in drafting RCW 43.21C.420 (the most recent upfront SEPA
statute). The author also thanks Deborah Munkburg, principal and
partner at inova planning communication design llc, for her valuable
nsights.

2 See WAC 197-11-330(5) (in making a SEPA threshold determination,
the lead agency may not balance beneficial aspects of a proposal with
adverse environmental impacts).

3 See WAC 197-11-330(5) (here, the beneficial environmental aspects of
the Living Building may not be used to offset the building’s potential
adverse environmentalimpacts, including any viewshed impacts). See
also WAC 197-11-444(2)(b)(iv); Polygon Corp. v. City of Seattle, 90 Wn.2d
59, 578 P.2d 1309 (1978).

4 Defined in WAC 197-11-720, “categorical exemption” “means a type
of action, specified in these rules, which does not significantly affect
the environment (RCW 43.21C.110 (1)(a)); categorical exemptions
are found in Part Nine of these rules. Neither a threshold determina-
tion nor any environmental document, including an environmental
checklist or environmental impact statement, is required for any cat-
egorically exempt action (RCW 43.21C.031). These rules provide for
those circumstances in which a specific action that would fit within
a categorical exemption shall not be considered categorically exempt
(WAC 197-11-305).”

5 These terms are used for descriptive purposes in this article, and the
descriptive term may not appear in the relevant SEPA statute authoriz-
ing the tool.

6 Planned action success stories abound. For example, the City of Ev-
erett used a planned action to complete environmental review for the
Paine Field sub-area as an incentive for Boeing to keep its operations
in Washington State. Today, Paine Field is home to the Boeing manu-
facturing plants for the 747, 767, 777, and 787 aircraft. In addition to
economic development, cities have successfully used planned actions
to encourage urban revitalization projects, with examples including
Mill Creek Town Center and Federal Way City Center.

7 See, Davidson Serles & Associates v. City of Kirkland, 159 Wn. App. 148,
244 P.3d 1003 (2011).

8 For example, a SEPA-based challenge under WAC 197-11-305(1)(b)
(ii) may assert that a project relying qun the infill exemption is one
project in a series of exempt actions that are physically or function-
ally related to each other, and that together the projects may have a
probable significant impact upon the environment.

9 The ten-year vesting requirement creates a potential timing issue for
sub-area plans with a build-out scenario exceeding ten years.

10 See, e.g., Moss v. City of Bellingham, 109 Wn. App. 6, 31 P.3d 703 (2001),
review denied, 146 Wn.2d 1017, 51 P.3d 86 (20021;

Environmental Law
Update

Federal Environmental Law Update
By Matthew A. Love and Chris D. Zentz, Van Ness Feldman, P.C.
I. National Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”)

The Wilderness Society v. United States Forest Service, et
al., 630 F.3d 1173 (9th Cir. 2011).

In The Wilderness Society v. United States Forest Service,
the Ninth Circuit revisited the so-called “federal defen-
dant” rule, which categorically prohibits private parties
and state or local governments from intervening of right
on the merits of claims brought under NEPA. The Ninth
Circuit ultimately joined other circuits in abandoning the
rule as conflicting with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
(“FRCP”).

Under the FRCP, upon timely motion, any party may
intervene of right in a case in which a person “claims an
interest relating to the property or transaction that is the
subject of the action, and is so situated that disposing of
the action may as a practical matter impair or impede the
movant’s ability to protect its interest, unless existing par-
ties adequately represent that interest.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 24(a)
(2). In contrast, the “federal defendant” rule “categorically
precludes private parties and state and local governments
from intervening of right as defendants on the merits of
NEPA actions.” See Churchill Cnty v. Babbitt, 150 F.3d 1072,
1082, as amended, 158 F.3d 491 (9th Cir. 1998).

In this case, the United States Forest Service (“Forest
Service”) adopted a travel plan that would allow motor-
ized vehicles to use nearly 1,200 miles of roads and trails




	Agenda (10-19-11)
	(4:05 p.m.) 1. Large Scale Retail Moratorium
	(4:35 p.m.) 2.  Downtown Parking Requirements
	(5:00 p.m.) 3. Brewery District Subarea Plan

	Minutes 9-21-11
	GB1 Packet - Large Scale  Retail (10-19-11)
	SUBJECT: Large Scale Retail Moratorium
	GB1 Attach1 - Written Comments (10-19-11).pdf
	North End Neighborhood Council (9-20-11)
	Jessica Brewer (9-26-11)
	Patricia Lowry (10-1-11)
	Susanne Marten (10-1-11)
	Bree Lafreniere (10-3-11)
	David Bricklin (10-5-11)
	Michele Drochak (10-5-11)
	Sarah Morken (10-5-11)
	Lin Swanson (10-5-11)
	Susan Cruise (10-6-11)
	Marshall McClintock (10-6-11)
	Mitch Robinson (10-6-11)
	CNC (10-7-11)
	Chamber (10-7-11)
	UFCW (10-7-11)

	GB1 Attach3 - Draft F&R (10-19-11).pdf
	Large Scale Retail
	Findings and Recommendations
	October 19, 2011




	GB2 Packet Downtown Parking (10-19-11)
	GB2 Memo Downtown Parking (10-19-11)
	GB2 Attach1 Downtown Parking_CR Report
	GB2 Attach2 Surface parking handout
	GB2 Attach3 ECGT Letter 10-12-11
	GB2 Attach4 DTP Written Testimony

	GB3 Packet - Subarea Plan (10-13-11)
	SUBJECT: South Downtown Sub-Area Plan and Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)




